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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

4:40 p.m.: 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: This hearing w i l l come t o 

order, and the D i v i s i o n c a l l s Case 12,2 76. 

MR. CARROLL: A p p l i c a t i o n of B u r l i n g t o n Resources 

O i l and Gas Company f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , San Juan 

County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: C a l l f o r appearances. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n , appearing 

on behalf of the Applic a n t , B u r l i n g t o n Resources O i l and 

Gas Company. 

We would ask, Mr. Examiner, t h a t f o r purposes of 

pr e s e n t a t i o n and t a k i n g testimony t h i s afternoon, t h a t you 

con s o l i d a t e t h i s case w i t h the next case, which i s 12,277. 

They're d i f f e r e n t w e l l s , but they i n v o l v e the same subject 

matter. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: C a l l f o r a d d i t i o n a l 

appearances. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, Scott H a l l w i t h the 

M i l l e r S t r a t v e r t Torgerson law f i r m , Santa Fe, e n t e r i n g 

appearances today f o r Energen Resources Corporation, 

Westport O i l and Gas Company, Carolyn Nielsen Sedberry, C. 

Fred Luthy, J r . , Cyrene L. Inman, the F.A. and H.B. 

Cronican Revocable Trust, W i l l i a m C. Briggs, Herbert R. 
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Briggs, Marcia Berger, WWR Enterprises. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Do you o b j e c t t o having Cases 

12,267 and 12,277 consolidated f o r the purposes of the 

testimony? 

MR. HALL: We do not. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, a t t h i s time the D i v i s i o n 

c a l l s Case 12,277. 

MR. CARROLL: A p p l i c a t i o n of B u r l i n g t o n Resources 

O i l and Gas Company f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , San Juan 

County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Any a d d i t i o n a l appearances? 

Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. I have 

two witnesses t o be sworn. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: W i l l the witnesses please — 

Oh, and Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: I have one. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, w i l l the witnesses please 

r i s e t o be sworn in? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

Let me see i f I can give you a concise 

i n t r o d u c t i o n of where we are w i t h these two cases. 

The compulsory p o o l i n g cases t h a t you have before 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 
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you i n 12,276 i s the Brookhaven Com 8 and 8A w e l l . They're 

i n the west h a l f of the s e c t i o n , Section 36. There i s t o 

be a Mesaverde w e l l i n the northwest q u a r t e r , and a 

Mesaverde i n f i l l w e l l i n the southwest q u a r t e r . I n 

a d d i t i o n , those w e l l s are proposed t o be dual completions 

w i t h the Chacra. And so the Well 8A i s going t o be i n the 

southwest q u a r t e r and the Well Number 8 would be i n the 

northwest q u a r t e r f o r the Chacra spacing u n i t . They're 

each on 160 acres. 

I n Case 12,277, B u r l i n g t o n i s seeking a 

compulsory p o o l i n g order f o r the east h a l f of Section 16, 

and w e ' l l show you where these are i n a minute, but t h i s i s 

f o r a Mesaverde alone. This i s a s i n g l e completion. And 

so the Brookhaven Com B Well 3B i s the stand-alone 

Mesaverde, and the Com 8 w e l l s are the dual completions 

t h a t are proposed. 

We are back before you attempting t o o b t a i n a 

compulsory p o o l i n g order over a group of owners t h a t I have 

c h a r a c t e r i z e d as the GLA-46 Group. There i s an o l d 

c o n t r a c t farmout operating agreement t h a t dates from 1951, 

and there's a dispute between B u r l i n g t o n and the GLA-46 

Group. A p o r t i o n of t h a t i n t e r e s t i s now held by Energen 

and others, c o l l e c t i v e l y represented by Mr. H a l l . 

B u r l i n g t o n takes the p o s i t i o n t h a t the o l d 

November, 1951, agreement no longer has w e l l o b l i g a t i o n s 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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attached t o i t , and t h e r e f o r e any new w e l l s have t o be 

agreed upon i n terms of cost, a l l o c a t i o n and recovery of 

money spent. 

The GLA-46 Group takes the p o s i t i o n t h a t t h a t 

c o n t r a c t or agreement i s s t i l l i n e f f e c t . And so what you 

have i s B u r l i n g t o n saying the c o n t r a c t i s not i n e f f e c t , 

Energen and the GLA-46 Group saying i t i s . And when these 

new w e l l s were proposed, B u r l i n g t o n proposed them under a 

new o p e r a t i n g agreement, using c u r r e n t costs. 

Energen has disputed t h a t , and they contend they 

get the o p p o r t u n i t y t o e l e c t t o p a r t i c i p a t e under the o l d 

46 agreements from 1951, which are very f a v o r a b l e t o 

Energen i n t h a t Energen's i n t e r e s t i s a c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t . 

Let me see i f I can describe t h i s i n a simple way. 

B u r l i n g t o n and Energen are each successors t o 

e a r l i e r companies t h a t o r i g i n a l l y executed t h i s s t u f f . 

There was a San Juan Producing Company, l a t e r became El 

Paso and now B u r l i n g t o n , t h a t i s the operator. Under t h i s 

agreement, B u r l i n g t o n now makes a l l d e c i s i o n on proposing 

w e l l s and d r i l l i n g them and operating them, and the r e i s no 

e l e c t i o n made by the working i n t e r e s t owners under t h a t o l d 

c o n t r a c t . 

Energen succeeded t o the i n t e r e s t s of Brookhaven 

O i l Company, and i t went through a succession of owners. 

But when you look a t some of t h i s , Brookhaven i s the 

STEVEN T. 
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o r i g i n a l p a r t y . And what they d i d i s , they s p l i t t h e i r 

acreage p o s i t i o n where El Paso, now B u r l i n g t o n , has 50 

percent, Brookhaven, now the GLA-46 Group, has 50 percent. 

And under the terms of the w e l l - c o s t issue i t was 

arranged t h i s way. O r i g i n a l l y there was a cap on the 

cos t s , $45,000 f o r a Mesaverde w e l l . That represented 

c u r r e n t p r i c e s back i n 1951. B u r l i n g t o n would pay f o r the 

t o t a l costs of t h a t w e l l , i n c l u d i n g the casing. 

Then i n order t o recover t h e i r costs, they were 

allowed t o do t h a t out of a p o r t i o n of Brookhaven's 

i n t e r e s t . Brookhaven has 50 percent, 50 percent was s p l i t 

i n h a l f . So 25 percent of production revenues went 

s t r a i g h t t o Brookhaven cost f r e e . The other 2 5 percent was 

the burden shared i n t h a t production, t h a t 2 5-percent 

p r o d u c t i o n , then, was used by which B u r l i n g t o n recouped 50 

percent of the costs, which would have been Brookhaven's 

share, s u b j e c t t o the cost c e i l i n g of $45,000. 

So Energen now i n t h a t p o s i t i o n wants t o argue 

t h a t they keep 25 percent of the production u n t i l payout, 

and t h e i r i n t e r e s t increases t o 50 percent, and they want 

t o contend t h a t despite new w e l l costs now c o s t i n g $427,000 

f o r the dual w e l l s and $386,000 f o r the s i n g l e , t h a t the 

p r i c e cap stays. 

And there's a c o n t r a c t dispute. I t needs t o be 

l i t i g a t e d . Mr. C a r r o l l i s aware of t h a t . We brought t h i s 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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issue back t o the Commission, or the D i v i s i o n , the f i r s t 

time back i n 1997, when B u r l i n g t o n was doing the Marcotte 

and the Scott w e l l s , which were the two deep gas w e l l s i n 

the San Juan Basin on 640 gas spacing. And Mr. H a l l and I 

had t h i s argument before Mr. Catanach and Mr. C a r r o l l . And 

i n Order Number R-10,877 and Order R-10,878, the D i v i s i o n 

found concerning the c o n t r a c t dispute. 

I t s a i d i t ' s the D i v i s i o n ' s p o s i t i o n t h a t the 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the agreement should be d e f e r r e d t o the 

c o u r t s and t h a t B u r l i n g t o n ' s compulsory p o o l i n g case 

against T o t a l — I t was T o t a l Minatome a t t h a t time; the 

c u r r e n t i n t e r e s t holder i s now Energen. I n order t o 

c o n s o l i d a t e a l l the i n t e r e s t s w i t h i n the proposed spacing 

u n i t , the i n t e r e s t s of T o t a l should be pooled by t h i s 

order. 

The D i v i s i o n analyzed t h a t r e s u l t by saying t h a t 

i f B u r l i n g t o n ' s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the c o n t r a c t — which 

was, i t no longer applied — i s determined by the c o u r t s t o 

be i n c o r r e c t , then the GLA-4 6 Group can and may and has 

made a v o l u n t a r y e l e c t i o n under the c o n t r a c t , and 

B u r l i n g t o n i s stuck w i t h t h a t r e s u l t , and they're simply 

dropped out of the compulsory p o o l i n g order, which i s how 

those orders are now phrased. I t only f o r c e pools 

uncommitted i n t e r e s t owners, and i f Energen i s successful 

i n c o u r t l i t i g a t i n g the v a l i d i t y of the c o n t r a c t , then t h a t 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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w i l l p r e v a i l over any forc e p o o l i n g . 

B u r l i n g t o n argued s u c c e s s f u l l y before the 

D i v i s i o n t h a t i f they are c o r r e c t and th e r e i s no c o n t r a c t , 

then they need t o have the o p t i o n of having a f o r c e p o o l i n g 

order i n place. 

And so the r i s k i s on B u r l i n g t o n , not on Energen 

and not on the D i v i s i o n . I f B u r l i n g t o n d r i l l s these w e l l s 

and guesses wrong, they're going t o spend $427,000, and 

they're going t o do so w i t h a cost l i m i t a t i o n t h a t Energen 

gets t o enjoy, which c u r r e n t l y has a cap — I f you look a t 

some of those c o n t r a c t s , there's an e s c a l a t o r ; i t went from 

$45,000 t o $90,000 back i n 1974, I t h i n k . 

So t h a t ' s the problem. And we're here today t o 

show you t h a t we can't reach an agreement, we've t a l k e d 

about t h i s issue among the companies. Energen takes one 

p o s i t i o n , B u r l i n g t o n another. I t ' s not w i t h i n your 

j u r i s d i c t i o n t o resolve the c o n t r a c t d i s p u t e . 

And so what we're asking t o go forward w i t h i s a 

r a t h e r simple f o r c e p o o l i n g case. I t shows the p a r t i e s 

can't agree, w e ' l l show you the costs, we have an engineer 

t o t a l k about what we t h i n k i s the app r o p r i a t e r i s k t o 

decide upon i n e n t e r i n g the order, then we go home. 

On the other hand, we can s i t here f o r the next 

f o u r or f i v e or s i x hours, and we can t a l k and debate and 

argue over whether any of these c o n t r a c t documents come 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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i n t o evidence. And f r a n k l y , I would l i k e you t o do what 

you d i d back i n September of 1997, and t h a t i s t o simply 

say i t ' s a c o n t r a c t dispute, we're not going t o resol v e i t , 

l e t ' s issue a p o o l i n g order here, and you people go t o the 

courthouse and f i g u r e i t out. 

So t h a t ' s what we need t o decide, how you want t o 

handle the pr e s e n t a t i o n today. 

We're prepared t o go forward w i t h a landman t h a t 

has a paper t r a i l t o show you the proposals. I'm not 

prepared t o engage i n a discussion w i t h experts over what 

these c o n t r a c t s mean or what happened. I don't t h i n k 

t h a t ' s the place t o do i t here. I have an engineering 

witness t h a t w i l l t a l k t o you about the costs of the w e l l s 

and what he t h i n k s the r i s k s are attached t o t h a t , and then 

we'11 go home. 

So t h a t ' s my proposal. 

MR. CARROLL: Before you make your statement, Mr. 

H a l l , I've got a few questions of Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

Are t h e r e any other working i n t e r e s t owners t o be 

pooled, other than the i n t e r e s t s covered by the JOA 

agreement? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. C a r r o l l , when the A p p l i c a t i o n 

was f i l e d , t h e r e i s Cross Timbers, and the r e i s a lady 

whose name escapes me. I can f i n d i t here p r e t t y quick. 

Cheryl Potenziani, I t h i n k i s her name. The f i r s t two 
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people on t h a t n o t i c e l i s t , Cross Timbers, and the lady i n 

Albuquerque. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: These two aren't s u b j e c t t o the 

GLA? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, they're not. What they d i d 

i s , they would be subject t o compulsory p o o l i n g . At the 

time we f i l e d the A p p l i c a t i o n we believed and are hopeful 

t h a t here very s h o r t l y we w i l l have a l l the signed 

documents by which t h e i r i n t e r e s t s would be v o l u n t a r i l y 

committed t o a new operating agreement. 

They have both i n d i c a t e d f a v o r a b l e r e a c t i o n s by 

s i g n i n g an AFE. But my understanding yesterday i s , we 

don't have signed operating agreements back i n place and 

a l l the d e t a i l s n a i l e d down. 

I f t h a t occurs, then the p a r t i e s t o be subject t o 

the f o r c e p o o l i n g w i l l be the GLA-46 Group t h a t i s 

a s s e r t i n g t h a t the c o n t r a c t i s s t i l l v a l i d , so t h a t ' s where 

we are. 

MR. CARROLL: Another question i s , yeah, I t h i n k 

the c o u r t s could — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm s o r r y , I misspoke. 

MR. CARROLL: What? 

MR. KELLAHIN: These two people are p a r t of the 

GLA-46 group, except they have — they're not represented 

by Mr. H a l l , and so they would have the o p p o r t u n i t y t o 
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argue under the o l d c o n t r a c t . They have chosen not t o do 

t h a t , so t h a t ' s the category they're i n . 

MR. CARROLL: Well, the D i v i s i o n sees — Really, 

i t looks l i k e the only problem i s the r i s k p e nalty. I 

mean, i f B u r l i n g t o n i s r i g h t and t h i s group of people 

forgoes paying t h e i r costs up f r o n t , then they're going t o 

be s u b j e c t t o a r i s k penalty t h a t they wouldn't otherwise 

have been. So your s o l u t i o n would be, they should both 

f i g h t i t i n court and pay t h e i r costs up f r o n t i n order t o 

avoid a r i s k penalty? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . What I'm suggesting i s , 

they could make a dual e l e c t i o n , i f you w i l l . They could 

e l e c t t o p a r t i c i p a t e under the c o n t r a c t and then have a 

q u a l i f i e r saying, i n the event we lose t h a t p o s i t i o n , which 

we don't t h i n k we w i l l , we want t o e l e c t t o p a r t i c i p a t e 

under a f o r c e p o o l i n g order. 

So I would propose they would have language i n 

the order t o give them the e l e c t i o n so they have the 

comfort of avoiding the penalty by e l e c t i n g now. 

MR. CARROLL: Would B u r l i n g t o n be w i l l i n g t o 

f r o n t t he costs, then, c a r r y them u n t i l i t i s determined by 

the c o u r t s whether — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Well, our expectation i s , we would 

recover — I f the e l e c t t o p a r t i c i p a t e , then they would pay 

t h e i r share of those costs on a monthly basis, I t h i n k . I n 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

18 

the event they are r i g h t , then we're going t o owe them some 

money back. So we would not c a r r y them w i t h o u t payment. 

Do you see what I'm saying? 

MR. CARROLL: Uh-huh. 

MR. KELLAHIN: They would be sub j e c t t o a refund, 

but they would avoid the penalty. 

Now, they could choose not t o p a r t i c i p a t e a t a l l 

and w r i t e a l l the cards on the c o n t r a c t argument, and so we 

would recover out of production, then, the costs advanced 

f o r c a r r y i n g them, plus the penalty. And i f we lose t h a t , 

then we have t o w r i t e them a check. 

MR. CARROLL: A l l r i g h t . And what's your 

argument i n c o u r t as t o why t h i s GLA c o n t r a c t doesn't 

apply? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm sorry? 

MR. CARROLL: What's your argument i n c o u r t , why 

the GLA c o n t r a c t does not apply? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Simply s t a t e d , t h e r e i s a 

p r o v i s i o n under A r t i c l e 4 of the agreement which says t h a t 

a f t e r San Juan has d r i l l e d and completed f o u r Mesaverde 

w e l l s w i t h i n a 12-month p e r i o d u n t i l a t o t a l of 18 

Mesaverde w e l l s are d r i l l e d , once t h a t happens, we contend 

t h a t discharges the d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n . And so a f t e r 

t h a t , then, costs f o r w e l l s are w e l l - s p e c i f i c , and we would 

need an agreement, then, on what those costs are. 
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The p r a c t i c e has been between these e n t i t i e s t h a t 

since about 1974 on a t l e a s t 13 d i f f e r e n t occasions, the 

agreement has been reached v o l u n t a r i l y by the companies, 

where they acknowledge t h a t the o l d caps on p r i c e were not 

app r o p r i a t e t o c u r r e n t w e l l costs. And so f o r the next 

year's d r i l l i n g program, they agree t h a t these new w e l l s 

would not be subject t o the cost l i m i t a t i o n s , and i t 

proceeds from t h e r e . 

We're now a t the p o i n t where Energen i s t a k i n g 

the p o s i t i o n t h a t they don't want t o t a l k about new costs, 

won't agree t o them, and they want t o hold us t o the o l d 

p r i c e c e i l i n g s plus the recoupment means of g e t t i n g your 

money back through production. 

And so i t ' s a c o n t r a c t dispute. 

MR. CARROLL: And what's the c u r r e n t cost cap? 

$90,000? 

MR. KELLAHIN: $90,000 f o r a Mesaverde w e l l . 

MR. CARROLL: A l l r i g h t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: And the end r e s u l t i s , we simply 

can't d r i l l them, can't d r i l l them w i t h t h a t cost 

l i m i t a t i o n . And so the w e l l s are e i t h e r not going t o be 

d r i l l e d , or we're going t o take the r i s k t h a t we're r i g h t 

on t h i s c o n t r a c t , and we're going t o d r i l l them f o r c u r r e n t 

costs w i t h the hope and expectation t h a t they're going t o 

pay t h e i r share of cu r r e n t costs, and we stand the r i s k of 
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l o s i n g t h a t . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. H a l l , would you l i k e t o 

make an opening statement? 

MR. HALL: Yes, Mr. Examiner, thank you. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n i s c o r r e c t t o a degree. This i s , i n 

a c e r t a i n sense, an or d i n a r y p o o l i n g case. But he i s also 

c o r r e c t t h a t t h e r e i s a c o n t r a c t issue embedded i n t h i s 

case, and i t ' s a c o n t r a c t issue which you, the Examiner, 

must consider before you exercise your considerable p o l i c e 

powers under the D i v i s i o n s t a t u t e s t o pool the pr o p e r t y 

i n t e r e s t s . 

Now, there's been a l l u s i o n s t o the e a r l i e r case 

between Energen — or, s o r r y , B u r l i n g t o n and T o t a l Minatome 

i n 1997. That case was Case Number 11,809, I b e l i e v e , and 

the same issue i n v o l v i n g GLA-46 appeared i n t h a t case. 

Mr. K e l l a h i n neglected t o mention t o you, 

however, t h a t although there was an order issued by the 

D i v i s i o n p o o l i n g GLA-46 i n t e r e s t s , t h a t order was appealed 

t o the Commission. And whi l e i t was pending on appeal, the 

w e l l t h a t was the i n i t i a l subject of t h a t order came i n as 

a dry hole, u n f o r t u n a t e l y f o r a l l . 

So r a t h e r than waste energy and time and 

resources on pursuing t h a t appeal f u r t h e r , i t was dropped. 

So t h a t case i s not a l e g i t i m a t e precedent f o r you t o 

consider i n t h i s case. 
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I t i s t r u e t h a t there's a c o n t r a c t issue a t stake 

here, and you must consider i t . I t ' s a very p r e c o n d i t i o n 

t o the exercise of po o l i n g powers under the p o o l i n g 

s t a t u t e , 70-2-17 C. That's the s t a t u t e invoked by 

B u r l i n g t o n . 

The D i v i s i o n must make a f i n d i n g , an express 

f i n d i n g , based on evidence t h a t the lands t h a t are the 

subj e c t of the proceeding have not been v o l u n t a r i l y 

committed t o the w e l l . So I t h i n k t h a t casts the issue 

f a i r l y c o n c i s e l y f o r you. 

Now, now t h a t issue i s framed, how do you decide 

t h i s case? What evidence should you look at? Should you 

go i n and simply consider t h a t there i s disagreement 

between the p a r t i e s whether the c o n t r a c t a p p l i e s or not? I 

submit t o you t h a t you cannot do t h a t . I f you go i n t o t h i s 

case and w r i t e an order presuming t h a t the c o n t r a c t does 

not apply simply because there i s disagreement and i t ' s a 

matter t h a t must be deferred t o the c o u r t s , t h a t , I would 

submit t o you, i s an ab d i c a t i o n of your duty as a Hearing 

Examiner, t o consider t h a t v o l u n t a r y commitment order. 

For you t o presume t h a t simply because th e r e i s 

disagreement and i t i s a c o n t r a c t issue t o be de f e r r e d t o 

the c o u r t s i s , i n e f f e c t , an improper a d j u d i c a t i o n by a 

Hearing Examiner of a c o n t r a c t term. You would, i n e f f e c t , 

be r e - w r i t i n g substantive c o n t r a c t r i g h t s n e g o t i a t e d a t 
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arm's l e n g t h between p a r t i e s n e a r l y 50 years ago and which 

have been fo l l o w e d c o n s i s t e n t l y i n the d r i l l i n g of scores 

of w e l l s ever since. 

So what do you do? How do you decide t h i s case? 

Let me suggest t o you t h a t you do t h i s when you l i s t e n t o 

the evidence i n t h i s case. B u r l i n g t o n has asserted t o you 

t h a t a f t e r the 18th w e l l , the 18th Mesaverde w e l l , was 

d r i l l e d , GLA-46 was kaput, no longer a p p l i e d . That's what 

Mr. K e l l a h i n says. 

That 18th w e l l , I t h i n k the evidence w i l l show, 

was d r i l l e d i n about 1956, so what you should do when you 

consider the evidence i s look a t the p r a c t i c e of the 

p a r t i e s under GLA-46 from year one, 1951, t o year 1956, and 

on i n t o the 1990s. How d i d they t r e a t GLA-4 6? Did they 

apply i t t o the d r i l l i n g of subsequent wells? Did they 

apply i t t o more w e l l s than j u s t the 18th w e l l , which they 

say extinguished any o b l i g a t i o n s under GLA-46? 

Look a t the i n t e r p r e t a t i o n s of the operator over 

time under GLA-4 6. We're going t o present you w i t h 

voluminous documentation showing how a t the s t a r t San Juan 

and E l Paso and Meridian and now B u r l i n g t o n a l l regarded 

GLA-46 as g i v i n g i t exclusive c o n t r o l of the acreage t h a t 

i t a f f e c t e d . We'll show you documents t h a t say t h a t 

nonoperators have no r i g h t t o propose a w e l l a t a l l . We 

would be p r o h i b i t e d from coming before the D i v i s i o n , 
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according t o t h e i r own i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , proposing a w e l l or 

i n i t i a t i n g a compulsory p o o l i n g proceeding. We simply 

could not do i t . Their own i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of c o n t r a c t . 

You look a t a l l of those instances, a l l of those 

documents, the conduct of the p a r t i e s over the years, and 

t h a t gives you s i g n i f i c a n t guidance upon which you can base 

a d e c i s i o n t h a t GLA-46 has been fo l l o w e d and adhered t o by 

the p a r t i e s over time. And once you're s a t i s f i e d t h a t 

t h a t ' s the case, I t h i n k t h a t w i l l prevent you from 

e n t e r i n g a f i n d i n g t h a t these lands are not v o l u n t a r i l y 

committed t o those w e l l s . 

And on the basis of t h a t evidence i n the record, 

I t h i n k y o u ' l l f i n d y o u ' l l have t o enter di s m i s s i n g the 

case, or denying the r e l i e f t h a t B u r l i n g t o n seeks. 

Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. H a l l , so i t ' s your c l i e n t ' s 

p o s i t i o n t h a t the most you're a t r i s k f o r i s $45,000, and 

t h a t ' s recovered out of 50 percent of your share of 

production? 

MR. HALL: That's been the c o n s t r u c t i o n f o r a 

long time, yes. 

MR. CARROLL: And when was the l a s t time a w e l l 

was d r i l l e d t h a t your c l i e n t s only paid t h a t amount? 

MR. HALL: I t h i n k as the evidence w i l l show, 
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s u b j e c t t o c o r r e c t i o n , the most recent w e l l would have been 

about 1990 or 1992, when Meridian abided by the o r i g i n a l 

GLA-4 6 terms. 

MR. CARROLL: And have your c l i e n t s considered 

the argument j u s t advanced by Mr. K e l l a h i n t h a t the 

economics of t h a t o l d agreement would prevent these w e l l s 

from being d r i l l e d ? 

MR. HALL: Well, we would have t o accept t h a t 

argument w i t h o u t any evidence. I don't know, we may have 

t o e l i c i t some cross-examination on t h a t very p o i n t . I'm 

s k e p t i c a l , f r a n k l y . The i n t e r e s t covered by GLA-4 6 i s not 

2 5 percent i n the e n t i r e p r o r a t i o n u n i t . I t ' s j u s t i n the 

acreage w i t h i n the p r o r a t i o n u n i t subject t o GLA-4 6. The 

e n t i r e p r o r a t i o n u n i t i s not subject t o GLA-46, so i t ' s , 

f r a n k l y , a smaller percentage. 

Bear i n mind, Mr. C a r r o l l , t h a t we heard these 

same arguments before when the Marcotte w e l l was d r i l l e d , 

but t h a t d i d not slow down the d r i l l i n g of t h a t — what was 

probably a $5 or $6 m i l l i o n w e l l . 

MR. CARROLL: I t h i n k t h i s has come up before. I 

don't know i f i t was i n t h a t Marcotte case or not, but p a r t 

of t h a t s t a t u t e regarding p o o l i n g , 70-2-17, I'm lo o k i n g a t 

subparagraph — or paragraph E. 

MR. HALL: Yes, t h a t — 

MR. CARROLL: I ' d l i k e both counsel t o consider 
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t h i s , maybe, i n t h e i r proposed orders or what happens. I t 

says whenever i t appears t h a t the owners i n any pool have 

agreed upon a plan f o r the development or oper a t i o n of such 

pool — I guess we're lo o k i n g a t the Mesaverde Pool -- the 

D i v i s i o n , upon hearing a f t e r n o t i c e , may subsequently 

modify any such plan t o the extent necessary t o prevent 

waste. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That was u t i l i z e d , Mr. C a r r o l l , i n 

the Burlington-Doyle Hartman case, i f I'm not mistaken, 

where Mr. Hartman was clai m i n g there was an o l d ope r a t i n g 

agreement t h a t l i m i t e d you from d r i l l i n g an i n f i l l w e l l i n 

the Mesaverde, and B u r l i n g t o n force-pooled him f o r the 

i n f i l l w e l l , and you overrode the o l d agreement because i t 

was not c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the plan of development approved 

f o r t he pool by the D i v i s i o n . So t h a t ' s the case you're 

t h i n k i n g o f . 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. H a l l , i t looks l i k e — maybe 

you can convince me otherwise — t h a t even i f t h i s 

agreement i s i n e f f e c t , i t looks l i k e the L e g i s l a t u r e gave 

the D i v i s i o n the power t o a l t e r a c o n t r a c t t o prevent 

waste. I mean, can your p a r t i e s agree t h a t you're going t o 

d r i l l 12 w e l l s every 40 acres? We wouldn't a l l o w t h a t , and 

t h a t would be r e w r i t i n g your c o n t r a c t . 

MR. HALL: We're not asking f o r the b l e s s i n g of 

any c o n t r a c t t h a t would v i o l a t e the D i v i s i o n ' s r u l e s or 
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r e g u l a t i o n s . 

And I ' d also p o i n t out t h a t I t h i n k any r e l i e f 

under subsection B i s beyond the scope of t h i s hearing as 

pleaded. I t simply has not been invoked by B u r l i n g t o n 

before now. As the pleadings are cast now, we're l i m i t e d 

t o subsection C. They have not asked you f o r t h a t r e l i e f . 

The case Mr. K e l l a h i n was r e f e r r i n g t o , where the 

same issue has come up, i s whether or not t h e r e was a pre­

e x i s t i n g commitment of lands. I t ' s Case Number 11,434. 

Refer you t o Order Number R-10,545. I t was a Meridian 

a p p l i c a t i o n i n San Juan County. And I ' d ask t h a t the 

Examiner take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e of the record and the 

order i n t h a t case. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: What was the order number again 

on t h a t , Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: R-10,545. 

MR. CARROLL: And t h a t was the Hartman — 

MR. HALL: Yes. 

MR. CARROLL: — case? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yeah, t h a t ' s the Hartman. 

MR. HALL: Hartman — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yeah, i t was r e a l l y — I c a l l e d i t 

B u r l i n g t o n , but i t was done under Meridian. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Case 11,434? 

MR. HALL: Yes. 
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EXAMINER ASHLEY: The D i v i s i o n w i l l take 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e of Case 11,434 issued i n Order 

R-10,544. 

MR. HALL: 10,545. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: 10,54 5? 

MR. HALL: Correct. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, thank you. 

MR. HALL: 199 6. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Well, the issue i s , are we going 

t o s i t here and argue over whether subsection E i s w i t h i n 

your bag of t h i n g s t o do? I propose t h a t i t i s . I t h i n k 

i t ' s a waste of time t o walk away and r e f i l e a pleading t o 

ass e r t t h a t you can, i f there i s an agreement, set aside 

t h a t agreement. We t h i n k i t ' s simpler than t h a t . I'm 

happy t o r e l y on i t , because I t h i n k i t ' s the r i g h t t h i n g 

t o do. 

But l o o k i n g a t subsection C, t h e r e i s no 

agreement between Energen and B u r l i n g t o n on these new w e l l 

c osts, and t h a t ' s the d i f f e r e n c e . They say there's a 

c o n t r a c t , we say there's not. There, i n f a c t , i s , by 

admission, no agreement. So we t h i n k we're e n t i t l e d t o a 

f o r c e - p o o l i n g order. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, Mr. Kell a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Sir? 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Are you ready t o go? 
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MR. KELLAHIN: I f y o u ' l l t e l l me what you want me 

t o present. Are we going t o need the c o n t r a c t s t u f f or 

not? 

MR. CARROLL: Well, we're going t o defer r u l i n g 

on the issues r a i s e d , but we w i l l take evidence today. 

MR. HALL: I f I may make a b r i e f comment about 

t h a t before we see — I t h i n k the reason t h a t B u r l i n g t o n 

has not imposed subsection E of 70-2-17 i s t h a t i t ' s 

c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the p o s i t i o n t h a t a c o n t r a c t does not 

e x i s t . So f o r you t o exercise your a u t h o r i t y under 

subsection E nec e s s a r i l y presumes a c o n t r a c t would be i n 

place. So t h a t ' s why they have not pleaded — 

MR. CARROLL: Well, I t h i n k the p a r t i e s agree i n 

the i n t e r e s t of economy, a l l the witnesses are here t o hear 

the testimony today. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yeah. 

MR. CARROLL: Because the issues aren't going t o 

change. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Well, they're not going t o change, 

and I disagree w i t h h i s argument about not pleading 

subsection E. I f t h e r e i s an agreement, I lose t h a t issue, 

and you o v e r r i d e i t as a matter of D i v i s i o n p o l i c y , I s t i l l 

win. So I t h i n k i t ' s i n h e r e n t l y incorporated i n your 

decision-making process, and I t h i n k i t ' s a waste of 

everybody's time t o suggest t h a t I have t o continue and 
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come back i n three weeks t o add an E t o the pleading. 

We're here, we ought t o take the witness's 

testimony and move forward. 

MR. CARROLL: I s there any o b j e c t i o n t o t h a t ? 

MR. HALL: Not t o proceeding. I t h i n k , t o 

respond t o Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s comments, there's a due-process 

problem embedded i n the a s s e r t i o n t h a t you may have the 

a u t h o r i t y t o invoke subsection E i n the context of t h i s 

case. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Well, I ' l l f o r m a l l y move a t t h i s 

t ime, Mr. Examiner, t h a t you allow my pleadings t o be 

amended a t t h i s time t o include arguments considered under 

the p r o v i s i o n s of 70-2-17 E. 

MR. CARROLL: Objection? 

MR. HALL: I o b j e c t . We weren't f u l l y prepared 

t o address t h a t , but we w i l l do our best. 

MR. CARROLL: Well, w e ' l l defer r u l i n g on t h a t . 

Proceed w i t h the witnesses. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , we c a l l Shannon 

Nichols . 

MR. HALL: I move we invoke the no-coat r u l e . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Sounds good. Everybody please 

remove t h e i r coat. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I have d i s t r i b u t e d 

two e x h i b i t books. One i s marked f o r the 12,276 case, 
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which i s the Brookhaven Com 8 and 8A w e l l s , and the e x h i b i t 

b o o k l e t f o r Case 12,277 i s the 3B. I propose t o s t a r t w i t h 

the 12,276 book, and they're i d e n t i c a l i n a l l areas except 

the correspondence and proposals as t o each w e l l are unique 

i n each book. So Burlington's w e l l proposal f o r the 8 w e l l 

w i l l be i n t h i s booklet we're t a l k i n g about. The w e l l 

proposal f o r the B3 i s going t o be i n the 12,277 book. 

Other than those minor d i f f e r e n c e s , the 

i n f o r m a t i o n i s the same. So w e ' l l see i f we can — 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: — not confuse you. 

SHANNON NICHOLS, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECTLY EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Nichols, f o r the record, please s t a t e your 

name and occupation. 

A. My name i s Shannon Nichols. I am employed as a 

petroleum landman w i t h B u r l i n g t o n Resources O i l and Gas 

Company i n Farmington. 

Q. Were you the landman responsible f o r proposing 

the s u b j e c t w e l l s , which are the Brookhaven Com Well 8 and 

8A, t o the various i n t e r e s t owners i n the spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I was responsible f o r proposing those 
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w e l l s . 

Q. Okay. And when we get t o the Brookhaven Com B 

w e l l , the 3B w e l l — 

A. That w e l l was a c t u a l l y proposed by a f e l l o w 

landman employed by B u r l i n g t o n by the name of James 

S t r i c k l e r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Have you reviewed Mr. S t r i c k l e r ' s 

correspondence and communications — 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. — w i t h the company? And you have examined the 

i n t e r e s t owner d i s t r i b u t i o n and can speak knowledgeably 

about the p a r t i e s t h a t have i n t e r e s t i n a l l these spacing 

u n i t s ? 

A. Yes, I can. 

Q. I n a d d i t i o n , are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the spacing 

requirements f o r these w e l l s and the proposed spacing u n i t s 

and where they are located? 

A. Yes, I am. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Nichols as an expert 

petroleum landman. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Nichols i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Let me have you t u r n t o 

E x h i b i t 1 of Case 12,276 and i d e n t i f y the i n f o r m a t i o n 

behind E x h i b i t 1. 

A. The in f o r m a t i o n behind E x h i b i t 1 i s simply the 
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A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t Mr. K e l l a h i n had submitted, along w i t h the 

c e r t i f i c a t i o n n o t i c e s , and there i s included i n t h a t 

c e r t i f i c a t i o n a l i s t of a l l the owners i n the Brookhaven 8 

and 8A w e l l s . 

I n a d d i t i o n t o t h a t , there are c e r t i f i e d m a i l i n g 

r e c e i p t s f o r a l l p a r t i e s a t the very back of E x h i b i t 1. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's t u r n through the pages and f i n d 

E x h i b i t A, which i s a t a b u l a t i o n of i n t e r e s t owners. Do 

you f i n d t h a t ? 

A. I have found t h a t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . When we exclude B u r l i n g t o n ' s 

i n t e r e s t from the spacing u n i t , do these percentages, t o 

the best of your knowledge, and the i n d i v i d u a l s l i s t e d , t o 

the best of your knowledge, are they accurate and t r u e as 

t o t h e i r i n t e r e s t s i n the Mesaverde and i n the Chacra, 

w i t h i n the proposed spacing u n i t f o r the Brookhaven Com 

Well Number 8? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. And i s t h a t also t r u e f o r the 8A? 

A. That i s also c o r r e c t . The only d i f f e r e n c e I 

might see r i g h t there i s on the 8A, I b e l i e v e . The Chacra 

i n t e r e s t may vary from what's shown as E x h i b i t A t h e r e . 

We've got t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n a t a f u r t h e r p o i n t i n the book. 

Q. Okay. So f o r n o t i f i c a t i o n purposes, have I sent 

n o t i c e t o a l l the proper p a r t i e s ? 
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A. Yes, s i r , you have. 

Q. Okay. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 2 and l o c a t e the 

Examiner as t o where these w e l l s are. 

A. The f i r s t map t h a t y o u ' l l f i n d i n E x h i b i t 2 i s 

j u s t a map of b a s i c a l l y the San Juan Basin. You can see 

t h a t p r e t t y much i n the center of the map t h e r e i s a w e l l 

spot w i t h an arrow, and the Brookhaven Com 8 and 8A w e l l s 

are l o c a t e d i n t h a t Township 2 7 North, Range 8 West, 

Section 36. 

Q. I t looks t o be located j u s t n o r t h of the C i t y of 

Aztec i n the next township? 

A. That, Mr. K e l l a h i n , I b e l i e v e i s the Brookhaven 

Com 3B w e l l t h a t you're lo o k i n g a t . 

Q. I'm s o r r y , I've got these reversed. The 8 and 8B 

are down south, and they're on the county l i n e between San 

Juan County and Rio Arriba? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's l o c a t e the Brookhaven Com 3B. 

A. The 3B, i f you go up t o the l e f t , upper l e f t 

p o r t i o n of the map and you spot the C i t y of Aztec, you w i l l 

f i n d the w e l l spot f o r the Brookhaven Com 3B arrowed i n , 

b a s i c a l l y j u s t above the C i t y of Aztec l o c a t i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . Let's t u r n now t o the second 

d i s p l a y and look more s p e c i f i c a l l y a t the area included 

w i t h i n Section 36 and the a d j o i n i n g s e c t i o n s . 
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A. The second map there i s j u s t simply a nine-

s e c t i o n o f f s e t map. We're centered on, again, 27 North, 8 

West, Section 36. The Mesaverde w e l l s , both the 8 and the 

8A, are going t o be west-half u n i t s . The 8 Chacra p o r t i o n 

w i l l be spaced as the northwest q u a r t e r , and the 8A Chacra 

p o r t i o n w i l l be spaced as the southwest q u a r t e r . 

Q. And the c o l o r code i n d i c a t e s the other types of 

w e l l i n the area? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t , c o l o r code and symbol. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s t u r n more s p e c i f i c a l l y t o the 

chronology of events. I f y o u ' l l t u r n w i t h me behind 

E x h i b i t Tab Number 3, d i d you prepare t h i s summary? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. And have you summarized your various contacts 

w i t h the i n t e r e s t owners, the working i n t e r e s t owners i n 

the spacing u n i t s proposed f o r these wells? 

A. A l l w r i t t e n correspondence i s included i n t h i s 

chronology. 

Q. And you have commenced w i t h the date a t which 

B u r l i n g t o n proposes t o these i n t e r e s t owners t h a t they sign 

an o p e r a t i n g agreement, and you have included an AFE which 

represents w e l l costs c u r r e n t as of t h a t date? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So t h a t we see how you've organized 

the e x h i b i t book, behind the t a b u l a t i o n , then, i s the 
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s u p p o r t i n g documentation f o r each of these e n t r i e s ; i s t h a t 

not true? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's s t a r t w i t h the f i r s t 

correspondence, the J u l y 3 0th, 1998. What are you doing 

here? 

A. The J u l y 30th, 1998, l e t t e r was simply our 

e l e c t i o n b a l l o t l e t t e r and — along w i t h the j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement and AFE s u b m i t t a l proposing the 

Brookhaven Com 8 as a Mesaverde-Chacra dual completion. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , what's the next entry? 

A. The next e n t r y i s August 4t h , 1998. Cheryl 

Potenziani e l e c t s t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the proposed w e l l and 

signs the j o i n t operating agreement, dated J u l y 29th, 1998. 

Q. Okay. I s her i n t e r e s t f u l l y committed, then, i n 

the spacing u n i t , based upon t h i s , or i s t h e r e something 

el s e t h a t needs t o happen? 

A. At t h a t p o i n t i n time, her i n t e r e s t i s f u l l y 

committed. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , t h i s i s under the J u l y , 1998, 

proposal, then? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. So she commits her i n t e r e s t under t h a t 

proposal? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. On August 14th, what do you do? 

A. On August 14th of 1998, NationsBank — The date 

of the l e t t e r i s August 14th. NationsBank, as agent f o r 

e i g h t working i n t e r e s t owners, e l e c t s t o be c a r r i e d i n the 

proposed w e l l under the terms of GLA-4 6 agreement dated 

11-27-51. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , t h i s i s the agreement I r e f e r r e d t o i n 

my opening remarks? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Did I c o r r e c t l y summarize the c o s t - c a r r y i n g 

p r o v i s i o n s of t h a t 1951 agreement? 

A. Those are c o r r e c t l y c h a r a c t e r i z e d . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And so t h i s i s p a r t of the GLA-46 

group t h a t i s attempting t o e l e c t under the o l d agreement? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. What happens then? 

A. August 24th, 1998, T o t a l Minatome, as predecessor 

t o Energen, e l e c t s t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the proposed w e l l 

under the terms of GLA-4 6 agreement dated 11-27-51. 

Q. A l r i g h t , they're doing the same t h i n g 

NationsBank did? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What happens on August 2 6th? 

A. August 26th, 1998, Cross Timbers O i l Company 

e l e c t s t o p a r t i c i p a t e u n c o n d i t i o n a l l y i n the proposed w e l l 
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and a l s o r e t u r n s executed signature pages t o the j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement dated J u l y 29, 1998. 

Q. At t h i s p o i n t , then, you do not have unanimous 

working i n t e r e s t owner commitment t o the proposal made on 

J u l y 30th, 1998? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. What then do you do? 

A. By l e t t e r dated September 18th, 1998, we 

submitted a l e t t e r t o a l l working i n t e r e s t owners, w i t h the 

exception of Cross Timbers and Cheryl P o t e n z i a n i , t h a t 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n t h a t GLA-4 6 does not apply t o t h i s 

w e l l . 

I n our l e t t e r of same date, we proposed two 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n options under which we would be w i l l i n g t o 

d r i l l the proposed w e l l , i f a l l p a r t i e s e l e c t under an 

o p t i o n provided. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s t u r n t o the September 18th 

l e t t e r and see what those options were, Mr. Nichols. 

A. Okay. 

Q. We have two years of correspondence i n here. I 

need t o look f o r the September 18th, 1998, l e t t e r , r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, and i t should be i n c h r o n o l o g i c a l order. 

Q. Okay, I've found i t . What are you proposing? 

A. Option 1 under t h i s second-request type of 

l e t t e r , or a d d i t i o n a l options, i s , enter i n t o the modern 
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form JOA and e i t h e r p a r t i c i p a t e or nonconsent under the 

terms of the JOA. 

Option 2 was t h a t B u r l i n g t o n w i l l v o l u n t a r i l y 

c a r r y your d r i l l i n g , completing and equipping costs i n the 

referenced w e l l . Upon doing so, we w i l l be allowed t o 

recoup 100 percent of i t s costs associated w i t h the c a r r i e d 

i n t e r e s t , w i t h recoupment o c c u r r i n g from 100 percent of the 

revenue stream associated w i t h the c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t . Upon 

payout, each p a r t y w i l l r e v e r t t o i t s f u l l p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

i n t e r e s t . Further, we propose under t h a t agreement a 

d r i l l i n g r a t e , overhead r a t e , of $4063.77 per month and a 

producing w e l l r a t e of $474.13 per month, w i t h an 

expenditure l i m i t w i t h o u t partner approval f o r $25,000. 

Q. This i s f o r the Brookhaven Com 8 we l l ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I s th e r e a s i m i l a r chronology or a h i s t o r y of 

proposals f o r the i n f i l l w e l l , the 8A? 

A. No, there i s not s u b s t a n t i a l correspondence of 

t h i s nature of the Brookhaven Com 8. We were hoping t o 

d r i l l t h i s i n i t i a l w e l l i n the s e c t i o n . At t h i s p o i n t i n 

time, we were s t i l l hoping t o get v o l u n t a r y p a r t i c i p a t i o n . 

We were going t o , of course, evaluate t h a t i n i t i a l w e l l and 

then look a t the 8A, the i n f i l l w e l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , so a t t h i s p o i n t we're d e a l i n g w i t h 

j u s t the parent or the o r i g i n a l w e l l i n the — 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

39 

A. That i s c o r r e c t , we're d e a l i n g s o l e l y w i t h one 

w e l l a t t h i s p o i n t i n time. 

Q. You're o f f e r i n g t o c a r r y these i n t e r e s t owners 

and t o recover out of 100 percent of the pr o d u c t i o n those 

costs a t t r i b u t e d t o t h e i r i n t e r e s t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. There i s no penalty or fee or an i n t e r e s t 

associated w i t h t h a t recoupment? 

A. There i s no penalty involved i n t h a t . I t ' s 

simply 100 percent payout. 

Q. Okay. What happens then, a f t e r t h a t ? 

A. Going back t o the chronology of events, by l e t t e r 

dated November 16th, 1998, Energen Resources as successor 

i n t i t l e t o T o t a l Minatome e l e c t s t o p a r t i c i p a t e under 

Option 2 as provided i n Bu r l i n g t o n ' s September 18th, 1998, 

l e t t e r . Energen's l e t t e r f u r t h e r c o n d i t i o n s t h e i r e l e c t i o n 

t o r e f l e c t t h a t the terms of GLA-46 are s t i l l i n e f f e c t . 

Q. What happens on January 5th of 1999? 

A. January 5th, 1999, NationsBank as agent f o r e i g h t 

working i n t e r e s t owners e l e c t s t o p a r t i c i p a t e under Option 

2 as provided i n Bur l i n g t o n ' s September 18th, 1998, l e t t e r . 

Q. Okay, a t t h i s p o i n t , then, d i d you have f u l l 

agreement on the working i n t e r e s t owners as t o a course of 

performance under these new proposals? 

A. At t h i s p o i n t i n time we s t i l l had — We d i d not 
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have unanimous p a r t i c i p a t i o n under e i t h e r o p t i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , so what happens? We get t o May 18th 

of 1999, r i g h t ? 

A. May 18th of 1999, B u r l i n g t o n mails out a new 

j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement dated February 1, 1999, t o a l l 

GLA-46 working i n t e r e s t owners and covering a l l lands 

included i n GLA-4 6. 

Q. Okay. By August 25th, what's happening? 

A. By August 25th, we s t i l l had not received 

unanimous p a r t i c i p a t i o n t o e i t h e r p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l 

under c u r r e n t JOA or Option 2 as provided i n our September 

18th l e t t e r , so we issued a l e t t e r again dated August 25, 

1999, t h a t we were withdrawing our o f f e r t o d r i l l and 

complete the Brookhaven Com 8 under the p a r t i c i p a t i o n 

o p t ions provided f o r i n our September 18th, 1998, l e t t e r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . On September 15th, then, you 

reproposed t h i s w e l l under new terms and conditi o n s ? 

A. That i s — The w e l l was reproposed on September 

15th using the same AFE as o r i g i n a l l y submitted i n J u l y — 

under l e t t e r dated J u l y 30th, 1998. The d i f f e r e n c e a t t h i s 

p o i n t i n time i s being t h a t the j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement 

t h a t was submitted w i t h our e l e c t i o n l e t t e r and AFE was the 

j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement dated February 1, 1999, which we 

o r i g i n a l l y provided May 18th of 1999. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , so what's the change? 
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A. The change — The o r i g i n a l j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement was l i m i t e d j u s t t o the p r o r a t i o n u n i t covered by 

the Brookhaven Com 8 w e l l . This second proposal, dated 

September 15th, 1999, the j o i n t o p e rating agreement which 

we sent under t h a t l e t t e r covered a l l lands under the o l d 

GLA-4 6 c o n t r a c t . 

Q. Okay. Also on t h i s same date you now propose the 

i n f i l l w e l l , which was o r i g i n a l l y numbered the 9, and i t 

was l a t e r changed t o 8A t o r e f l e c t i t was i n f i l l ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. What happens a f t e r t h a t ? 

A. By l e t t e r dated September 27th, 1999, Cheryl 

Potenziani e l e c t s t o p a r t i c i p a t e u n c o n d i t i o n a l l y i n the 

proposed Brookhaven Com 8 and Brookhaven Com 9. 

Q. She made t h a t e l e c t i o n how? By executing the 

AFE? 

A. She executed our — A c t u a l l y , a l l she executed 

was the b a l l o t l e t t e r saying she would p a r t i c i p a t e i n the 

d r i l l i n g and completing of the w e l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What happens then? 

A. October 11th, 1999, Energen Resources e l e c t s t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e i n the Brookhaven Com 8 and Brookhaven Com 9 

under the terms of GLA-46 agreement dated 11-27-51. 

Q. Okay, please continue. 

A. October 13th, 1999, B u r l i n g t o n mails a l e t t e r t o 
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Energen acknowledging the r e c e i p t of Energen's l e t t e r 11th, 

1999, and ad v i s i n g Energen t h a t i t remains B u r l i n g t o n ' s 

a s s e r t i o n t h a t GLA-46 does not govern the d r i l l i n g of 

a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s on the subject acreage. 

October 14th, 1999, Westport O i l and Gas, t h i s i s 

the f i r s t e n t r y w e ' l l see t o Westport O i l and Gas a t t h i s 

time. My understanding of the t r a n s a c t i o n of Westport 

coming i n t o t i t l e was t h a t Energen made an assignment of a 

p o r t i o n of t h e i r i n t e r e s t under these lands and assigned 

t h a t t o Westport O i l and Gas. That being cl e a r e d up, 

Westport O i l and Gas e l e c t s t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the 

Brookhaven Com 8, Brookhaven Com 9, under the terms of 

GLA-46 agreement dated 11-27-51. 

Q. Okay. 

A. October 19th, 1999, Cross Timbers O i l Company, as 

agent f o r Merchant Resources Number 1 L i m i t e d Partnership, 

e l e c t s t o p a r t i c i p a t e u n c o n d i t i o n a l l y i n the Brookhaven Com 

8 and Brookhaven Com 9. 

October 26th, 1999, B u r l i n g t o n advises a l l 

working i n t e r e s t owners i n the Brookhaven Com 9 t h a t the 

Well name has been changed from the Brookhaven Com 9 t o the 

Brookhaven Com 8A. 

And also on October 26th of 1999, by l e t t e r date, 

Bank of America, as agent f o r e i g h t working i n t e r e s t 

owners, e l e c t s t o be c a r r i e d i n the Brookhaven Com 8A under 
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the terms of GLA-46 agreement dated 11-27-51. 

Q. At t h i s p o i n t then, as of today's hearing, we 

have a stalemate between you and the GLA-4 6 Group w i t h 

regards t o agreeing t o cu r r e n t w e l l costs and how t o recoup 

those costs? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you have not been able t o resol v e t h a t ? 

A. We have not been able t o resolve i t . We had a 

meeting between our management and the management of 

Energen Resources i n Burl i n g t o n ' s o f f i c e . I don't have the 

exact date. Rich might have i t . But a t t h a t meeting, a t 

the h i g h - l e v e l management meeting, we d i d t r y t o again hash 

out something t h a t was workable f o r both p a r t i e s . Again, 

we d i d not have success. And both p a r t i e s , a t t h a t p o i n t 

i n time, w i t h the exception of some follow-ups and 

b a s i c a l l y both companies saying our p o s i t i o n hasn't 

changed, there's been no f u r t h e r correspondence since those 

p a r t i c u l a r meetings and t h e i r follow-ups. 

Q. When I look a t E x h i b i t Tab 4, what i s contained 

behind E x h i b i t Tab 4? 

A. E x h i b i t Tab 4, t h i s was included, I b e l i e v e , i n 

the j o i n t o p e r ating agreement t h a t we submitted under 

l e t t e r dated September 15th, 1999. 

What t h i s does i s , i t i d e n t i f i e s the p r o r a t i o n 

u n i t f o r the Brookhaven Com 8, and i t i d e n t i f i e s the 
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i n t e r e s t s i n the Mesaverde completion and also i n the 

Chacra completion and f u r t h e r gives a p a r t i c i p a t i o n o p t i o n . 

B u r l i n g t o n , of course, i s p a r t i c i p a t i n g . Cross Timbers, 

Cheryl P o t e n z i a n i , had elected t o p a r t i c i p a t e , and the 

balance of the p a r t i e s have el e c t e d under the terms of 

GLA-46. 

Q. Have you enclosed a copy of the proposed 

o p e r a t i n g agreement t h a t you were proposing t o apply t o the 

spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I have. Let me make one f u r t h e r note. 

Behind the two pages on the Brookhaven Com 8, we have the 

same t h i n g f o r the Brookhaven Com 8A. The Mesaverde 

i n t e r e s t s are i d e n t i c a l . We d i d have a d i f f e r e n c e i n the 

i n t e r e s t i n the Chacra due t o one being the southwest 

qu a r t e r and the other being spaced s o l e l y on the northwest 

q u a r t e r . 

Following those two items i s a complete copy of 

our o p e r a t i n g agreement, dated February 1, 1999. 

Q. Okay. There's a p o r t i o n of the o p e r a t i n g 

agreement I would l i k e t o d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o , because 

i t deals w i t h the mechanics of how you handle cost 

a l l o c a t i o n and revenue apportionment f o r a dual completion, 

r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . A c t u a l l y , i t ' s j u s t — r e f e r s t o cost 

a l l o c a t i o n . 
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Q. I t ' s a cost a l l o c a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Could you f i n d t h a t f o r us? 

A. Yes, i t i s . I f y o u ' l l t u r n i n your j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement t o page 9A and 9B, a t the bottom of 

page 9A y o u ' l l f i n d a formula f o r a l l o c a t i o n of costs f o r 

d r i l l i n g and completing dual w e l l s , and we're b a s i c a l l y — 

How we t r e a t t h i s i s t h a t we are going t o the base of the 

Mesaverde as the estimated TD. The Chacra fo r m a t i o n l i e s 

above the Mesaverde. So d r i l l i n g costs from the surface t o 

the base of the Chacra under our language here would be 

shared e q u a l l y by the two p a r t i e s . 

Q. So the shallow-zone owners s p l i t h a l f those costs 

w i t h the deep owners? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And then below the shallow zone, what happens? 

A. Below the shallow zone, any a d d i t i o n a l costs of 

d r i l l i n g or t e s t i n g or completing are borne s o l e l y by the 

owners i n t h a t deeper formation. 

Q. Has B u r l i n g t o n u t i l i z e d t h i s c o s t - a l l o c a t i o n 

method f o r dual w e l l s i n other areas? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Other agree- — This i s s o r t of a standard — 

A. This i s B u r l i n g t o n ' s standard c o s t - a l l o c a t i o n 

language. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's t u r n t o an a d d i t i o n a l p r o v i s i o n 

on t h i s t o p i c . I f y o u ' l l t u r n w i t h me t o page 14 of the 

op e r a t i n g agreement, i s there an a d d i t i o n a l item t h a t needs 

t o be referenced t o the Examiner? 

A. Yes, s i r , there i s . On A r t i c l e XV, D i v i s i o n F, 

we t a l k t h e r e about m u l t i p l e completed formations i n a w e l l 

w i l l be t r e a t e d as a dual w e l l u n t i l such time the 

formations are commingled. At such time the formations are 

commingled, a l l f u t u r e costs and expenses w i l l be adjusted 

pursuant t o the a l l o c a t i o n formula approved by and i n 

compliance w i t h New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n Rules 

and Regulations. 

We f e e l t h a t t h a t should also be incorp o r a t e d 

here, f o r a l l o c a t i o n of overhead costs. 

Q. I s i t your recommendation t h a t these two 

p r o v i s i o n s we've j u s t described be included i n any 

compulsory p o o l i n g order issued which i n v o l v e s these 

Chacra-Mesaverde duals? 

A. Yes, i t i s my recommendation. 

Q. This operating agreement obviously covers a great 

many other p r o p e r t i e s . 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Who signed o f f on t h i s agreement, generally? Do 

you have Amoco's p a r t i c i p a t i o n under t h i s new cont r a c t ? 

A. Yes, we do have Amoco's p a r t i c i p a t i o n under t h i s 
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c o n t r a c t , and we also have George Umbach, and I b e l i e v e 

t h e r e ' s one more p a r t y — p o s s i b l y not. 

Q. As t o the o r i g i n a l GLA-4 6 c o n t r a c t area, t h a t 

acreage, and subject t o other acreage a d d i t i o n s t o the 

c o n t r a c t area, was Amoco ever i n the p o s i t i o n t o argue t h a t 

i t could take advantage of the GLA-46 agreements, or are 

they outside of t h a t agreement? 

A. No, Amoco — Next t o B u r l i n g t o n , Amoco owns the 

second l a r g e s t ownership p o s i t i o n i n GLA-46. I t ' s been 

t h e i r r e c o g n i t i o n , and the new operating agreement was done 

somewhat a t the request of Amoco, t h a t t h i s t h i n g , t h i s 

whole c o n t r a c t , was holdi n g up development. They 

recognized the f a c t t h a t we could not economically develop 

these lands under the owners' terms t h a t we agreed t o back 

i n 1951. Amoco was the d r i v i n g f a c t o r i n b r i n g i n g t o bear 

t h i s new operating agreement. 

Q. So they were i n a p o s i t i o n t o assert the p r i c e 

l i m i t a t i o n s and the recoupment p r o v i s i o n s of the o l d 1951 

agreement? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q. And they chose t o execute a new agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r , they d i d . 

Q. And were you i n a s i m i l a r p o s i t i o n t o not be able 

t o develop the p r o p e r t i e s w i t h o u t a new agreement? 

A. We would have been i n the same onerous economic 
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c o n d i t i o n s w i t h Amoco as we are w i t h these p a r t i e s here 

today. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o show me the p r o v i s i o n s or the 

e x h i b i t p o r t i o n of the book t h a t contains the AFEs f o r t h i s 

p o p u l a t i o n of w e l l s , the 8 and the 8A. Where do I f i n d 

those? 

A. Those would be found behind E x h i b i t Number 5. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , show me how t o read one of these t o 

f i g u r e out how I get the t o t a l p r i c e s of the dual w e l l s . 

A. The dual w e l l s , as y o u ' l l see here, we've got — 

What w e ' l l have here are d r i l l i n g completion and f a c i l i t i e s 

f o r t h i s dual Chacra-Mesaverde w e l l . 

Q. You have t o sum some of these t o t a l s t o get t o 

the t o t a l c ost, r i g h t ? 

A. We do have t o sum some of those t o t a l s . Y o u ' l l 

f i n d two AFEs attached f o r the Brookhaven Com 8. The f i r s t 

one i s an AFE i n the amount of $190,015, and the second one 

i s f o r the Mesaverde completion. The f i r s t AFE i s f o r the 

Chacra completion. The second AFE f o r the Brookhaven 8, i n 

the amount of $237,615, f o r the Mesaverde completion. 

Q. You've used the cost a l l o c a t i o n method you have 

shown us i n the operating agreement t o come forward w i t h 

the cost s p l i t here, I guess? 

A. Yeah, I d i d not w r i t e these AFEs, but t h a t i s my 

understanding. 
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Q. That's the method? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And so t o get the t o t a l w e l l cost f o r a completed 

w e l l , I need t o add the $190,000 t o the $237,000? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . The same t h i n g i n here, you've got 

AFEs f o r the i n f i l l w ell? 

A. Uh-huh. Yeah, the Brookhaven Com 8A i s the same 

AFE. 

Q. Okay, and those were the AFEs t h a t were 

c i r c u l a t e d t o a l l the working i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Under your w e l l proposal? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's leave t h a t e x h i b i t book, and 

l e t me t u r n your a t t e n t i o n t o Mr. S t r i c k l e r ' s w e l l . I t ' s 

i n t h e Case Book 12,277; i t ' s going t o be the Brookhaven 

Com B w e l l , 3B, and i t ' s the stand-alone Mesaverde w e l l . 

L e t 1 s t u r n t o E x h i b i t Tab 2, and l e t ' s look a t the layo u t 

of the s e c t i o n , the a d j o i n i n g sections i n the w e l l s . 

Where's the 3B w e l l proposed for? 

A. The 3B w e l l i s proposed as an e a s t - h a l f w e l l i n 

Section 16 of Township 31 North, Range 11 West. 

Q. And when we look at the San Juan Basin l o c a t o r 

map, t h i s i s the one t h a t ' s n o r t h of Aztec and s l i g h t l y 
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west of the Marcotte well? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Find i n the e x h i b i t book the t a b u l a t i o n of 

i n t e r e s t owners. E x h i b i t A, attached t o the n o t i c e of 

hearing, which i s the t h i r d page i n E x h i b i t 1, does t h i s 

c o r r e c t l y r e f l e c t the working i n t e r e s t s , w i t h the exception 

of Bur l i n g t o n ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Let's use t h i s as our index f o r a moment. As we 

are here before the Examiner today, do you have agreement 

w i t h any of the p a r t i e s or groups l i s t e d here? 

A. To my knowledge, we do not have agreement w i t h 

any of the p a r t i e s referenced h e r e i n , w i t h the p o s s i b l e 

exception — and l e t me check my chronology — of — 

Q. — Cheryl Potenziani? 

A. Yes, Potenziani. Yes, Ms. Potenziani has e l e c t e d 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the proposed w e l l . 

Q. I t ' s your b e l i e f t h a t the others l i s t e d on the 

e x h i b i t have taken the Energen p o s i t i o n of a s s e r t i n g 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n pursuant t o the cost l i m i t a t i o n s and the 

c a r r y p r o v i s i o n s of the November, 1991 [ s i c ] , agreement? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t , November, 19 51, agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s go t o E x h i b i t 3, now, and s t a r t 

w i t h the chronology of events f o r the 3B w e l l , s t a r t i n g 

w i t h the proposal of December 14th, 1998. 
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A. At t h i s — Under l e t t e r dated December 14th, 

1998, Mr. James S t r i c k l e r o r i g i n a l l y proposed the d r i l l i n g 

and completing of the Brookhaven Com B Number 3B as a 

Mesaverde new d r i l l . 

Q. And he's using Mesaverde new d r i l l costs i n h i s 

l e t t e r , i f you t u r n t o the l e t t e r , which i s the second 

page, he's got a t o t a l AFE cost of $386,488? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. S t a r t w i t h the next e n t r y . What's happened on 

December 28th of 1998? 

A. By l e t t e r dated December 28th, 1998, B u r l i n g t o n 

receives Cheryl Potenziani's e l e c t i o n b a l l o t t o p a r t i c i p a t e 

i n t he proposed w e l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , please continue. 

A. January 15th, 199, B u r l i n g t o n receives Energen 

e l e c t i o n b a l l o t t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the proposed w e l l under 

the terms of GLA-46. We advise t h a t GLA-4 6 does not govern 

the d r i l l i n g of a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s . 

May 18th, 1999, B u r l i n g t o n mails out the new 

o p e r a t i n g agreement dated February 1, 1999, t o a l l GLA-4 6 

working i n t e r e s t owners. 

By l e t t e r dated September 15th, 1999, B u r l i n g t o n 

m ails a second request l e t t e r w i t h the e l e c t i o n b a l l o t once 

again proposing the Brookhaven Com B Number 3B as a 

Mesaverde new d r i l l t o a l l working i n t e r e s t owners i n the 
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proposed w e l l . Attached t o the proposal l e t t e r i s 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s AFE and new j o i n t o p e rating agreement, dated 

February 1, 1999, covering the proposed p r o r a t i o n u n i t of 

the w e l l . 

September 3 0th, 1999, B u r l i n g t o n receives Cheryl 

Potenziani's e l e c t i o n t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the proposed w e l l . 

October 11th, 1999, B u r l i n g t o n receives Energen's 

l e t t e r e l e c t i n g t o j o i n i n the d r i l l i n g of the Brookhaven 

Com 8, 8A and 9 and 3 — Com 3B, subject t o the terms of 

the o p e r a t i n g agreement dated 11-27-51, as amended. 

October 13th, 1999, B u r l i n g t o n mails a l e t t e r t o 

Energen acknowledging r e c e i p t of t h e i r l e t t e r of October 

11th, 1999. We advise under t h i s l e t t e r t h a t we don't 

t h i n k t h a t GLA app l i e s t o the d r i l l i n g of a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s . 

October 18th, 1999, B u r l i n g t o n receives a l e t t e r 

dated October 14th from Westport O i l and Gas, i n d i c a t i n g 

t h a t they were i n r e c e i p t of the AFEs covering the 

Brookhaven 8, 9 and Brookhaven Com B 3B w e l l s , and t h a t 

they would p a r t i c i p a t e under the terms of GLA-4 6. 

October 26th, 1999, NationsBank as agent f o r 

e i g h t working i n t e r e s t owners e l e c t s t o be c a r r i e d i n the 

proposed w e l l under the terms of GLA-46 agreement dated 

11-27-51. 

Q. Mr. S t r i c k l e r , w i t h h i s proposal f o r the B3 i s a t 

the same p o i n t as you are w i t h your Com 8 and 8A wells? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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A. Yes, Mr. S t r i c k l e r i s a t the same p o i n t . And 

from t h i s p o i n t forward, I took over t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

geographic area, and these became my r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . 

Q. Okay. Based upon your review of the chronology 

and the documents i n the correspondence f i l e t h a t deals 

w i t h t h i s p e r i o d , are you s a t i s f i e d t h a t the p a r t i e s are at 

an impasse concerning t h e i r a b i l i t y t o agree t o u t i l i z e 

c u r r e n t w e l l costs f o r these wells? 

A. I am s a t i s f i e d t h a t we're a t an impasse. 

Q. And t h a t you've exhausted reasonable 

o p p o r t u n i t i e s t o reach a compromise or an agreement and 

have not been able t o do so? 

A. Yes, we — That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Other than t h a t ownership i n f o r m a t i o n and 

correspondence t h a t ' s unique t o t h i s proposal, i s the 

op e r a t i n g and your recommendations f o r p r o v i s i o n s out of 

the o p e r a t i n g agreement t o be incorporated i n a p o o l i n g 

order, the same recommendations as you j u s t made? 

A. Yes, s i r , they are. 

Q. Behind E x h i b i t Tab 5, what do we f i n d i n t h i s 

p o r t i o n of the e x h i b i t ? 

A. We f i n d under t h i s p o r t i o n of the e x h i b i t 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s AFE i n the amount of $386,488. Again, same 

format as provided f o r i n the Brookhaven 8 and 8A w e l l s . 

Q. Do you have a recommendation t o the D i v i s i o n f o r 
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overhead r a t e s t o charge on a monthly basis f o r a d r i l l i n g 

w e l l and a producing well? 

A. We would l i k e t o , as found i n our j o i n t o p e rating 

agreement t h a t we had proposed, we have provided f o r a 

producing overhead r a t e of $450. We would l i k e the 

D i v i s i o n t o enter under the po o l i n g order t o u t i l i z e the 

same $450-per-well overhead r a t e . 

Q. That's the producing w e l l r a t e , $450? What's the 

d r i l l i n g w e l l rate? 

A. The d r i l l i n g overhead r a t e i s $4500 per month, 

and again we would l i k e the po o l i n g order t o r e f l e c t the 

same. 

Q. How do those r a t e s compare t o the t a b u l a t i o n of 

r a t e s by Ernst and Whinney? 

A. Those r a t e s , the Ernst and Young survey — 

Q. Yeah. 

A. — f o r depths of — f o r w e l l s of t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

depth, I know — I t h i n k both w e l l s ' estimated TD i s around 

5600 f e e t . For the Colorado Plateau Basin and Range, from 

Ernst and Young survey, w e l l s t h a t are from 5001 f e e t t o 

10,000 f e e t , average d r i l l i n g overhead i s $5000, median 

d r i l l i n g overhead i s $5000, producing w e l l overhead 

averaged $575 and median i s $478. So we are under, i t 

appears, c u r r e n t i n d u s t r y use. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 
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Mr. Nichols. We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s E x h i b i t 1 

through 5 i n both e x h i b i t books. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: E x h i b i t s 1 through 5 i n both 

e x h i b i t books — 

THE WITNESS: Mr. K e l l a h i n , I — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Sir? 

THE WITNESS: May I c o r r e c t myself? I was 

r e f e r r i n g — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Please. 

THE WITNESS: — i n c o r r e c t l y when I was 

r e f e r e n c i n g the Ernst and Young surveys t o o i l w e l l 

overhead r a t e s . I f I may provide gas overhead rates? 

Again, from 5001 t o 10,000 f e e t , average d r i l l i n g 

overhead i s $5326, median i s $5000, average producing i s 

$481 and median producing i s $477. So i f I could c l a r i f y 

t h a t , again r e i t e r a t e t h a t we are under average. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: E x h i b i t s 1 through 5 from Case 

12,277 and 1 through 5 i n Case 12,276 w i l l be admitted as 

evidence a t t h i s time. 

Mr. Hall? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Nichols, a t the outset i t would be h e l p f u l t o 

a l l of us i f we had a cl e a r understanding what B u r l i n g t o n ' s 

p o s i t i o n i s i n these two cases. And t o do t h a t , Let me 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

56 

r e f e r you t o the two A p p l i c a t i o n s t h a t have been f i l e d i n 

each of the cases. 

I f you have those a v a i l a b l e t o you, Mr. Examiner, 

I d i d n ' t b r i n g e x t r a copies. 

MR. KELLAHIN: The A p p l i c a t i o n s are included i n 

the e x h i b i t book, Mr. H a l l , behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 1. 

So we might u t i l i z e t h a t , i f you want t o . 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Okay. Why don't we take the 

a p p l i c a t i o n from 12,276, t h a t case — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — and i f you would r e f e r t o the second page of 

t h a t , the one t h a t has the numbered paragraph 2 t h e r e . 

The r e p r e s e n t a t i o n t o the D i v i s i o n was, "By 

L e t t e r Agreement dated May 24, 1952 t h i s proposed spacing 

u n i t was included w i t h i n acreage subject t o a November 27, 

1951 farmout/operating agreements between Brookhaven O i l 

Company and San Juan Production Company ( c o l l e c t i v e l y the 

'GLA-46 Agreement') which set f o r t h a d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n 

f o r 18 Mesaverde w e l l s t o be d r i l l e d w i t h i n the c o n t r a c t 

area." 

Now, the next paragraph says, paragraph 3 t h e r e , 

"This d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n has been s a t i s f i e d . " 

Let me see i f I c o r r e c t l y understand B u r l i n g t o n ' s 

p o s i t i o n , i s t h a t B u r l i n g t o n only had an o b l i g a t i o n t o 

d r i l l 18 Mesaverde w e l l s — 
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A. Yes. 

Q. — correct ? 

And t h a t d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n was s a t i s f i e d when? 

A. I don't have the exact date t h a t the 18th w e l l 

was d r i l l e d . 

Q. I n a motion t o quash f i l e d w i t h the D i v i s i o n i n 

t h i s case by counsel, i t was represented t h a t the 18th w e l l 

may have been d r i l l e d around 1956. Does t h a t sound about 

r i g h t ? 

A. That sounds — The neighborhood sounds c o r r e c t . 

Q. Yeah. I f you look at paragraph 4 of the 

pleading, i t says, "Thereafter and only by unanimous 

agreement made on an i n d i v i d u a l w e l l basis, d i d the p a r t i e s 

decide t o make any f u t u r e w e l l subject t o the GLA-46 

Agreement." Do you see that ? 

Can you elaborate on that ? What does t h a t mean 

t o you? 

A. My i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of t h a t i s simply t h a t from 

t h i s p o i n t forward, any w e l l s t h a t were d r i l l e d a f t e r the 

i n i t i a l d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n was s a t i s f i e d was done so by 

mutual b e n e f i t of San Juan and Brookhaven O i l Company, and 

t h a t absent t h e i r mutual agreement t o d r i l l these w e l l s , 

n e i t h e r p a r t y was under any o b l i g a t i o n t o do so. 

Q. Well, was the unanimous agreement the paragraph 

r e f e r s t o some s o r t of an agreement t o modify GLA-4 6, or 
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was i t the case, a l t e r n a t i v e l y , a t t h a t time t h a t GLA-4 6 

simply d i d n ' t apply t o the 18th well? 

A. I don't t h i n k the i n t e n t of any of the amendments 

was ever t o acknowledge t h a t GLA-46 terminated. I t was 

simply t h a t these w e l l s continue t o be d r i l l e d under GLA-

46, the basic p r o v i s i o n s of GLA-46, i f a l l p a r t i e s could 

reach unanimous agreement t o the amendments. And i f they 

could do so, they could d r i l l the w e l l s under GLA-4 6. I f 

they couldn't do so, no development might have occurred. 

So I don't t h i n k t h e r e was ever any i n t e n t t o terminate the 

GLA-46 i t s e l f . 

Q. Okay, so i t ' s B u r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n i n t h i s case 

today t h a t GLA-46 does continue t o apply, then? 

A. I t ' s our contention t h a t i f we and the other 

p a r t i e s of GLA-46 can reach consent under w e l l costs and 

t h i n g s of t h a t nature, t h a t development could occur under 

GLA-4 6, t h a t t h e r e would be nothing t h a t would prevent t h a t 

i f we could a l l agree on an e q u i t a b l e sharing of costs and 

overhead r a t e s and t h i n g s of t h a t nature. 

So i t ' s not my contention r i g h t here t o say t h a t 

GLA-4 6 does not apply. 

Q. That i t ' s not your co n t e n t i o n — 

A. That i t i s not my conte n t i o n . I f we have 

unanimous consent of both p a r t i e s , then we could f u r t h e r 

develop under the terms of GLA-4 6 as amended. 
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MR. HALL: A l l r i g h t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. C a r r o l l , I'm going t o o b j e c t 

t o the cross-examination a t t h i s p o i n t . Mr. H a l l has 

passed out an e x h i b i t book t h a t contains a number of 

documents apparently w i t h regards t o t h i s c o n t r a c t - d i s p u t e 

issue. I t ' s my p o s i t i o n t h a t t h i s i s not the forum or the 

j u r i s d i c t i o n t o l i t i g a t e t h a t issue, and we would o b j e c t . 

MR. CARROLL: Response? 

MR. HALL: The E x h i b i t A I've handed out i s 

marked Energen's E x h i b i t A. I t c o n s i s t s of documents 

produced by B u r l i n g t o n pursuant t o a v o l u n t a r y agreement of 

counsel. A l l of them, I believe y o u ' l l f i n d , have Bates 

numbers on the bottom right-hand corner. There shouldn't 

be any problem a u t h e n t i c a t i n g these documents, or counsel 

can simply s t i p u l a t e t h a t t h a t i s t h e i r p r o d u c t i o n source. 

I b e l i e v e we've already addressed whether or not 

these documents of t h i s type are r e l e v a n t t o the issues i n 

t h i s proceeding i n our opening statements. I don't have 

much more t o add on t h a t , but — other than t o say t h a t 

these documents w i l l help you, the Examiner, t o determine 

what the p r a c t i c e was under GLA-4 6, whether what was 

adhered t o , whether there was unanimous consent, as Mr. 

Nichols says, t o d r i l l a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s , e t cetera. A l l of 

those questions are p r o b a t i v e of the main issue of whether 

or not these lands were v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o these 
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w e l l s . That's why we'd l i k e the o p p o r t u n i t y t o examine him 

on them. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Here's the d i f f i c u l t y w i t h Mr. 

H a l l ' s s t r a t e g y , Mr. C a r r o l l . One, the cross-examination 

of t h i s witness w i t h these documents i s not a p p r o p r i a t e . 

He i s c e r t a i n l y not an expert on GLA-46 documents. He's 

not i n a p o s i t i o n t o render l e g a l opinions. 

The other issue i s , you've def e r r e d t i l l now, and 

now's the time t o decide, are we going t o engage i n 

reviewing a l l these c o n t r a c t documents? And i f so, f o r 

what purpose? I t ' s our p o s i t i o n the p a r t i e s can't agree. 

They admit they can't agree on c u r r e n t p r i c e , they want t o 

asse r t the o l d c o n t r a c t . We say the c o n t r a c t doesn't 

apply, and the courthouse i s where we do t h i s , not here. 

MR. HALL: For you t o enter a f i n d i n g e i t h e r way 

t h a t the lands are or are not committed t o the w e l l s , the 

f i n d i n g must be based on s u b s t a n t i a l evidence i n the 

record. That's what a l l of these are p r o b a t i v e o f , so we 

are e n t i t l e d t o examine him on i t . 

MR. CARROLL: A l l these documents were produced 

by B u r l i n g t o n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I n response — You may remember 

the chronology, Mr. C a r r o l l . Back on November 16th you 

issued a l e t t e r i n which you — 

MR. CARROLL: Well, my question i s — 
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MR. KELLAHIN: Yeah. 

MR. CARROLL: — were they produced by 

Burl i n g t o n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Sure, I d i d — You know, the issue 

was whether the motion t o quash would go t o the Commission 

and go on, and i n response t o t h a t I v o l u n t a r i l y produced 

some 1800 pages of documents, and I assume these are them, 

t h a t ' s where I got them, I produced f o r them. 

But my question i s t h a t under the p o o l i n g 

s t a t u t e , you already have evidence t h a t ' s uncontested t h a t 

t h e p a r t i e s can't agree on these c u r r e n t costs. The 

un d e r l y i n g issue which he wants you t o decide i s whether 

t h i s c o n t r a c t s t i l l a p p l i e s , and I t h i n k we're going where 

you're not supposed t o be. 

MR. CARROLL: Well, the p a r t i e s can't agree 

whether they're agreed, i s where we're a t ; i s n ' t t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: So he wants you t o s u b s t i t u t e the 

cou r t ' s judgement and decide i f there's s t i l l a b i n d i n g 

agreement, based upon 50 years of documents. 

MR. HALL: That i s not why we appear here. I 

t h i n k these arguments t h a t t h i s i s a matter t o be def e r r e d 

t o the c o u r t s are r e a l l y f a l l a c i o u s , because the D i v i s i o n 

has a mandatory s t a t u t o r y duty t o make t h a t f i n d i n g , t h a t 

the lands are or are not v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o the 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

62 

w e l l s . You cannot defer t h a t duty t o the c o u r t . 

So you are obliged t o take evidence on t h a t 

issue, which i s a p r e c o n d i t i o n t o the e n t r y of any order, 

no matter which way you r u l e . That's why we're e n t i t l e d t o 

look a t these documents. 

MR. CARROLL: How long w i l l we be l o o k i n g a t 

these documents, Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: Well, I'm not going t o l i e t o you, 

i t ' s going t o take a wh i l e . 

MR. KELLAHIN: w e l l , then he ought not t o do i t 

by cross-examining t h i s witness w i t h these documents. I f 

he wants t o admit them, admit them, and you guys can read 

them tomorrow or next week. 

MR. CARROLL: Y o u ' l l s t i p u l a t e t o the admission 

of these documents? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I don't t h i n k they're r e l e v a n t , I 

don't t h i n k they're necessary, but t h a t ' s how he's going t o 

get them i n the record over my o b j e c t i o n as t o relevancy. 

You can deny t h a t o b j e c t i o n , and introduce them and s i t 

t h e r e and read them, i f you want. 

MR. CARROLL: We'll admit these documents i n t o 

evidence. 

Where are we going w i t h cross-examining t h i s 

witness over these documents? 

MR. HALL: Mr. C a r r o l l , I ' l l do e v e r y t h i n g I can 
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t o expedite i t . 

MR. CARROLL: I mean, do they speak f o r 

themselves? I mean, do we have t o — 

MR. HALL: To an extent they do. I've taken 

pains t o h i g h l i g h t s p e c i f i c language which I t h i n k speaks 

f o r i t s e l f . 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, I saw t h a t , I r e a l l y 

a ppreciate i t . 

MR. HALL: B u r l i n g t o n has made rep r e s e n t a t i o n s i n 

i t s pleadings and through i t s witnesses now about i t s 

p o s i t i o n s , and we can compare those p o s i t i o n s t o t h e i r own 

documents, which you may or may not f i n d are admissions 

against i n t e r e s t . And again, they're d i r e c t l y p r o b a t i v e of 

t h a t t h r e s h o l d issue — 

MR. CARROLL: So how many admissions against 

i n t e r e s t are contained i n these documents? 

MR. HALL: Well, I t h i n k , as we say, t h e y ' l l have 

t o speak f o r themselves. I have not t a b u l a t e d each of — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Well, Mr. C a r r o l l , t h a t ' s the 

r u l e s of evidence. The documents speak f o r themselves, 

th e y ' r e introduced, there's no p o i n t q u i b b l i n g w i t h Mr. 

Nichols about what he t h i n k s or might not t h i n k about 4 5 

years of documents. 

MR. CARROLL: How long have you been employed 

w i t h Burlington? 
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THE WITNESS: I've been employed w i t h B u r l i n g t o n 

f o r about 10 years, two years of t h a t being employed i n the 

Farmington o f f i c e . 

MR. CARROLL: And Mr. H a l l , you t h i n k he has 

personal knowledge of — Was he involved i n any of these 

communications, negotiations? 

MR. HALL: I won't be asking him questions about 

t h a t s p e c i f i c a l l y , but Mr. Nichols, through h i s testimony, 

and through pleadings of counsel, has o u t l i n e d c e r t a i n 

issues which are on the t a b l e now, and I t h i n k I can 

juxtapose the evidence contained i n these documents against 

those s t a t e d p o s i t i o n s and see which i s c o r r e c t . 

We've already seen a l i t t l e b i t of change i n 

p o s i t i o n already w i t h respect t o whether or not GLA-46 

continues t o e x i s t . I t h i n k i t ' s t h e i r p o s i t i o n now, 

they've c l a r i f i e d , t h a t yes, GLA-46 does e x i s t . We've 

go t t e n t h a t f a r w i t h i t . Let's see how much f u r t h e r we can 

go w i t h t h e i r — 

MR. CARROLL: Okay, w e ' l l hear some of i t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Am I understanding t h a t he's going 

t o be able t o cross-examiner Mr. Nichols about documents 

f o r which Mr. Nichols had no involvement? Are we going t o 

pla y questions w i t h the witness t o get him t o --

MR. CARROLL: I t h i n k Mr. Nichols t e s t i f i e d as t o 

Bu r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n on the agreement. I j u s t — We're 
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going t o hear some questions regarding some c o n f l i c t i n g 

evidence t o t h a t p o s i t i o n , I b e l i e v e . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Well, you know, he asked what 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n was. Mr. Nichols s t a t e d i t . I f t h i s 

i s r e b u t t a l evidence against h i s testimony, the way you do 

i t i s i n t r o d u c i n g these documents and reading them f o r 

y o u r s e l f . That's how you do i t . 

MR. HALL: You have the f l e x i b i l i t y under Rule 

1204 t o al l o w i t . 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, we're going t o hear i t . 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Nichols, i f you would, take 

what's been marked as Energen E x h i b i t A, and i f you would 

f l i p t o Tab 22, please, s i r , l e t me ask you i n i t i a l l y , do 

you have t h a t i n f r o n t of you? Let me check. 

A. January 14th, 1975. 

Q. Yeah, we're together. We've t a l k e d about the 

18-well d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n e a r l i e r . Can you t e l l the 

Hearing Examiner e x a c t l y how many w e l l s have been d r i l l e d 

under GLA-4 6? 

A. No, I cannot. 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s look a t what's been marked as E x h i b i t 

A-22. Would i t appear t o you t h a t t h i s i s a memo f o r an 

e x h i b i t which shows a l l acreage subject t o the Brookhaven 

GLA-46 — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm going t o o b j e c t t o the 
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question. There's no foundation t h a t t h i s witness has 

knowledge of what acreage and what w e l l s are i n v o l v e d i n 

the GLA-4 6 agreements. He's not q u a l i f i e d t o render 

opinions about t h i s . 

MR. CARROLL: I f he has knowledge, he can answer. 

THE WITNESS: Your question, Mr. Hall? 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Nichols, would i t appear t h a t 

E x h i b i t A-22 i s a memorandum dated January 14th, 1975, 

covering an e x h i b i t which shows a l l the acreage and w e l l s 

and l o c a t i o n s by formation t h a t would be sub j e c t t o 

GLA-4 6 as of t h a t date, anyway? 

A. Yes, i t would appear t h a t t h i s January 14th memo 

does c o n t a i n an E x h i b i t 1 and an E x h i b i t 2. Whether or not 

those are accurate, I have no knowledge of the accuracy or 

completeness of them. 

Q. Would i t be safe t o say t h a t approximately 100 

w e l l s have been d r i l l e d under GLA-46? Very round number, I 

r e a l i z e , but i s t h a t your understanding, more or less? 

A. I don't know what the t o t a l w e l l count i s . I 

don't see i t i n e i t h e r one of the e x h i b i t s t h a t you've 

presented w i t h — i n f r o n t of me r i g h t here, so I r e a l l y 

don't have — I don't have any idea how many w e l l s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . B u r l i n g t o n doesn't plan on presenting 

any other evidence today w i t h respect t o acreage covered by 

GLA-46 or number of w e l l s d r i l l e d under GLA-46? 
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A. No, s i r , I have no f u r t h e r plans t o present 

anything of t h a t nature. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look a t E x h i b i t A-47, please, 

s i r . Now, e a r l i e r you t e s t i f i e d t h a t a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s were 

d r i l l e d under GLA-46. I understand you don't have 

knowledge of the s p e c i f i c number. But i f y o u ' l l look a t 

the documentation under Tab 47, your E x h i b i t A, i t appears 

t o be Amendment Number 2 4 t o GLA-4 6, dated September 2, 

1987, i s i t not? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. E a r l i e r , you said t h a t a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s were 

d r i l l e d a f t e r the 18th i n i t i a l w e l l , only on the unanimous 

of a l l p a r t i e s t o do so. You need t o s t a t e v e r b a l l y — 

A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f y o u ' l l look a t the second page 

t h a t has Bates stamp number 719, would i t appear t h a t 

Meridian a t the time negotiated w i t h Amoco Production 

Company and the Potenziani Family Partnership f o r the 

d r i l l i n g of an a d d i t i o n a l w e l l under GLA-46? 

A. Yes, I agree t h a t t h i s amendment does do t h a t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And what they amended, among other 

t h i n g s , i f y o u ' l l look at the second page again, a t 

subparagraph ( b ) , i t provided t h a t 200 percent of costs of 

completing the w e l l would be paid by the p a r t i e s , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Now, l e t ' s t u r n the next tab, Tab 4 8 — I'm 

s o r r y , l e t me r e f e r you back again t o 47. The l a s t page of 

t h a t , Bates Number 72 0, there's an execution by Amoco, 

co r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. So t h a t ' s Amoco's m o d i f i c a t i o n — 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. — under Amendment 2 4? 

Now, l e t ' s look a t Tab 48, i f you would. The 

same l e t t e r again, i s i t not? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And you look at the l a s t page of t h a t , Bates 

Number 723, i t appears t o be an execution on behalf of the 

Potenziani Family Partnership, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And you look at the middle page, Bates Number 

722, subparagraph (b) t h e r e , y o u ' l l see t h a t the cost 

p r o v i s i o n says 100 percent? 

A. Yes, I see t h a t . 

Q. Do you agree w i t h t h a t ? 

A. Yes, I — Yeah, I — 

Q. So i t ' s not accurate, i s i t , t h a t i n each case 

you had unanimous agreement on a l l p r o v i s i o n s f o r d r i l l i n g 

of a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s a f t e r the 18th well? That would show? 

A. No, t h a t t o me does not show t h a t . To me t h a t 
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shows t h a t Potenziani has made a counter and t h a t although 

we don't recognize i t here, t h a t I would make the 

r e c o g n i t i o n t h a t E l Paso agreed t o the proposed counter and 

c a r r i e d forward. 

So again, I t h i n k t h a t t h i s i s unanimous-consent 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n . That's my opinion on i t . 

Q. You don't know whether t h i s counter a t 100 

percent of cost was accepted by Meridian or not; i s t h a t 

what you're saying? 

A. No, I do not know t h a t p e r s o n a l l y . I don't see 

anything accepting or denying the marked-through changes. 

Q. Would you happen t o know whether the su b j e c t w e l l 

was d r i l l e d , the A t l a n t i c D Com E 6R? 

A. I do b e l i e v e t h a t t h a t w e l l was probably d r i l l e d , 

and probably by 100 percent recoupment. Obviously, t h i s 

w e l l probably cost more than $90,000, so probably i t was an 

amendment. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. Yeah. 

Q. Let me ask you about some a d d i t i o n a l issues t h a t 

have been r a i s e d by a p p l i c a t i o n and some of your d i r e c t 

testimony. I f y o u ' l l look back a t the A p p l i c a t i o n you had 

before you before — 

A. On 12,276? 

Q. Yes, s i r . 
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A. Okay. 

Q. T h i r d page of t h a t , a t numbered paragraph 9, do 

you see th a t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I t says, paraphrasing, B u r l i n g t o n advised the 

GLA-4 6 Group, i n c l u d i n g Energen, t h a t GLA-4 6 agreement d i d 

not apply t o t h i s new w e l l proposal. I s t h a t an accurate 

statement of — 

A. No, the l e t t e r d i d s t a t e t h a t , yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f you t u r n t o your E x h i b i t A, Tab 

64, t h a t ' s t h a t l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n f a c t , t h i s i s one of your o r i g i n a l — 

A. Okay. 

Q. There you say i t i s Bu r l i n g t o n ' s -- I don't mean 

t o say "you". Yes, i t i s you, Shannon Nichols wrote t h i s . 

You say, " I t i s Burli n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n t h a t the p r o v i s i o n s 

of GLA-46 do not apply t o t h i s w e l l inasmuch as the 

d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n s , terms and c o n d i t i o n s of GLA-4 6 were 

s a t i s f i e d w i t h the d r i l l i n g of the i n i t i a l eighteen (18) 

w e l l s on GLA-46 lands as set out i n the agreement." 

Now, t o your knowledge, i s t h a t the f i r s t time 

t h a t s p e c i f i c p o s i t i o n was a r t i c u l a t e d t o any of the GLA-46 

i n t e r e s t owners, t h a t GLA-4 6 d i d not apply a f t e r the 18 

wells? 
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A. I don't have personal knowledge t h a t t h a t i s the 

f i r s t time t h a t was s p e c i f i c a l l y a r t i c u l a t e d i n t h a t 

format. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o Tab 68 under E x h i b i t A. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I t ' s a l e t t e r from Mr. S t r i c k l e r dated May 18, 

1999, t o GLA-46 working i n t e r e s t owners. I assume you're 

probably f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. I t t r a n s m i t s a new j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement. I f 

y o u ' l l look a t the second sentence there [ s i c ] , i t says, 

"...which i s intended t o replace the o r i g i n a l Farmout 

Agreement Contract dated November 27, 1951..." Do you see 

t h a t language there? 

A. Yes, uh-huh. 

Q. So would i t be accurate t o say t h a t as of May 18, 

1999, anyway, i t was Burlington's p o s i t i o n t h a t , as you 

s a i d , GLA-4 6 was i n e f f e c t and you were seeking i t s 

replacement? 

A. Yeah, t h a t was the i n t e n t of t h i s proposal, i t ' s 

my understanding t h a t — 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And you look f u r t h e r down on t h a t 

same e x h i b i t , the next t o l a s t sentence of the second 

paragraph, i t says, " B u r l i n g t o n i s u n w i l l i n g t o accommodate 

the non-operators under the o r i g i n a l earning p r o v i s i o n due 
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t o simple economics." Do you see t h a t there? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. I s t h a t the f i r s t time t h a t p o s i t i o n was s t a t e d 

by B u r l i n g t o n t o any of the GLA-46 i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. I don't know pe r s o n a l l y t h a t t h a t was the f i r s t 

time t h a t ' s been communicated. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . But i n t h i s case, anyway, you're 

saying t h a t you couldn't abide by GLA-46 because economics 

wouldn't allow you t o do tha t ? 

A. That's what t h a t sentence says. 

Q. And you're somewhat f a m i l i a r w i t h the terms of 

GLA-46, you've read i t ? 

A. Yes, I've read i t . 

Q. The farmout agreement and o p e r a t i n g agreement? 

A. Yes, s i r , yeah. 

Q. Have you read the for c e majeure p r o v i s i o n i n t h a t 

agreement? 

A. I'm sure I've read i t . The s p e c i f i c s of i t , I 

couldn't speak w i t h you on r i g h t now, but I'm sure I have 

read i t as p a r t of my readings on i t . 

Q. There's no p r o v i s i o n i n the f o r c e majeure a r t i c l e 

which s t a t e s t h a t change i n economic c o n d i t i o n s i s a f o r c e 

majeure event, i s there? 

A. I — Again, Scott, I don't know. 

Q. Let's t u r n the tab t o Tab 69, E x h i b i t A. I t ' s a 
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l e t t e r dated August 25th, 1999, authored by you. And t h i s 

i s the withdrawal of the i n i t i a l w e l l proposal f o r the 

Brookhaven Com 8, correct? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i f you look at the t h i r d paragraph t h e r e i t 

says, " I n the near f u t u r e , B u r l i n g t o n i s planning t o m a i l 

another J o i n t Operating Agreement covering the p r o r a t i o n 

u n i t f o r t h i s w e l l and other lands p r e v i o u s l y s u bject t o 

GIA-4 6." 

A. Yes, I see t h a t . 

Q. Let me make sure I understand what B u r l i n g t o n ' s 

p o s i t i o n was, on t h a t date anyway. Were you saying t h a t 

the lands were no longer subject t o GLA-4 6? 

A. For new d r i l l i n g operations, yes, t h a t i s a 

c o r r e c t statement, t h a t we don't f e e l t h a t GLA-4 6 any 

longer had a p p l i c a b i l i t y on n e w - d r i l l proposals. That i s 

the i n t e n t of t h a t statement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . To your knowledge, was t h i s the f i r s t 

t ime t h i s p a r t i c u l a r p o s i t i o n was a r t i c u l a t e d t o the GLA-46 

i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. I do not have s p e c i f i c knowledge t h a t t h a t was 

communicated p r i o r t o t h a t , so I don't know. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s t u r n t o Tab 70 t h e r e , q u i c k l y . 

I t ' s a l e t t e r dated September 9, 1999, by Jim S t r i c k l e r t o 

Rich Corcoran a t Energen. And i f you look a t the l a s t 
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sentence of the f i r s t f u l l paragraph t h e r e i t says, 

" B u r l i n g t o n i s also prepared t o make you a cash o f f e r t o 

purchase your GLA i n t e r e s t as another a l t e r n a t i v e . " 

A. I see t h a t . 

Q. So as of September 9, 1999, anyway, B u r l i n g t o n 

regarded the GLA-46 as e x i s t i n g as t o some lands, and i t 

had some value f o r a purchase, d i d i t not? 

A. The way I i n t e r p r e t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r sentence i s 

t h a t you have a group of leases subject t o the o l d GLA-4 6. 

My i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of t h a t sentence i s simply s t a t i n g t h a t 

those lands and leases t h a t were subject t o the o r i g i n a l 

GLA-46, B u r l i n g t o n i s w i l l i n g t o e n t e r t a i n making an o f f e r 

of t h a t i n t e r e s t . I don't i n t e r p r e t t h a t any f u r t h e r than 

t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Would you know whether the GLA i n t e r e s t s 

B u r l i n g t o n was suggesting be purchased by i t were those 

o u t l i n e d i n E x h i b i t 22, the acreage and the formation l i s t ? 

A. Mr. S t r i c k l e r d i d not consult me before making 

h i s o f f e r , so again I don't have personal knowledge of what 

James's proposal s o l i c i t a t i o n s d i d or d i d not i n c l u d e . I 

don't know, again, i f i t was a l l - i n c l u s i v e or i f i t was a 

p o r t i o n of those. 

Q. Okay. Now, l e t ' s get a b e t t e r understanding of 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s c o n s t r u c t i o n and understanding of GLA-46. 

Would you t u r n t o Tab 51, E x h i b i t A? I t looks l i k e an 
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i n t e r n a l Meridian memorandum dated J u l y 26th, 1989, from 

Tom Hawkins t o Tommy Nusz. I f you look down t h e r e a t the 

bottom, numbered paragraph 2, i t says, "EPPC..." I assume 

t h a t ' s E l Paso Production Company? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. " . . . c a r r i e s Amoco, e t a l . , and recoups d r i l l i n g 

c o s t , as l i m i t e d below, out of 1/2 of each p a r t i e s ' [ s i c ] 

net working i n t e r e s t . Production from one w e l l s h a l l not 

be used t o repay d r i l l i n g costs of another w e l l . " 

I s t h a t c o n s i s t e n t w i t h your understanding of how 

GLA-46 worked? 

A. Under the s t r i n g e n t terms of GLA-4 6, t h a t i s my 

understanding. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Then i f you'd t u r n the page t h e r e , 

f o l l o w i n g the numbered paragraphs there i s an unnumbered 

paragraph and i t says, "The Agreement gives EPPC c o n t r o l of 

the acreage because the other p a r t i e s have no way t o 

propose and f o r c e w e l l s t o be d r i l l e d . " 

Now, i s t h a t c o n s i s t e n t w i t h your understanding 

of the o p e r a t i o n of GLA-4 6? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t i s . The o r i g i n a l agreement, t h a t 

i s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the o r i g i n a l agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So under any acreage where GLA-4 6 

would apply — 

A. Uh-huh — 
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Q. — Energen, f o r instance, would not have 

ownership of the executive r i g h t s ? I n other words, Energen 

cannot propose t h a t i t d r i l l and operate a w e l l , only E l 

Paso/Meridian/Burlington could? 

A. That i s my understanding, yes. 

Q. Does t h a t continue t o be B u r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n 

today, t h a t i t has the exclusive ownership of the operating 

and executive r i g h t s on the GLA-4 6 acreage? 

A. C e r t a i n l y w i t h — absent other agreements, such 

as our new proposed JOA, which would open these lands up t o 

any p a r t y making a proposal, i f you continue t o r e f e r t o 

the s t r i c t i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of GLA-46 then, yes, B u r l i n g t o n 

i s the only p a r t y t h a t can serve as operator. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o Tab 54 i n your E x h i b i t A. I t 

appears t o be a c o n t r a c t b r i e f dated June 15, 1995, Jim 

P. — Jim Parmenter? 

A. Permenter, t h a t i s c o r r e c t , uh-huh. 

Q. And i f you look i n the upper l e f t - h a n d corner 

t h e r e , i t r e f e r s t o the instrument GLA-4 6, and then what 

does i t say f o r "Status"? 

A. I t says "Active". 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Then i f you look under the heading — 

t h i s i s i n the center there -- "Rights Granted", i t says 

"Pursuant t o Operating Agreement of 11-27-51:" f i r s t e n t r y 

i s , "EPNG was o b l i g a t e d t o f u l l y develop acreage i n the 
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Mesaverde for m a t i o n . " That was Meridian's p o s i t i o n , 

c o r r e c t , as of 1990? 

A. That was Mr. Permenter's review of the a c t u a l 

c o n t r a c t i t s e l f . Again, t h a t ' s Mr. Permenter's — simply 

h i s review of the c o n t r a c t and h i s w r i t t e n summary of t h a t 

c o n t r a c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And do I have my time frame r i g h t ? 

Was i t Meridian a t the time? 

A. 1990 was Meridian, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . The next e n t r y t h e r e , i t says "EPNG 

has a u t h o r i t y t o d r i l l a l l w e l l s w i t h o u t consent of other 

p a r t i e s . " Do you see t h a t there? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And t h a t was Meridian's p o s i t i o n a t the time, and 

from what I understand of your testimony here t o n i g h t , i t 

continues t o be Burli n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n ? 

A. Yeah, our p o s i t i o n has not changed under the 

s t r i c t i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of t h a t contact. I f you go back and 

read i t , t h a t i s provided i n the c o n t r a c t . 

Q. Okay. Let's go t o Tab 60, i f you would, please, 

s i r . 

A. Okay. 

MR. HALL: For the record, Mr. Examiner, I would 

note t h a t t h i s i s not a document produced by B u r l i n g t o n t o 

me. I t ' s one of the documents t h a t came forward i n 
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connection w i t h the Marcotte 2 w e l l i n 1996 — 1997, 

r a t h e r . Just so the record i s c l e a r on t h a t . I don't 

t h i n k there's going t o be any dispute about i t s 

a u t h e n t i c i t y . 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Nichols, look a t t h a t e x h i b i t . 

I t appears t o be a l e t t e r dated May 22, 1997, authored by 

Mr. S t r i c k l e r , t o T o t a l Minatome Corporation, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I f you look a t t h a t f i r s t f u l l paragraph a f t e r 

the numbered paragraph 2, i t says, " H i s t o r i c a l l y , i t i s 

c l e a r t h a t the November 27, 1951, farmout/operating 

agreement, known as GLA-4 6, covered the P i c t u r e d C l i f f s and 

Mesaverde formations." Do you see t h a t there? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. You don't disagree w i t h t h a t ? 

A. No, I don't dispute the o r i g i n a l c o n t r a c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Then i t goes on t o say, s k i p a 

sentence, "This agreement was never intended t o cover deep 

gas e x p l o r a t i o n as i n d i c a t e d by past experience." 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do you agree w i t h that? 

A. I have never delved i n t o the matter t h a t Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r has as f a r as i t s a p p l i c a b i l i t y on deep r i g h t s , 

so I would be r e l u c t a n t t o o f f e r an o p i n i o n on whether i t 

covered any depths. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . Well, as you say, you've examined the 

terms of GLA-4 6. I s n ' t i t accurate t o say t h a t where 

d r i l l i n g t o a formation outside the Mesaverde i s 

contemplated and the costs of d r i l l i n g t o t h a t new 

for m a t i o n have not been addressed, then the p a r t i e s are t o 

ne g o t i a t e those costs? 

A. I concur t h a t obviously the shallower producing 

horizons have been covered i n cost agreements through the 

years. How they intended, or i f i t was contemplated under 

the o r i g i n a l agreement, t o cover deep gas, I have no idea 

i f the — what the t h i n k i n g of the p a r t i e s were a t t h a t 

time. 

Q. I s i t accurate t o say t h a t E l Paso/Meridian/ 

B u r l i n g t o n , as the operator under GLA-4 6, had an o b l i g a t i o n 

under the c o n t r a c t i t s e l f t o t r y t o n e g o t i a t e costs f o r 

those non-Mesaverde formations, shallow or deep? 

A. To my knowledge, B u r l i n g t o n d i d not have an 

o b l i g a t i o n t o make any n e g o t i a t i o n s as t o other horizons 

t h a t were not covered i n the agreement, t o my knowledge. 

Q. Let me make sure I understand what your p o s i t i o n 

i s , then. So GLA-46 wa applied t o Mesaverde formation 

only? 

A. No, my p o s i t i o n , I t h i n k , i n response t o your 

question was, was i t contemplated i n the agreement t h a t f o r 

any deep gas t h a t may have been contemplated under the 
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agreement — and I'm t r y i n g t o rephrase your question, 

c o r r e c t me i f I'm wrong, Mr. H a l l — t h a t B u r l i n g t o n was 

under an o b l i g a t i o n t o go t o the non-operators under t h a t 

agreement and attempt t o negotiate deep-gas costs. 

To my knowledge, the agreement does not inc l u d e 

t h a t p r o v i s i o n . To my knowledge, i t does not. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Well, l e t ' s — I f we don't consider 

the deep gas — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — as was involved w i t h the Marcotte — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — and Scott w e l l s , say a shallower formation or 

a Dakota forma t i o n , i s n ' t i t accurate t o say i n those cases 

where d r i l l i n g t o those non-Mesaverde formations was 

contemplated, the operator had an o b l i g a t i o n under the 

GIA-4 6 c o n t r a c t t o get together w i t h the p a r t i e s and t r y t o 

n e g o t i a t e w e l l costs? 

A. Again, Mr. H a l l , unless i t was s p e c i f i c a l l y 

contemplated i n the o l d agreement, and unless the costs 

were set out, I'm not sure t h a t B u r l i n g t o n or San Juan or 

any of our p r e d e c e s s o r s - i n - t i t l e had an o b l i g a t i o n t o make 

a n e g o t i a t i o n . I don't know t h a t . I've never s p e c i f i c a l l y 

seen t h a t i n anything t h a t I've read i n the c o n t r a c t f i l e . 

Q. Okay. Let's t u r n back t o Tab 58. 

A. Okay. 
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Q. And a f t e r we j u s t saw Mr. S t r i c k l e r ' s 

r e p r e s e n t a t i o n t h a t GLA-4 6 was never intended t o apply t o 

deep r i g h t s , l e t ' s look a t E x h i b i t A-58. I t appears t o be 

a l e t t e r from Michael Cunninghan, dated January 14, 1997. 

F i r s t of a l l , l e t me ask you, do you know Mr. Cunningham? 

A. Yes, s i r , I do. 

Q. He's who everybody c a l l s "Cutter", r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And he does t i t l e work f o r Burlington? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And on January 14, 1997, i f you look a t the l a s t 

sentence of the f i r s t paragraph, would i t appear t h a t 

B u r l i n g t o n was advised t h a t GLA-4 6 covers a l l depths? 

A. Mr. Cunningham's second sentence, the f i r s t 

paragraph, does s t a t e t h a t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So t h a t ' s i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h what Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r s a i d l a t e r , as evidenced by E x h i b i t 60, when he 

communicated t o T o t a l Minatome, GLA-4 6 owner? 

A. No, I disagree w i t h your c o n t e n t i o n t h e r e . I 

t h i n k t h a t i f the agreement was intended t o contemplate 

deep gas, then the agreement would have s p e c i f i c a l l y 

referenced some cost o b l i g a t i o n s under t h a t . So I can't 

argue w i t h Mr. S t r i c k l e r ' s sentence there t h a t i t was never 

intended. 

Now, t o take t h a t back t o Mr. Cunningham's 
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i n t e r p r e t a t i o n t h a t there's no depth l i m i t a t i o n s , I don't 

you can apply Cutter's sentence t o Mr. S t r i c k l e r ' s 

sentence. At l e a s t I c e r t a i n l y would not, i n my review of 

those two sentences. I t h i n k whether or not t h e r e were 

v e r t i c a l l i m i t s on the operating agreement, and whether or 

not t h a t o p e r a t i n g agreement s p e c i f i c a l l y contemplated deep 

gas, I t h i n k , are two d i f f e r e n t issues. And I don't — I 

t h i n k t h a t both sentences i n Mr. Cunningham's l e t t e r — h i s 

sentence. 

And I also — My personal opini o n i s t h a t Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r ' s h i g h l i g h t e d sentence i n May 22, 1997, i s 

c o r r e c t . That's my personal opini o n of t h a t l e t t e r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , f a i r enough. Look f u r t h e r on down i n 

Mr. Cunningham's l e t t e r . He says, " . . . B u r l i n g t o n has 

complete c o n t r o l over the development of the acreage, but 

most provide and then recoup the working i n t e r e s t owners' 

percentage of costs f o r a l l operations." Do you agree t h a t 

t h a t i s the proper operation of GLA-4 6? 

A. I agree w i t h Mr. Cunningham's review of GLA-4 6. 

Q. Okay. Let's look at Tab 57. And again, Mr. 

Examiner, t h i s document does not have a Bates stamp number. 

I t ' s not included among those produced t o my by Mr. 

K e l l a h i n . But i t i s a Meridian document. 

I t appears t o be a l e t t e r dated October 23, 1992, 

from John Zent, of Meridian, t o the GLA-46 p a r t i e s , r i g h t ? 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f you look a t the second 

sentence of the f i r s t paragraph i t says, "Meridian w i l l 

d r i l l t h i s w e l l . . . " r e f e r r i n g t o the Scott IR. "Meridian 

w i l l d r i l l t h i s pursuant t o the terms and c o n d i t i o n s of 

t h a t c e r t a i n J o i n t Operating agreement dated November 27, 

1951." 

And t h a t same paragraph goes on t o e x p l a i n how 

recoupment of the maximum w e l l costs of $45,000 from 50 

percent revenue stream i s accomplished. 

Do you agree t h a t t h a t was the proper operation 

of GLA-46, Meridian's p o s i t i o n as of 1992, anyway? 

A. Mr. Zent, a t the time he proposed t h i s l e t t e r , 

s t a t e d t h a t he would be w i l l i n g t o d r i l l t h a t , the Scott 

IR, under the terms of the 11-27-51 agreement, i f he could 

amend i t t o allow f o r adequate cost recovery. 

Q. I see. 

A. So again, i t ' s not i n c o n s i s t e n t t h a t by unanimous 

agreement the p a r t i e s agreed t o d r i l l another w e l l . 

Q. So i t appears i n t h a t case, from a review of t h i s 

document, t h a t once again Meridian o f f e r e d the GLA-46 

p a r t i e s a couple of options. One, they could s i g n a new 

JOA f o r the Scott IR, f i r s t o p t i o n . 

Would execution of the new JOA e f f e c t i v e l y 

release and replace GLA-46 as t o a d r i l l i n g u n i t ? 
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A. Mr. H a l l , are you s t i l l r e f e r r i n g t o the — 

Q. E x h i b i t 57. 

A. Under the Option A, p a r t i c i p a t e i n and pay f o r 

the costs of d r i l l i n g at the t e s t w e l l , i s t h e r e — I'm not 

f o l l o w i n g you. 

Q. Yeah, I'm s o r r y . I f you look a t the f i r s t page 

t h e r e , t h a t second paragraph t h a t says execute a new JOA. 

A. Okay, I f o l l o w you now. 

Q. Yeah. And — 

A. My i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of t h a t would be t h a t , yes, i f 

these p a r t i e s entered i n t o a new j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement, 

t h a t more than l i k e l y — Again, I'm p u r e l y s p e c u l a t i n g 

here, because I have not seen t h a t p a r t i c u l a r j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement. But my assumption would be t h a t Mr. 

Zent would have put some supersede language i n h i s — So 

I — again, speculation. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Then the a l t e r n a t i v e o p t i o n , again on 

the f i r s t page t h e r e , i s t h a t — amend the November 27, 

1951, o p e r a t i n g agreement t o allow Meridian a v e h i c l e t o 

recoup 100 percent of a c t u a l d r i l l i n g costs, according t o 

the AFE? 

A. Okay. 

Q. And t h a t was the other option? 

A. Yes, okay. 

Q. Whoever t h i s was sent t o , i t looks l i k e they sai d 
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"Do not execute" t h e i r r i g h t ? 

\ 

A. Yes, t h a t i s noted on the l e t t e r I've got r i g h t 

here. 

Q. Let me r e f e r you t o E x h i b i t A - l , under Tab 1 

t h e r e . That's the farmout and operating agreement. That 

i s GLA-46, r i g h t ? 

A. Just a moment. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Yes, t h a t does appear t o be the o r i g i n a l farmout 

agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f you t u r n t o page 1 of E x h i b i t 

B, t h a t ' s the operating agreement i t s e l f ? 

A. I'm sorry? 

Q. I f you page t o — I'm s o r r y , t u r n t o page 1 of 

E x h i b i t "B", the operating agreement i t s e l f . Are you w i t h 

me there? I t ' s — 

A. Page 1 of E x h i b i t 1? 

Q. E x h i b i t "B" i s p a r t of E x h i b i t 1. 

A. Oh, okay, l e t me f i n d t h a t . Okay, yes, I agree 

t h a t t h a t i s the operating agreement. 

Q. Look a t numbered paragraph 1 a t the bottom of the 

page t h e r e . As you have p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d here today, 

i t looks l i k e t h a t p r o v i s i o n provides f o r the t r a n s f e r and 

assignment of San Juan's operating r i g h t s t o — I'm s o r r y , 

Brookhaven t r a n s f e r s i t s operating r i g h t s t o San Juan, 
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c o r r e c t ? 

A. I agree w i t h t h a t . 

Q. And t h a t ' s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h your e a r l i e r testimony 

t h a t you b e l i e v e B u r l i n g t o n t o be the owner of e x c l u s i v e 

o p e r a t i n g r i g h t s f o r the GLA-4 6 acreage? 

A. Yeah, under the — Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Then keep on t u r n i n g pages, paragraph 4 t h e r e — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — t h a t ' s the d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n we've been 

t a l k i n g about. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Turn t o page 4, a c o n t i n u a t i o n of t h a t same 

paragraph 4.b., the d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n , I w i l l paraphrase. 

I t h i n k we've discussed, the language speaks f o r i t s e l f , 

but i t says a f t e r the 18 w e l l s or whatever the d r i l l i n g 

o b l i g a t i o n i s has been s a t i s f i e d , the operator " s h a l l 

reassign or r e l i n q u i s h the u n d r i l l e d l o c a t i o n s or the 

r i g h t s t o a l l formations u n d r i l l e d or non-producing on 

those l o c a t i o n s . " Do you see t h a t there? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Has B u r l i n g t o n released any of the d r i l l i n g 

l o c a t i o n s under GLA-46? 

A. To my knowledge, no, we have not. But t h a t ' s 

again, j u s t my own take. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f you continue on, t u r n t o page 
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5 t h e r e , look a t paragraph 4.f., again, i t ' s a r e i t e r a t i o n 

of the release and relinquishment o b l i g a t i o n , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yeah, i t ' s very — I t ' s s i m i l a r language. 

Q. Okay. And i f you t u r n t o page 7, i f you look a t 

paragraph 5 . d . l . t h e r e , and t h a t ' s — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — we've discussed i n p a r t t o n i g h t , t h a t 

addresses the w e l l - c o s t issue, and i t was the i n i t i a l 

p r o v i s i o n f o r recoupment of Mesaverde — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — o f , a t t h a t time, $45,000? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And there's no dispute t h a t t h a t was l a t e r 

amended t o increase the number t o $90,000, co r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I f you look a t paragraph 5.d.2. on page 8 of t h a t 

e x h i b i t i t says, "IN the event any w e l l be d r i l l e d upon 

s a i d acreage t o a greater or lesser depth than a Mesa Verde 

w e l l , the d r i l l i n g costs (except casing t o be f u r n i s h e d by 

San Juan) t o be paid out of production by Brookhaven s h a l l 

be determined p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y w i t h the p a r t i e s agreeing 

upon a maximum cost comparable t o the maximum of a Mesa 

Verde w e l l , as defined i n Section 5dl above." 

A. Okay. 

Q. So t h a t ' s somewhat a t issue i n t h i s proceeding, 
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c o r r e c t ? 

A. I'm sorry? 

Q. That p a r t i c u l a r paragraph i s a t issue, the w e l l -

cost issue, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s one of the concerns t h a t we have, i s 

the — 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. — the a c t u a l cost. 

Q. Now, i n the case of the Brookhaven w e l l s proposed 

by B u r l i n g t o n i n 1998 and 1999, t o your knowledge, d i d 

B u r l i n g t o n ever attempt t o re n e g o t i a t e the costs according 

t o paragraph 5.d.2. and as i t incorporates paragraph 

5.d.1.? 

A. I'm not sure t h a t the paragraph t h a t ' s l a b e l e d as 

number 2 on page 8 f o r the Mesaverde side, I don't know 

t h a t i t ' s a p p l i c a b l e . Did we make an attempt t o ne g o t i a t e 

a c t u a l costs f o r the Chacra? Absolutely, the same as we 

d i d as the Mesaverde. As we c l e a r l y i d e n t i f i e d under two 

op t i o n s , we c e r t a i n l y made an attempt t o n e g o t i a t e w e l l 

costs. 

Q. I t i s not i n dispute, i s i t , t h a t the agreed w e l l 

cost f o r Mesaverde w e l l s under GLA-46 c o n t r a c t i s $90,000 

now? 

A. No, I don't dispute t h a t t h a t was the l a s t 

amendment encompassing the e n t i r e c o n t r a c t . I don't 
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d i s p u t e t h a t . Other w e l l s have been d r i l l e d under 

d i f f e r e n t circumstances, c e r t a i n l y , but as f a r as an a c t u a l 

amendment t o the c o n t r a c t , I don't dispute t h a t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's r e f e r now t o , i n E x h i b i t A, Tab 

50, and t h a t appears t o be a l e t t e r dated December 7, 1987, 

by Tom Hawkins, senior landman f o r Meridian a t the time, t o 

working i n t e r e s t owners, and i t says regarding farmout 

agreement and operating agreement, the GLA-4 6 agreement. 

A. Okay. 

Q. And would i t appear t h a t t h i s l e t t e r sought the 

amendment of GLA-46 t o provide f o r gas balancing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And I don't t h i n k i t ' s disputed t h a t the GLA-46 

was amended and a l l p a r t i e s agreed t o in c o r p o r a t e the gas 

balancing agreement. Do you dispute t h a t ? 

A. No, I don't dispute t h a t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Under t h a t l e t t e r i t shows i n E x h i b i t 

"E", the gas balancing agreement i t s e l f . To your 

knowledge, does t h i s appear t o be what everybody agreed to? 

A. Yeah, from memory, t h a t c e r t a i n l y looks t o be the 

same agreement. 

Q. Okay. Look a t the l a s t page, l a s t paragraph of 

the gas balancing agreement amendment. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I t says th e r e , "This agreement s h a l l remain i n 
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f o r c e and e f f e c t as long as the operating agreement i s i n 

e f f e c t . " 

Q. Okay. 

Q. Would t h a t mean t o you t h a t as long as GLA-4 6 i s 

i n e f f e c t and a p p l i e s t o the subject lands, then gas 

balancing applies? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s how I would i n t e r p r e t t h a t . 

Q. So B u r l i n g t o n as operator of a l l t h a t acreage 

could e f f e c t gas balancing among the i n t e r e s t owners? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s my i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of t h a t . 

Q. That i s , unless the u n d r i l l e d l o c a t i o n s are no 

longer subject t o GLA-46. Would t h a t be accurate? 

A. Yeah, I t h i n k i f we entered i n t o a l t e r n a t i v e 

agreements f o r u n d r i l l e d l o c a t i o n s , then yes, t h a t would be 

accurate. 

Now, i f we made amendments — i f we agreed by 

unanimous consent t o d r i l l the w e l l s under agreed-upon 

costs and we amended i t , then my i n t e r p r e t a t i o n would be 

t h a t t h i s gas balancing agreement would apply t o any 

amended l o c a t i o n t h a t we d r i l l e d , i f there was a new 

o p e r a t i n g agreement t h a t covered — For instance, i f we had 

success and we submitted a brand-new JOA and along w i t h 

t h a t JOA we submitted a gas balancing agreement, I t h i n k 

t h a t the gas balancing agreement t h a t would be associated 

w i t h the new JOA would be the one t h a t ' s i n e f f e c t . 
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Q. Okay. There's no dispute t h a t under the GLA-46 

acreage, anyway, there are some u n d r i l l e d Dakota l o c a t i o n s , 

P i c t u r e d C l i f f s l o c a t i o n s , perhaps some F r u i t l a n d Coal 

l o c a t i o n s ? 

A. I don't p i c k w e l l l o c a t i o n s , so I'm a t a loss t o 

speak w i t h c e r t a i n t y . But I t h i n k as evidenced r i g h t here, 

t h e r e are some l o c a t i o n s t h a t are developable. 

Q. Okay. I s i t B u r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n t h a t those 

u n d r i l l e d and undeveloped l o c a t i o n s are sub j e c t t o gas 

balancing under the amendment t o GLA-46? 

A. I would be h e s i t a n t t o o f f e r an o p i n i o n on t h a t . 

Q. Okay. I f B u r l i n g t o n succeeds i n o b t a i n i n g the 

r e l i e f i t requests under the two A p p l i c a t i o n s , i t s 

compulsory p o o l i n g of the lands, the gas balancing 

agreement under GLA-46 would not apply, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Again, Mr. H a l l , I t h i n k t h a t ' s an i n t e r p r e t a t i o n 

f o r B u r l i n g t o n ' s l e g a l counsel, and I would o f f e r no 

op i n i o n on t h a t . 

MR. HALL: That concludes my cross, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: A couple of p o i n t s , Mr. Examiner. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Nichols, would you t u r n w i t h me t o document 

51? 
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A. Okay. 

Q. Would you t u r n t o the second page? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Mr. H a l l was discussing w i t h you the f i r s t f u l l 

paragraph below the Number 4. Do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. He omitted drawing your a t t e n t i o n t o the l a s t 

sentence. Would you read the l a s t sentence? 

A. The l a s t sentence, "This i s what was done on the 

Scott ~ " 

Q. No, s i r — Yeah, r i g h t . 

A. "This i s what was done on the Scott w e l l s . 

U n f o r t u n a t e l y , each time we wish t o d r i l l a w e l l , we have 

t o amend the Agreement." 

Q. Would you t u r n w i t h me t o document 54? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Mr. H a l l discussed w i t h you some of the items on 

the f i r s t page. I f y o u ' l l t u r n t o the t h i r d page, t h e r e i s 

a l i s t of amendments. 

A. Okay. 

Q. S t a r t i n g w i t h Amendment 13 i n 1973. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I t says "Subject of Amendment". The s u b j e c t of 

those amendments i s t o change the costs or the c a r r y i n g 

p o r t i o n s of the o r i g i n a l 1951 agreement? 
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A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Does B u r l i n g t o n intend t o d r i l l these proposed 

w e l l s , s ubject t o the $90,000 p r i c e - c e i l i n g cap and the 

c a r r y p r o v i s i o n s of the 1951 agreement? 

A. Abso l u t e l y not. 

MR. KELLAHIN: No f u r t h e r questions. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. H a l l , do you have anything 

else? 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Let me ask you about your E x h i b i t 3 f o r Case 

12,276. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I t ' s your chronology of events. 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i t says — Well, i t s t a t e s a c t i o n s of Cross 

Timbers O i l Company, August of 1998, i t says they e l e c t e d 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e u n c o n d i t i o n a l l y and signed a new JOA. 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. So as I understand your e a r l i e r testimony, as t o 

Cross Timbers anyway, f o r t h i s w e l l anyway, GLA-46 i s 

released? 

A. Note t h a t the j o i n t operating agreement t h a t ' s 

r e f e r r e d t o i n t h a t p a r t i c u l a r e n t r y , August 26, 1998, i s 

t h a t Cross Timbers executed the signature page t o the j o i n t 
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o p e r a t i n g agreement dated J u l y 29th, 1998. 

Subsequently, we withdrew t h a t proposal and 

reproposed the w e l l s under a new j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement. 

Under our subsequent proposal, Cross Timbers has signed the 

AFE as agent f o r Merchant Resources. And the o p e r a t i n g 

agreement — The l a s t I understood from Mr. George Cox at 

Cross Timbers was t h a t the operating agreement had been 

forwarded t o Merchant f o r t h e i r review and p o s s i b l e 

execution. 

So — and again, I'm — Mr. K e l l a h i n and I had a 

disc u s s i o n yesterday whether or not, absent a j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement, even though they are i n the w e l l and 

are going t o pay a c t u a l costs, t h a t I w i l l l e t Mr. K e l l a h i n 

work out as f a r as whether or not they're s u b j e c t t o the 

p o o l i n g order i f issued. 

Q. Whether the Merchant Resources, LP, i n t e r e s t — 

I s t h a t what you're speaking of? 

A. I'm sorry? 

Q. The question i s whether or not the Merchant 

Resources i s subject t o the JOA? 

A. Well, not subject t o the JOA, but they've agreed 

t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n the w e l l . Now the question i s , absent 

t h e i r execution of the JOA, are they going t o be subject t o 

a p o o l i n g p r o v i s i o n ? Mr. K e l l a h i n was going t o work t h a t 

out. I do not know the answer t o t h a t . 
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Q. I understand what you mean. Anyway, w i t h respect 

t o the Cross Timbers i n t e r e s t — and then you also 

i n d i c a t e d t h a t Amoco had p a r t i c i p a t e d under your JOA, 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. They have signed the new j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement, yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Can you t e l l us about the 

n e g o t i a t i o n s t h a t were had w i t h each of those p a r t i e s t h a t 

l e d up t o the execution? 

A. I can't speak t o the blanket j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreement. Mr. S t r i c k l e r proposed t h a t , handled a l l the 

n e g o t i a t i o n s on t h a t . I can t e l l you t h a t the j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement which I o r i g i n a l l y submitted w i t h the 

Brookhaven Com 8, Cross Timbers' execution of t h a t was not 

su b j e c t t o any c o n d i t i o n a l l e t t e r s of acceptance. Let me 

v e r i f y t h a t by t h e i r e l e c t i o n here. 

I f you can t u r n back several pages, back t o Cross 

Timbers, we've enclosed a copy of the sign a t u r e page where 

they signed the j o i n t o perating agreement t h a t was 

o r i g i n a l l y included i n our proposal, and t h e r e are no 

c o n d i t i o n a l — nothing t o note t h a t they were s i g n i n g t h i s 

c o n d i t i o n a l l y , as p r e t t y much standard i n d u s t r y p r a c t i c e . 

So my assumption, again, based on t h a t and based from 

memory, was, they d i d not make any amendments t o the j o i n t 

o p e r a t i n g agreement we proposed. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . Did e i t h e r Amoco or Cross Timbers 

re c e i v e any other c o n s i d e r a t i o n or other concessions i n 

exchange f o r executing the JOA on the GLA-4 6 acreage? 

A. On t h i s proposal t h a t I had f i r s t - h a n d knowledge 

o f , a b s o l u t e l y not. Second-hand knowledge, I've heard Mr. 

S t r i c k l e r s t a t e very s t r o n g l y , as probably Rich has i n 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s meeting, t h a t Amoco was not compensated i n any 

format by B u r l i n g t o n f o r execution. They want development 

t o occur on these lands, t h a t ' s what they want. They don't 

want them s i t t i n g down here i n fo r c e p o o l i n g proceedings 

a l l the time. 

Q. So i t ' s your testimony, as f a r as you know, there 

was no acreage exchange? 

A. Absolutely not. 

Q. Amoco was not allowed t o operate under acreage 

w i t h the GLA-46 acreage? 

A. Amoco — The blanket j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreement 

t h a t Amoco signed would allow them t o propose and operate. 

I t ' s a t y p i c a l 1982 form JOA which would allow other 

p a r t i e s t o propose operations. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. They were not compensated i n any format f o r t h e i r 

s i g n a t u r e , they want development out here. 

Q. And as you've t e s t i f i e d e a r l i e r , they would not 

have had the r i g h t t o do t h a t under GLA-46 because 
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B u r l i n g t o n had exclusive c o n t r o l of operating r i g h t s ? 

A. Under GLA-46, t h a t i s c o r r e c t , yeah. 

MR. HALL: Okay. Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, s i r . 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER ASHLEY: 

Q. I have t o r e f r e s h my memory here. I n E x h i b i t 3 

of 12,276, a t one p o i n t B u r l i n g t o n ' s o f f e r was t o j u s t 

recover t h e i r expenses wi t h o u t any pen a l t y ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . Under l e t t e r dated September 18th of 

1998, B u r l i n g t o n d i d provide two options under which we 

would be w i l l i n g t o d r i l l t h a t . One of the options — and 

again, the — "Enter i n t o a modern form J o i n t Operating 

Agreement and e i t h e r p a r t i c i p a t e or non-consent..." 

The second o p t i o n would have been, " B u r l i n g t o n 

w i l l v o l u n t a r i l y c a r r y your d r i l l i n g , completing and 

equipping costs i n the referenced w e l l . . . " s u b ject t o 

simple 100-percent payout out of 100 percent of the c a r r i e d 

i n t e r e s t revenue stream. 

Q. Okay, now — So help me out here. Where does 

t h a t o f f e r stand? 

A. By l e t t e r dated — Oh, l e t me f i n d i t , j u s t a 

moment here. By l e t t e r dated August 25th, 1999 — 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. — B u r l i n g t o n advised a l l owners, nonoperating 

owners, i n the proposed d r i l l i n g u n i t t h a t — i f you're 

l o o k i n g a t t h a t l e t t e r , i n the second paragraph, I've — i t 

was bolded: "As such, t h i s l e t t e r i s t o advise t h a t 

B u r l i n g t o n hereby withdraws i t s o f f e r t o d r i l l and complete 

the referenced w e l l under the p a r t i c i p a t i o n options 

o u t l i n e d i n our l e t t e r dated September 18th, 1998." 

So a t t h a t p o i n t i n time, we withdrew a l l 

proposals t h a t were outstanding on the Brookhaven Com 8. 

Q. And t h a t ' s why you're here today? 

A. Yes, s i r . I f we could have — I f the f o l k s i n 

the o i l patch would have p a r t i c i p a t e d and paid t h e i r way, 

we would not be here today. We would have d r i l l e d the w e l l 

under the options i n the September 18th, 1998, l e t t e r . But 

we cannot economically develop these p r o j e c t s t o the 

b e n e f i t of our nonoperators. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: I have nothing f u r t h e r . You 

may be excused. 

And l e t ' s take a break. 

(Off the record) 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: We'll recess f o r 30 minutes and 

come back a t approximately 7:35. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken at 7:03 p.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 7:38 p.m.) 
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EXAMINER ASHLEY: This hearing w i l l now come t o 

order. 

Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , c a l l Mr. Ralph Nelms. 

Mr. Examiner, we are r e f e r r i n g t o the E x h i b i t Tab 

6 i n each of the books. The i n f o r m a t i o n i s i d e n t i c a l , so 

w e ' l l simply s e l e c t one of the books. 

RALPH L. NELMS. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Nelms, f o r the record, s i r , would you please 

s t a t e your name and occupation? 

A. My name i s Ralph Nelms, senior r e s e r v o i r 

engineer, B u r l i n g t o n Resources, Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. As p a r t of your employment r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s as a 

petroleum engineer f o r B u r l i n g t o n , have you made an 

examination and economic an a l y s i s of the p o t e n t i a l 

consequences of d r i l l i n g t h i s Mesaverde w e l l and the other 

w e l l s i n v o l v e d i n t h i s case under various assumptions and 

scenarios? 

A. I have, and the r e s u l t s of those f i n d i n g s are 

shown i n the e x h i b i t books under E x h i b i t 6 i n the very 

back. 
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Q. That economic analysis t h a t you prepared f o r 

these w e l l s , i s t h a t the type of a n a l y s i s t h a t you would 

c u s t o m a r i l y perform f o r your company f o r other s i m i l a r 

w ells? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. This i s not unique j u s t t o t h i s case, i s i t ? 

A. No, i t i s not. 

Q. As a r e s u l t of your e f f o r t s , were you able t o 

a s s i m i l a t e s u f f i c i e n t i n f o r m a t i o n t o come t o reasonable 

engineering conclusions t h a t have s u b s t a n t i a l p r o b a b i l i t y 

of being accurate? 

A. I was. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Nelms as an expert 

petroleum engineer. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Nelms i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) As p a r t of your study, Mr. 

Nelms, do you have a recommendation t o the Examiner as t o 

the a p p r o p r i a t e r i s k f a c t o r penalty t o be a p p l i e d f o r each 

of the w e l l s i n these two cases? 

A. I do, and my recommendation i s the maximum 

allo w a b l e penalty which the D i v i s i o n can assign, and t h a t 

i s 200-percent penalty. 

Q. As p a r t of your a n a l y s i s , d i d you address the 

question as t o whether or not i f subject t o the l i m i t a t i o n s 

set f o r t h i n the c a r r y i n g p r o v i s i o n s and the cost c e i l i n g s 
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i n the November, 1951, GLA-4 6 agreements, what would be the 

consequence of doing that? You have come t o a conclusion, 

have you not? 

A. Yes. C e r t a i n l y t h a t the economics associated 

w i t h d r i l l i n g under the c o n d i t i o n s of GLA-4 6 would not 

al l o w us t o proceed w i t h the d r i l l i n g of these w e l l s . I t 

would be uneconomic. 

Q. Let's t u r n t o the l a s t e n t r i e s i n the e x h i b i t 

book, E x h i b i t 6, and look at the two spreadsheets. There's 

a two-page spreadsheet and the f i r s t spreadsheet. I t says 

a summary of f i n d i n g s f o r the Brookhaven 8, 8A, the B3B 

w e l l , economic evaluations. This i s your work product, i s 

i t not? 

A. Correct. 

Q. I n order t o a r r i v e a t these conclusions, were you 

able t o , w i t h i n reasonable engineering judgments, assess 

what you thought t o be the appropriate costs of the wells? 

A. I was. 

Q. Were you able t o determine i n your expectations 

as an engineer what might be the recovery from these wells? 

A. I was. 

Q. As p a r t of your a n a l y s i s , were you able t o 

conclude t h a t these were marginal wells? 

A. The 8, the Brookhaven 8 and 8A, are i n an area 

where the w e l l s are marginal. The Brookhaven 3 B3 i s i n a 
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more p r o l i f i c area w i t h higher reserves. 

Q. You took a l l those v a r i a b l e s i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n 

when you ran your economic analysis? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Let's look a t the f i r s t spreadsheet. This i s a l l 

your work, r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. On the top of the spreadsheet we have numbered 

some of the columns, and they s t a r t w i t h number 1 and they 

proceed from l e f t t o r i g h t , t o column 9. 

I want t o deal j u s t w i t h the row t h a t deals w i t h 

the Brookhaven B 3B w e l l , the top row, and we w i l l deal 

w i t h each of the columns, and then the Examiner can see the 

same methodology t h a t ' s applied f o r the Brookhaven 8A and 

the 8 w e l l . So l e t ' s use the 1 as a type example. 

I n column 1 f o r the Brookhaven B 3B w e l l , t h e r e 

i s a d o l l a r amount associated w i t h t h a t column. I t says 

$386,000. What does t h a t represent? 

A. That i s the t o t a l c a p i t a l investment t o d r i l l and 

complete the Brookhaven 3 — B3B w e l l , d r i l l i n g and 

completion cost. 

Q. When we look a t t h i s spreadsheet, you have 

d i v i d e d i t so t h a t the upper p o r t i o n r e f e r s t o the analyzed 

p r o f i t t h a t B u r l i n g t o n would r e a l i z e under v a r i o u s 

assumptions, true? 
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A. Correct. 

Q. The bottom p a r t of the spreadsheet r e f l e c t s what 

would be the advantages and disadvantages t o the GLA-46 

group, r i g h t ? 

A. Correct, t h a t i s t h e i r cash f l o w from the w e l l s 

based on t h e i r working i n t e r e s t i n the w e l l s . 

Q. I n order t o look a t p r o f i t , you have a 10-percent 

discount, and you've got some a f t e r - t a x f a c t o r s i n here, 

true? 

A. Correct, these are a f t e r - t a x values. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f we look at the $386,000 investment 

and we look over a t column 2, and you're d e a l i n g w i t h 100 

percent of the working i n t e r e s t , the net-revenue i n t e r e s t , 

the t o t a l p o t e n t i a l p r o f i t f o r a l l working i n t e r e s t owners 

f o r t h i s w e l l , a f t e r they recover the costs of the w e l l , i s 

what amount? 

A. That would be $312,000. 

Q. Okay. I f B u r l i n g t o n , i n column 3, makes i t s 

investment f o r i t s percentage and i s not sub j e c t t o having 

t o c a r r y any of the GLA-4 6 investment, and they p a r t i c i p a t e 

i n a conventional way, what i s the p o t e n t i a l p r o f i t t o 

Bur l i n g t o n ? 

A. The investment would be $196,000 f o r B u r l i n g t o n ' s 

50.9-percent working i n t e r e s t . That $196,000 investment 

would generate a p r o f i t of $158,000. 
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Q. So you have t o l i n k 3 and 4 together, and 4 

represents the p r o f i t ? 

A. For B u r l i n g t o n ' s share of t h e i r w o r k i n g - i n t e r e s t 

investment i n the w e l l . 

Q. And t h a t would be done under a modern sharing 

arrangement from a j o i n t o perating agreement where each 

working i n t e r e s t owner pays t h e i r share, and B u r l i n g t o n has 

t o pay only i t s share and c a r r i e s no other i n t e r e s t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I f you're re q u i r e d t o d r i l l and produce t h i s w e l l 

under the GLA-46 1951 agreement, do you have a column t h a t 

r e f l e c t s the consequence t o Burlington? 

A. That would be shown as column 6. 

Q. And what does i t show? 

A. I t shows t h a t under the GLA-46, i f we c a r r i e d the 

GLA-46 i n t e r e s t owners, we would only generate a p r o f i t of 

$53,000 on our investment of $386,000. 

Q. So under a modern arrangement you would have 

$158,000, under the 1951 agreement you only get $53,000 

p r o f i t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Correspondingly, go down t o the GLA-4 6 e n t r y f o r 

column 6 and t e l l me what happens, f i r s t of a l l , i n column 

5 w i t h t h e i r investment. What investment are they making? 

A. I f they're c a r r i e d , they have zero investment, 
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zero d o l l a r s investment. 

Q. I n exchange f o r t h a t c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t , using the 

payback p r o v i s i o n s under column 6 f o r the o l d c o n t r a c t , 

what i s GLA-46's p r o f i t ? 

A. They would r e a l i z e a p r o f i t of $259,000 on an 

investment of zero d o l l a r s , being c a r r i e d f u l l y i n the 

w e l l . 

Q. I s t h i s an economic scenario where B u r l i n g t o n 

w i l l be able t o d r i l l these w e l l s and c a r r y these i n t e r e s t 

owners? 

A. No, t h a t ' s why we've not done t h i s t o t h i s p o i n t 

i n time. 

Q. Okay. I f the D i v i s i o n enters a compulsory 

p o o l i n g order and B u r l i n g t o n i s r e q u i r e d t o pay the t o t a l 

cost o f the w e l l , what l e v e l of penalty allows B u r l i n g t o n 

t o approximate a p o s i t i o n i t would be i n , had i t not been 

r e q u i r e d t o c a r r y these i n t e r e s t owners under the o l d 

con t r a c t ? 

A. That penalty would be the maximum of 2 00 percent. 

Q. And what number does t h a t generate? 

A. That would generate a p r o f i t t o B u r l i n g t o n of 

$227,000 on the investment of $386,000. 

Q. I n your op i n i o n , i s t h a t f a i r and reasonable? 

A. The $227,000 i s clos e r t o where our p r o f i t should 

be, based upon the r i s k we're t a k i n g t o d r i l l the w e l l . 
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Q. Okay. Let's t u r n the page. You had an op i n i o n 

associated w i t h t h i s r i s k f a c t o r penalty? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Describe f o r me which of the spreadsheets I 

should look a t t o see your a n a l y s i s of your o p i n i o n as t o 

r i s k . 

A. The very l a s t spreadsheet shows the r a t e of 

r e t u r n on investment, and what i t shows i s t h a t i f 

B u r l i n g t o n d i d not have any a d d i t i o n a l p a r t ners i n the 

w e l l , they could r e a l i z e a 43-percent r e t u r n on t h e i r 

investment. And i f B u r l i n g t o n paid i t s working i n t e r e s t 

share of the w e l l and the GLA-46 partners also p a i d t h e i r 

working i n t e r e s t share of the w e l l , we could r e a l i z e a 43-

percent r e t u r n on investment. But i f we c a r r i e d the GLA-4 6 

owners, we would only r e a l i z e a 15-percent r e t u r n on 

investment. 

Q. That's under the 1951 agreement p r o v i s i o n s , your 

r e t u r n on investment i s only 15 percent? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Would you do a deal w i t h t h a t k i n d of r e t u r n on 

investment — 

A. No. 

Q. — r a t e of return? 

A. No. 

Q. To balance the o p p o r t u n i t i e s so t h a t you could go 
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forward w i t h the a d d i t i o n a l recovery t o be achieved by t h i s 

type of a c t i v i t y , what l e v e l of penalty i s appropriate? 

A. The maximum penalty of 2 00 percent allows us t o 

recover a 40.4-percent r e t u r n on our investment, which i s 

close t o the 43-percent t h a t we would r e a l i z e i f we 

p a r t i c i p a t e d w i t h our working i n t e r e s t share, the GLA-46 

owners p a r t i c i p a t e d w i t h t h e i r working i n t e r e s t share and 

we d i d not have t o ca r r y them. So the 200 percent i s the 

c l o s e s t r e t u r n on investment we could r e a l i z e i f we d i d not 

have t o c a r r y them. 

Q. Let's go t o the spreadsheet t h a t ' s a t the top of 

t h i s page, the economic e v a l u a t i o n t h a t shows payout i n 

terms of years. Do you see that ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Analyze t h a t spreadsheet f o r me. 

A. B a s i c a l l y what t h a t spreadsheet shows i s t h a t i f 

we develop the w e l l 100 percent, w i t h o u t any p a r t n e r s , we 

could pay out our investment i n 2.5 years. And i f we 

p a r t i c i p a t e d i n the w e l l w i t h our working i n t e r e s t share 

and d i d not have t o ca r r y the GLA p a r t n e r s , we would 

r e a l i z e a payout on our investment i n 2.5 years. But i f we 

had t o c a r r y the GLA par t n e r s , i t would take us e i g h t years 

t o pay out our investment of $386,000. 

Q. I s B u r l i n g t o n i n a p o s i t i o n where i t can c a r r y 

the GLA-46 owners under these payout c o n d i t i o n s t o achieve 
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payout i n more than e i g h t years? 

A. We're not. 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

Mr. Nelms. We move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of h i s E x h i b i t 6.. 

MR. HALL: Let me r a i s e one p o i n t . I'm not sure 

we e s t a b l i s h e d f o r the record h i s area of e x p e r t i s e , i n 

case I completely missed i t . I s i t anything other than 

petroleum engineering? I j u s t don't t h i n k i t was 

es t a b l i s h e d as a matter of record. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I am so r r y , i t ' s l a t e i n the day 

and I've f o r g o t t e n what I've done. Did I tender him as an 

expert? 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Yes, you d i d . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I thought I d i d . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: As a r e s e r v o i r engineer. 

MR. KELLAHIN: His e x p e r t i s e as a r e s e r v o i r 

engineer i s t o do economic analyses l i k e t h i s . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: r i g h t . 

MR. HALL: I have no o b j e c t i o n t o the e x h i b i t . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, E x h i b i t 6 w i l l be 

admitted a t t h i s time. 

Mr. Hall? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Nelms, what i s the purpose of the r i s k 
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pe n a l t y assessment? 

A. As I understand i t , i t ' s t o compensate the 

company c a r r y i n g i n t e r e s t f o r t h e i r r i s k . 

Q. I t has nothing t o do w i t h augmenting the 

operator's r a t e of r e t u r n on investment, does i t ? 

A. I t h i n k t o the degree i n which the r i s k r e f l e c t s 

the need f o r t h a t higher r e t u r n , i t does. The higher the 

r i s k , the higher the r e t u r n should be. 

Q. What i s the basis of the r i s k i n t h i s case? 

A. There are several types of r i s k . F i r s t , d r i l l i n g 

a w e l l i n i t s e l f i m p l i e s r i s k . S t a t i s t i c a l l y on the 

Mesaverde w e l l s t h a t we've d r i l l e d , we have downhole 

d r i l l i n g problems w i t h about 20 percent of the w e l l s t h a t 

we d r i l l i n t h i s area. About 10 percent of the w e l l s , we 

see s i g n i f i c a n t increases i n d r i l l i n g costs, due t o being 

stuck or cement problems. 

So the f a c t of d r i l l i n g the w e l l i t s e l f has an 

element of r i s k . 

Q. I s t h e r e any e x t r a o r d i n a r y r i s k associated w i t h 

what are i n f i l l Mesaverde w e l l s i n t h i s case? 

A. There i s no more e x t r a o r d i n a r y r i s k , other than 

s t a t i s t i c a l l y what we see when we d r i l l w e l l s i n i n f i l l , 

which i s approximately 10 t o 2 0 percent of the w e l l s have 

problems. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Are you prepared t o o f f e r any s o r t of 
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evidence w i t h respect t o the p r o x i m i t y of Mesaverde and 

Chacra produ c t i o n i n the immediate v i c i n i t y of these wells? 

A. The i n i t i a l a n a lysis t h a t was done f o r the AFE, I 

b e l i e v e , d i d present some i n f o r m a t i o n on what the 

pr o d u c t i o n c a p a b i l i t y was of the o f f s e t w e l l s . I do have 

t h a t o r i g i n a l prognosis. 

Q. I s t h a t contained w i t h i n an e x i s t i n g e x h i b i t ? 

A. No, i t i s not. This was the o r i g i n a l AFE and the 

o r i g i n a l d r i l l i n g package t h a t was completed on the 

Brookhaven 8 w e l l . 

MR. HALL: May I approach the witness? 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: That's f i n e . 

MR. HALL: May I have t h i s ? 

THE WITNESS: Sure. That's my only copy, so I 

won't be able t o t a l k t o i t . But when we do packages on 

w e l l s , we look a t the production from the o f f s e t w e l l s . 

B a s i c a l l y on the Brookhaven 8 and 8A, we'd 

estimated reserves i n the Mesaverde formation t o be 

approximately 680 m i l l i o n standard cubic f e e t . We 

estimated reserves i n the Chacra t o be approximately 480 

m i l l i o n standard cubic f e e t . 

So the Brookhaven 8 and 8A, the combined reserves 

f o r both formations was approximately 1.06 b i l l i o n standard 

cubic f e e t of gas, which i s not a very high reserve w e l l , 

c o n s i d e r i n g the other areas on the Basin. I f i t was not 
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f o r t he Chacra reserves a t 683 m i l l i o n standard cubic f e e t , 

the Dakota would be e s s e n t i a l l y uneconomic t o d r i l l . 

So Mesaverde stand-alone i n t h i s area would be 

uneconomic. I t r e q u i r e s the a d d i t i o n of the Chacra t o make 

i t economic. 

Q. With respect t o the Brookhaven Com Number 8, the 

m a t e r i a l s you've given me, i t ' s a memorandum dated J u l y 16, 

1998, i n t e r n a l memorandum from B u r l i n g t o n . I t appears t o 

say a 90-percent p r o b a b i l i t y of success i s assumed f o r the 

Brookhaven Com 8. I s t h a t s t i l l your p o s i t i o n ? 

A. That would r e f l e c t the 10-percent t o 20-percent 

r i s k t h a t I was s t a t i n g t h a t we i n c u r d r i l l i n g w e l l s . 

Q. Dryhole costs you r e f l e c t here are $119,000. 

Does t h a t sound r i g h t ? 

A. That sounds reasonable. 

Q. Does B u r l i n g t o n i n t e n d on p u t t i n g on any 

a d d i t i o n a l geologic evidence, or are you i t ? 

A. We d i d not b r i n g any g e o l o g i c a l evidence, no. We 

f e l t the economic evidence spoke f o r i t s e l f . 

Q. There i s no doubt, i s th e r e , t h a t these w e l l s are 

assured of encountering the Chacra and Mesaverde i n each of 

the t h r e e l o c a t i o n s ? 

A. The geologic r i s k i s low. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. The economic r i s k i s high. We w i l l f i n d 
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r e s e r v o i r . There may be some pressure d e p l e t i o n . We won't 

know t i l l we get there. But the geologic r i s k i s low since 

these are i n f i l l development w e l l s . 

Q. I s any of the pressure d e p l e t i o n r e f l e c t e d i n the 

bottomhole pressures f o r the i n i t i a l w e l l s i n the p r o r a t i o n 

u n i t s ? 

A. We have seen some r e d u c t i o n i n pressures i n some 

of the w e l l s we've d r i l l e d . I can't give you s p e c i f i c s i n 

t h i s area, I d i d n ' t b r i n g any background i n f o r m a t i o n . 

That i s the document t h a t the GLA p a r t n e r s should 

have received when we i n i t i a l l y submitted the AFE t o them. 

The AFE i s t h e r e , the cost breakdown i s t h e r e . And those 

costs are also shown i n the e x h i b i t books, as f a r as the 

breakdowns go. That would be -- I t looks they're i n 

E x h i b i t 5. Those are the same costs t h a t are i n t h a t 

document. 

That's the $427,000 t o t a l investment. I t h i n k i t 

was $190,000 f o r d r i l l i n g and $237,000 f o r completion. 

Q. Mr. Nelms, w i t h the m a t e r i a l s you've handed me 

there's included a couple of w e l l - l o c a t i o n p l a t s f o r the — 

A. — Mesaverde and the Chacra. 

Q. — subject wells? 

A. Correct. 

Q. I wonder, does t h i s m a t e r i a l r e f l e c t the d a i l y 

producing r a t e s and the cumulative production f o r the 
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o f f s e t t i n g w e l l s t o the proposed wells? 

A. They d i d as of J u l y 14th, 1998, as was s t a t e d — 

Q. I wonder i f you could read i n t o the record what 

those f i g u r e s are f o r the w e l l s surrounding the proposed 

wells? 

A. I ' l l j u s t do the c l o s e s t three w e l l s . 

Q. That's f i n e . 

A. Section 36, the Brookhaven Com 7A was d r i l l e d i n 

January, 1997. As of J u l y 14th, 1998, t h a t w e l l was 

producing a t a r a t e of 411 MCF a day. I t accumulated 150 

m i l l i o n standard cubic f e e t . The estimated u l t i m a t e 

recoverable reserves from the Chacra were approximately 

2 064 m i l l i o n standard cubic f e e t . 

North of the proposed l o c a t i o n f o r the Brookhaven 

8 i s the Hammond 92 w e l l , d r i l l e d i n January, 1980. As of 

J u l y 14th, 1998, t h a t w e l l was producing a t a r a t e of 64 

MCF a day w i t h a cumulative production of 597 m i l l i o n . 

The next c l o s e s t w e l l would be the Federal E 1. 

That would be i n the southwest quarter of Section 25, 2 7 

North, 8 West. I t was c u r r e n t l y only producing a t a r a t e 

of 1 MCF a day. Cumulative production i s 54 3 m i l l i o n . 

Those were the c l o s e s t w e l l s i n the Chacra. 

Q. And f o r the record, these are the c l o s e s t 

l o c a t i o n s t o the Brookhaven 8 and 8A? 

A. They were as of Ju l y 14th, 1998. There may be 
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some recent d r i l l s and development i n t h a t area t h a t I'm 

not aware of. 

Q. Okay. How about the Brookhaven Com B 3B? What 

are the production f i g u r e s f o r those o f f s e t s ? 

A. I n the Brookhaven Com 7A, t h i s w e l l i s located i n 

the southeast quarter of 36, 27 North, 8 West. The w e l l 

was making a t t h a t p o i n t i n time 241 MCF a day, cumulative 

p r o d u c t i o n 158 m i l l i o n , estimated u l t i m a t e recoverable 

would be 2498 m i l l i o n standard cubic f e e t or about 2.5 B's. 

The w e l l d i r e c t l y t o the n o r t h i s the Hammond 

41A. As of J u l y 14th, 1998, t h a t w e l l was producing a t a 

r a t e of approximately 13 3 MCF per day. Cumulative 

p r o d u c t i o n i s 1.09 B's. 

And the Federal E 1 was b a s i c a l l y shut i n , i n the 

Mesaverde. I t t o t a l e d 818 m i l l i o n , and i t looked l i k e i t 

had e x p i r e d . I t was not producing economically a t t h a t 

time. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What i s the minimum economic 

c r i t e r i o n f o r the d r i l l i n g of each of these t h r e e proposed 

wells? 

A. Define "minimum economic c r i t e r i a " . 

Q. What i s Burlington's c r i t e r i a on de c i d i n g whether 

or not t o proceed w i t h the d r i l l i n g of the t h r e e wells? 

A. I don't f e e l comfortable b a s i c a l l y exposing what 

our i n t e r n a l decisions are on what we determine f o r 
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d e c i s i o n p o i n t s on r a t e of r e t u r n on investment. I t h i n k 

t h a t ' s c o n f i d e n t i a l i n f o r m a t i o n . 

We — D e f i n i t e l y 15 percent i s not enough f o r us 

t o move forward. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What's i n d u s t r y average? Do you have 

an o p i n i o n on th a t ? 

A. I t v a r i e s . 

Q. I n the San Juan Basin? 

A. Each operator has t h e i r own numbers t h a t they 

deal w i t h . 

Q. B u r l i n g t o n ' s i s a l i t t l e b i t higher than the 

other operators i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. We have some o p p o r t u n i t i e s t o achieve r e t u r n s on 

investments t h a t are s i g n i f i c a n t l y higher than 15 percent, 

and w e ' l l pursue those before we pursue t h i s type of an 

investment. 

Q. What i s the r a t e of r e t u r n t h a t ' s acceptable t o 

B u r l i n g t o n on t h e i r a c t u a l w e l l cost? 

A. I guess — Define "acceptable". Greater than 

zero? I t has t o be — We make our decisions based on what 

we can do w i t h our money, i n v e s t i n g i n other w e l l s . 

Q. Do you know i f B u r l i n g t o n or y o u r s e l f ever 

attempted t o place a value on the a c q u i s i t i o n of the 

op e r a t i n g r i g h t s under GLA-4 6? 

A. I've never seen any work done on t h a t . I have no 
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idea i f t h a t has ever been done or not. 

Q. Do you know the l a s t time El Paso, Meridian or 

B u r l i n g t o n may have c a r r i e d , as you say, an i n t e r e s t owner 

under the GLA-46 cost provisions? 

A. Based on the previous conversations I heard, 

sometime i n the 1990s. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. But t h a t i s not based on anything I've read, t h a t 

was j u s t overhearing conversations a t today's meeting. 

Q. Now, who t o l d you that? 

A. That i s what I heard on the previous discussions 

here today. 

Q. Did you run your r a t e of r e t u r n s i f you c a r r i e d 

a t a c t u a l w e l l cost f o r these three wells? 

A. I ran my r a t e of r e t u r n s a t the AFE costs, what 

the AFE costs were o r i g i n a l l y p r o j e c t e d t o be. 

Q. And i s t h a t d i f f e r e n t from a c t u a l cost? 

A. Today — These economics were based on a c t u a l 

costs i n J u l y of 1998. Today these cost would be higher 

than t h i s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And d i d you c a l c u l a t e r a t e of r e t u r n 

on a c t u a l versus GLA-46 c a r r i e d i n t e r e s t terms? 

A. For the GLA-46, I used GLA-4 6. For the other 

p e n a l t i e s , I used the AFE t o t a l costs. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , Mr. Nelms, what i s the r a t e of r e t u r n 
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on a c t u a l cost w i t h the r i s k penalty applied? I s i t your 

29.1 percent shown on your l a s t page? 

A. That would be c o r r e c t , t h a t b a s i c a l l y a t zero 

percent p e n a l t y B u r l i n g t o n would r e a l i z e a 29-percent 

r e t u r n on i t s investment, i f we c a r r i e d the working 

i n t e r e s t and we only r e a l i z e d a penalty of zero percent. 

Our r e t u r n on i t would be 29 percent. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f you recovered 100 percent of 

cost s , a c t u a l costs? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I b e l i e v e you were present when you heard the 

e a r l i e r testimony on Burl i n g t o n ' s proposal f o r , say, the 

Brookhaven Com 8 made on September 18, 1998, and i t was 

proposed t h a t B u r l i n g t o n recoup only 100 percent of the 

a c t u a l costs, w i t h o u t a r i s k penalty. Do you r e c a l l t h a t 

testimony? 

A. I remember t h a t . I do. 

Q. Was t h a t an economically f e a s i b l e w e l l f o r 

B u r l i n g t o n t o propose? 

A. I can't address the economics a t t h a t time, 

whoever made — I d i d not make t h a t d e c i s i o n . Someone made 

t h a t d e c i s i o n other than myself. 

Q. B u r l i n g t o n wouldn't have proposed an uneconomic 

w e l l , would i t , a t t h a t 100-percent cost-recovery f i g u r e ? 

A. I t probably was not uneconomic. I t may not have 
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met the g u i d e l i n e s f o r funding, which i s another question. 

MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. K e l l a h i n , t h e r e was a 

document t h a t Mr. H a l l and Mr. Nelms r e f e r r e d t o . I t ' s 

not — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t wasn't intended t o be an 

e x h i b i t . I f you choose t o have i t , I'm happy t o copy i t 

and i n c l u d e i t . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Yeah, I would l i k e f o r t h a t t o 

be copied and included as an e x h i b i t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: We w i l l mark i t f o r the record as 

B u r l i n g t o n E x h i b i t 7, and w e ' l l do t h a t a f t e r the hearing. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay, w e ' l l accept t h a t as on 

the record. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER ASHLEY: 

Q. Mr. Nelms, regarding the 8 and 8A, i s i t l i k e l y 

t h a t you're going t o encounter Chacra and Mesaverde 

production? 

A. We — There's a strong p o s s i b i l i t y t h a t we w i l l 

encounter production i n the Chacra and Mesaverde, since 

these are both i n f i l l w e l l s . 

Q. As a Mesaverde stand-alone, they would not be 

economical by Burli n g t o n ' s standards? 

A. I f we had a Mesaverde w e l l t h a t we had reserves 
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of 680 m i l l i o n , t h a t would be very close t o being 

m a r g i n a l l y economic. 

Q. Are the m a j o r i t y of the w e l l s i n the area of the 

8 and 8A — Are they downhole commingling, dual production? 

A. I can't address t h a t question, I don't have the 

data t o address t h a t question. 

Q. Okay. You t a l k e d about the economic r i s k being 

h i g h . I s t h a t i n regards t o being completed as j u s t a 

Mesaverde well? 

A. C e r t a i n l y there's more r i s k t h e r e , because the 

reserves are more marginal, t h a t i f t h e r e i s a pressure-

d e p l e t i o n issue, there w i l l be less gas the r e t o recover, 

as opposed t o an area where you had reserves i n excess of 

one B or almost two B's, then your r i s k i s much lower. But 

because t h i s Mesaverde r e s e r v o i r i s lower EUR, there's more 

r i s k here. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. I have nothing f u r t h e r . 

Mr. H a l l , Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my p r e s e n t a t i o n , 

Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Thank you. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, a t t h i s time we would 

c a l l Mr. Rich Corcoran t o the stand. 
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RICHARD CORCORAN, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. For the record, please s t a t e your name. 

A. I'm Rich Corcoran. 

Q. Mr. Corcoran, where do you l i v e and by whom are 

you employed? 

A. I'm employed by Energen Resources i n Farmington, 

New Mexico, as a d i s t r i c t landman. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the lands t h a t are the 

sub j e c t of Bur l i n g t o n ' s p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s ? 

A. I am. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the GLA-4 6 agreement i n 

the surrounding materials? 

A. I have become f a m i l i a r w i t h i t . 

Q. And have you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d before the 

Examiner and had your c r e d e n t i a l s accepted as a matter of 

record? 

A. Yes, I have. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, a t t h i s time we would 

o f f e r Mr. Corcoran as an expert petroleum landman. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Corcoran i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, i n order t o expedite the 
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proceedings t o n i g h t , I would note the e a r l i e r r u l i n g 

a l l o w i n g the i n t r o d u c t i o n of Energen's E x h i b i t A and a l l 

the m a t e r i a l s contained under Tabs 1 through 7 5 [ s i c ] 

t h e r e i n . As we've discussed, documents do speak f o r 

themselves. I t was my o r i g i n a l i n t e n t t o have Mr. Corcoran 

examined on most of them, but I t h i n k i n view of the 

e a r l i e r r u l i n g I can dispatch w i t h t h a t and j u s t h i g h l i g h t 

some of the more s a l i e n t documents, i f t h a t ' s agreeable 

procedure t o you. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: That's f i n e . 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Corcoran, r e f e r r i n g t o Energen 

E x h i b i t A - l , you are f a m i l i a r , as you sai d , w i t h the terms 

of the GLA-46 agreement, are you not? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's look a t a couple of p r o v i s i o n s i n t h a t 

agreement. I b e l i e v e you were present f o r the testimony of 

Mr. Nichols w i t h respect t o the issue of the a p p l i c a b i l i t y 

of w e l l costs f o r Mesaverde w e l l s . O r i g i n a l l y they were 

$45,000, and they have been amended t o $90,000 i n 

subsequent years; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t , and I was present. 

Q. And you also heard h i s testimony w i t h respect t o 

the a p p l i c a b i l i t y of the cost p r o v i s i o n where d r i l l i n g t o 

i n t e r v a l s other than the Mesaverde i s contemplated? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. T e l l me from your review of the GLA-4 6 documents 

and your understanding of the p r a c t i c e of El Paso, 

Meridian, B u r l i n g t o n , Energen over the years, w i t h respect 

t o predecessors, how was t h a t s p e c i f i c issue handled, i f 

GLA 46 — i f d r i l l i n g was contemplated t o a fo r m a t i o n other 

than Mesaverde under GLA-4 6, how d i d the p a r t i e s deal w i t h 

t h a t ? 

A. What they d i d i s , they then got together and 

determined the appropriate terms, the a p p r o p r i a t e costs, 

d r i l l i n g costs, f o r those — f o r the other formations, the 

t a r g e t formations. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f you would look a t pages 7 and 8 of 

the o p e r a t i n g agreement, the paragraphs 5.d. under E x h i b i t 

A - l . 

A. Yes. 

Q. There i t sets out the w e l l costs f o r a Mesaverde 

w e l l , $45,000 i n i t i a l l y . Then i f you r e f e r t o paragraph 

5.d.2. on page 8 — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — where d r i l l i n g t o another non-Mesaverde 

fo r m a t i o n was contemplated, what guidance does t h a t 

p r o v i s i o n g i v e t o the p a r t i e s f o r n e g o t i a t i n g the w e l l 

cost? 

A. I t s p e c i f i c a l l y s t a t e s t h a t i t " . . . s h a l l be 

determined p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y w i t h the p a r t i e s agreeing upon a 
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maximum cost comparable t o the maximum cost of a Mesa Verde 

w e l l . . . " 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Based on your experience as a 

petroleum landman, would i t be t r u e t o say t h a t 

o p e r a t o r s h i p i t s e l f , under almost any s i t u a t i o n , would have 

value — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — t o a party? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q. And i n your opinion, does operatorship under 

GLA-4 6 have value? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i s t h a t p a r t of the c o n s i d e r a t i o n San Juan 

Production o r i g i n a l l y received when i t n e g o t i a t e d GLA-46 i n 

1951? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And t h a t component of value would continue t o 

have value today, t o the operator, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. Let's t u r n , i f you would t o Tab 11 under E x h i b i t 

A. I f you look a t t h a t , i t appears t o be a l e t t e r from El 

Paso N a t u r a l Gas Company, dated September 27, 19 62, t o Mr. 

Thomas B. Scott. Who was Mr. Scott? 

A. Mr. Scott was the president of Brookhaven O i l 

Company, our predecessor. 
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Q. So Brookhaven was predecessor under GLA-4 6 t o the 

Energen i n t e r e s t today? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i f you look a t the second sentence of the 

f i r s t paragraph, they were t a l k i n g about d r i l l i n g a Dakota 

development w e l l , correct? 

A. That's what they were t a l k i n g about, t h a t ' s 

r i g h t . 

Q. And does t h a t language say, "...we w i l l have t o 

reach an agreement on the a l l o c a t i o n of costs as r e q u i r e d 

by Section 5-d (2) of Operating Agreement dated November 

27, 1951"? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , t h a t ' s e x a c t l y what i t says. 

Q. Would you understand t h i s t o mean t h a t E l Paso 

undertook an e f f o r t t o negot i a t e w i t h Brookhaven costs f o r 

non-Mesaverde wells? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s my i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look a t E x h i b i t 18. I t ' s an 

i n t e r n a l memorandum a t El Paso, dated October 11, 1974, and 

i t r e f e r s t o communications w i t h Mr. Scott by El Paso, does 

i t not? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s what they're r e f e r r i n g t o i n the 

l e t t e r . 

Q. Why don't you look a t t h a t l a s t paragraph? 

Apparently Mr. Scott c a l l e d and was very upset t h a t the 
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w e l l s were not being d r i l l e d t h i s year. And " t h i s year" i s 

1974, c o r r e c t ? 

A. At t h a t time, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. You've heard the e a r l i e r testimony here today 

t h a t s t a t e d t h a t t h e r e was no o b l i g a t i o n t o d r i l l beyond 

the 18th Mesaverde w e l l under GLA-4 6; d i d you hear t h a t 

testimony? 

A. I heard t h a t . 

Q. And here when you get t o a memorandum i n 1974, 

they're s t i l l t a l k i n g about d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n s under 

GLA-46, are they not? 

A. They are. 

Q. Look a t the l a s t sentence of t h a t memorandum. 

What does t h a t say? 

A. He also s t a t e d t h a t he would l i k e t o see the 

remaining u n d r i l l e d blocks he owns an i n t e r e s t i n d r i l l e d . 

Q. Now, i s t h a t c o n s i s t e n t w i t h your understanding 

of GLA-46, t h a t the operator has an o b l i g a t i o n t o d r i l l a l l 

d r i l l i n g blocks? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Corcoran, have you undertaken a review of the 

acreage covered by GLA-46? 

A. I have. 

Q. You know i t s a r e a l extent? 

A. Yes, I do. 
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Q. And have you reviewed the s i t u a t i o n on a l l t h a t 

acreage t o determine whether a l l of the d r i l l i n g blocks 

a v a i l a b l e have been d r i l l e d ? 

A. I have reviewed t h a t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Look a t E x h i b i t B. Can you i d e n t i f y 

t h a t , please, s i r ? 

A. Sure, t h i s i s a l i s t of u n d r i l l e d l o c a t i o n s , 

e xcluding the t h r e e , excluding the three proposed w e l l s 

t h a t we're discussing today. U n d r i l l e d l o c a t i o n s i n the 

GLA-46 acreage. 

Q. And approximately how many l o c a t i o n s are under — 

A. Twenty-some-odd. 

Q. Mr. Corcoran, what are E x h i b i t s C and D? 

A. I f I may, you know, I j u s t sat here and counted 

the u n d r i l l e d l o c a t i o n s , and there's more than 30. There's 

a c t u a l l y i n excess of 3 0 on t h i s sheet, and t h i s i s not an 

exhaustive l i s t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So they are u n d r i l l e d l o c a t i o n s , 

according t o E x h i b i t B, i n the F r u i t l a n d Coal, Mesaverde, 

Dakota and P i c t u r e d C l i f f s i n the acreage you've described? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look a t E x h i b i t s C and D, i f 

you would e x p l a i n those t o the Hearing Examiner, please, 

s i r . 

A. E x h i b i t s C and D are maps d e p i c t i n g where Energen 
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owns acreage governed by the GLA-4 6. I t f u r t h e r d e p i c t s 

the e x i s t i n g producing horizons and spacing u n i t s f o r those 

horizons on t h a t acreage. And as you study i t , you can 

determine q u i c k l y , f o r example, i n 31 North, 10 West, on 

E x h i b i t C, the r e are a number of spacing u n i t s not 

accounted f o r , there are a number of zones t h a t have not 

been d r i l l e d . And the o f f s e t s have been. And t h a t l i s t 

t h a t coincides w i t h t h i s i s a l i s t of those spacing u n i t s 

t h a t have not been d r i l l e d . 

The same i s t r u e f o r E x h i b i t D. We j u s t s p l i t 

t he map i n t o two segments t o t a l k about them easier . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , so E x h i b i t s C and D are a graphic 

d e p i c t i o n of the u n d r i l l e d l o c a t i o n s summarized on your 

E x h i b i t B? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Mr. Corcoran, t o your knowledge has B u r l i n g t o n or 

i t s predecessors ever o f f e r e d t o release those u n d r i l l e d 

l o c a t i o n s t o you as contemplated by GLA-46? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. So would i t be the case t h a t B u r l i n g t o n continues 

t o own the operating r i g h t s i n a l l those u n d r i l l e d 

l o c a t i o n s ? 

A. They do. 

Q. And you've heard the e a r l i e r testimony w i t h 

respect t o the gas balancing agreement a p p l i c a b i l i t y , d i d 
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you not? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. I s i t your opinion t h a t the gas balancing 

p r o v i s i o n s would continue t o apply t o those u n d r i l l e d 

acreage l o c a t i o n s as well? 

A. I t i s . 

Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 19 under E x h i b i t A, please, 

s i r . Do you have t h a t i n f r o n t of you? I t appears t o be a 

l e t t e r from Mr. Scott t o El Paso dated November 7, 1974. 

A. Okay. 

Q. And i f you look a t t h a t language i n the l a s t 

sentence of the t h i r d paragraph t h e r e , the h i g h l i g h t e d 

p o r t i o n says, " . . . w e ' l l j u s t go back t o the o r i g i n a l 

c o n t r a c t . " And then up a t the top t h e r e , t h e r e * s a 

reference t o GLA-46. I s i t safe t o assume t h a t we're 

t a l k i n g about going back t o GLA-46 as the o r i g i n a l 

c o n t r a c t ? 

A. That's r i g h t , and the terms governing i t on 

the — o r i g i n a l l y . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And the f o l l o w i n g sentence says, 

"There are about twenty P i c t u r e d C l i f f s w e l l s t h a t can be 

d r i l l e d i n the above townships wherein Brookhaven has an 

i n t e r e s t . " 

A. That's what i t says. 

Q. Would i t be your conclusion t h a t Mr. Scott took 
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the p o s i t i o n t h a t E l Paso had an ongoing d r i l l i n g 

o b l i g a t i o n under GLA-46, as of November, 1974? 

A. Yes, they continued t o add t o t h a t o b l i g a t i o n . 

Q. Let's t u r n t o E x h i b i t 23 r e a l q u i c k l y . Do you 

have t h a t i n f r o n t of you? 

A. I do. 

Q. That's a l e t t e r dated February 25, 1975, from Mr. 

Sco t t , Brookhaven O i l Company, t o El Paso N a t u r a l Gas 

Company. Have you reviewed t h a t l e t t e r ? 

A. I have. 

Q. And what i s your understanding of the t h r u s t of 

t h a t l e t t e r ? 

A. That they were changing the terms of maximum 

amount of d r i l l i n g costs from $45,000 t o $90,000 f o r a 

Mesaverde w e l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Does i t appear, i f you w i l l look a t 

the h i g h l i g h t e d language i n the mid-paragraph, second 

paragraph, would i t be reasonable t o conclude t h a t i n 

exchange f o r in c r e a s i n g the w e l l cost f o r Mesaverde w e l l s 

t o $90,000, t h a t Mr. Scott was seeking an o b l i g a t i o n from 

E l Paso t o d r i l l a d d i t i o n a l Mesaverde wells? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s — Although mine i s not h i g h l i g h t e d , 

yes, t h a t ' s what t h a t reads. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And would t h a t be the same i f you 

look a t the t h i r d paragraph there? There was a s i m i l a r 
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accommodation f o r the d r i l l i n g of a d d i t i o n a l P i c t u r e d 

C l i f f s wells? 

A. Correct, wherein they — i n exchange f o r d r i l l i n g 

a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s they agreed t o increase the d r i l l i n g costs 

from the $16,500 t o $33,000 per w e l l . 

Q. And the l e t t e r references "Section 5 - d - 1" of 

GLA-4 6. I s i t reasonable t o conclude t h a t the p a r t i e s were 

engaged i n arm's length n e g o t i a t i o n f o r increased w e l l 

costs f o r non-Mesaverde-formation wells? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I f you w i l l t u r n t o Tab 29, El Paso i n t e r n a l 

memorandum dated March 4, 1976 — 

A. Okay. 

Q. — have you got t h a t there? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You would agree w i t h me t h a t t h e r e i s no dispute 

t h a t GLA-46 has been amended a number of times, a t l e a s t 24 

or 2 5 times? 

A. Right. 

Q. And t h i s memo, E x h i b i t 29, t h a t discusses a 

f u r t h e r amendment t o GLA-4 6, does i t not? 

A. Yes, i t ' s one of the many amendments. 

Q. And i n order t o ob t a i n an amendment, El Paso i s 

disc u s s i n g c o n s i d e r a t i o n , correct? 

A. Right, the c o n s i d e r a t i o n i n my reading of t h i s 
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was t h e i r agreement t o commit t o d r i l l an a d d i t i o n a l 10 PC 

w e l l s before the end of t h a t p a r t i c u l a r year. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, l e t ' s look a t E x h i b i t 35. Can 

you t u r n t o t h a t tab, please? 

A. Okay, I'm the r e . 

Q. This i s another i n t e r n a l memorandum, El Paso, 

dated May 20, 1976? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i t i s a discussion of El Paso's understanding 

of the op e r a t i o n of GLA-46, i s i t not? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And i t says, "The Farmout Agreement provides t h a t 

i n t he event a w e l l i s completed i n a formation f o r which a 

recovery amount i s not provided f o r , then the p a r t i e s 

t h e r e t o s h a l l agree upon a maximum cost t o be recovered 

comparable t o the maximum cost of a Mesaverde w e l l . " Do 

you see t h a t language? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. And t h a t i s con s i s t e n t w i t h your e a r l i e r 

testimony about your understanding of how the terms of 

GLA-4 6 work? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. That's what the express language — 

A. Almost — I t ' s not verbatim, but i t ' s close. 

Q. So would i t be reasonable t o conclude t h a t El 
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Paso or the operator had an o b l i g a t i o n under the c o n t r a c t 

t o n e g o t i a t e w e l l costs? 

A. As I understand i t , yes. 

Q. And i f we look a t , q u i c k l y , E x h i b i t s 37, 38 and 

39, you can r e f e r t o the upper ri g h t - h a n d corners of those, 

and they say GLA-4 6, Amendment 20, 21, e t cetera --

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you see t h a t there? 

A. Correct. Yes, I see i t . 

Q. Those would appear t o be the amendments t o GLA-46 

themselves, done over time between the p a r t i e s , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i n each case, i n each of those e x h i b i t s , a t 

the numbered paragraph 1, i t again t a l k s about 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n . What was the c o n s i d e r a t i o n f o r the 

amendments given i n those cases? 

A. I n each of those cases i t ' s f o r d r i l l i n g c e r t a i n 

w e l l s , which are l a t e r described on the second — on the 

next page, d u r i n g a given p e r i o d of time i n exchange f o r 

t h a t , t h a t being the con s i d e r a t i o n t o Brookhaven. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now l e t ' s look q u i c k l y a t the e x h i b i t 

under Tab 40, i n t e r n a l Memorandum, El Paso, March 16, 1977. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Again, i t discusses the d r i l l i n g of 10 Mesaverde 

" i n f i e l d " w e l l s , as i t ' s c a l l e d there? 
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A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. What does the l a s t sentence of t h a t memorandum 

say? 

A. I t says, "Their share of the t o t a l costs of the 

Mesaverde w e l l i s l i m i t e d t o t h e i r share of a t o t a l cost of 

$90,000.00 per Mesaverde Well as provided i n the Farmout 

Agreement as amended." 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So would i t be reasonable t o conclude 

from t h i s t h a t , El Paso's understanding as of 1977, anyway, 

t h a t the $90,000 cost p r o v i s i o n f o r Mesaverde w e l l s s t i l l 

apply? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And a t t h i s p o i n t , 1977, we are w e l l beyond the 

d r i l l i n g of the 18th Mesaverde w e l l i n 1956, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, we are. 

Q. And again, there were a d d i t i o n a l amendments t o 

GLA-46, cor r e c t ? Look a t E x h i b i t 41. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Again, t h a t ' s an amendment dated January 13, 

1978, amendment 23? 

A. Okay, yes. 

Q. And i t again discusses c o n s i d e r a t i o n , does i t 

not? 

A. Yes, i t does, i n the same fashion. 

Q. I n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case, as i n probably more i n 
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t h i s example, the agreement was f o r t h a t w e l l t h a t the 

p a r t i e s would pay 100 percent of a c t u a l w e l l costs — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — f o r those two wells? 

A. They deviated at t h a t p o i n t , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Then l e t ' s look a t E x h i b i t 43. I t ' s 

a l e t t e r dated August 7, 1979, from Lear Petroleum 

Corporation t o El Paso. F i r s t of a l l , who was Lear i n the 

sequence of events? 

A. Lear was a successor t o Brookhaven. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What does i t appear the purpose of 

t h i s l e t t e r t o be? 

A. Lear i s advi s i n g El Paso t h a t — i n the l a s t l i n e 

they s t a t e , they d e s i r e " t o continue t o pay our share of 

a l l d r i l l i n g costs out of production pursuant t o the 

amendatory l e t t e r dated A p r i l 3, 1975," i n d i c a t i n g what 

t h a t amount was. 

Q. So they were r e v e r t i n g t o a previous arrangement 

under GLA-4 6? 

A. To the $90,000 t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Yeah. And i f you look a t E x h i b i t 46, i t ' s a 

l e t t e r from Lear, Don W. Moore, t o El Paso, J u l y 25, 1985. 

And again, he r e i t e r a t e s t h a t same p o s i t i o n , does he not? 

A. I'm s o r r y , I'm — 

Q. Too f a r ahead of you? 
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A. Yeah, give me the — 

Q. I t ' s E x h i b i t 46. 

A. Okay, mine i s d i f f e r e n t , I'm l o o k i n g a t a l e t t e r 

from [ s i c ] Mr. Poage. 

Q. Yes. 

A. Okay, wherein he's c l e a r i n g up a misunderstanding 

or something t h a t wasn't c l e a r between himself and Lear 

Petroleum. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. And they're t a l k i n g about i n t h a t w e l l only they 

were w i l l i n g t o pay. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . He's saying otherwise GLA-4 6 applies? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's look, i f you would, q u i c k l y , a t E x h i b i t 49. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Does t h a t appear t o be GLA-4 6 Amendment Number 

25? 

A. I t does. 

Q. And how d i d t h a t p a r t i c u l a r amendment operate? 

A. Let's see. They went t o a c t u a l w e l l cost. 

Q. And t h a t ' s f o r three F r u i t l a n d Coal wells? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . Amoco agreed t o a c t u a l w e l l 

costs. 

Q. And you've heard the e a r l i e r testimony w i t h 

respect t o the amendment of GLA-4 6 t o provide f o r gas 
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balancing? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Let's look a t E x h i b i t 52 r e a l quick. What does 

t h a t appear t o be? 

A. I t ' s a c o n t r a c t summary sheet, i n d i c a t i n g t h a t 

a l l the p a r t i e s have approved the gas balancing agreement. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I t ' s a l l p a r t i e s under GLA-4 6? 

A. That's r i g h t , under t h a t , yes. I t i s p e r t a i n i n g 

t o t he GLA-46. 

Q. Now, l e t ' s look at — t u r n — s k i p p i n g t o E x h i b i t 

56. Now we're i n the 199 0s. E x h i b i t 56 i s a l e t t e r from 

Meridian, dated October 20th, 1992, and i t address three 

w e l l s t h a t were proposed i n the 1990s, does i t not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. T a l k i n g about the A t l a n t i c Com "A" Number 7, on 

page 1 t h e r e , and then i f you t u r n t o page 2 of t h a t 

e x h i b i t i t continues t o discuss the A t l a n t i c Com "A" Number 

7, and there's a reference t o "Governing Agreements". Do 

you see t h a t ? 

A. I do. 

Q. What agreements are i d e n t i f i e d as the governing 

agreements? 

A. I t s t a t e s , " O r i g i n a l l y d r i l l e d and operated under 

Farmout dated November 27, 1951," which i s our GLA-46. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

137 

A. As w e l l has a JOA dated November 1st, 1976, 

between El Paso and G.T. McAlpin, and then a 12.5-percent 

working i n t e r e s t s t i l l subject t o the GLA-46. 

Q. And then s i m i l a r l y w i t h respect t o the A t l a n t i c 

Com "A" 7A f u r t h e r on down t h a t same page? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Turn the page again, i t i d e n t i f i e s "Governing 

Agreements". 

A. Okay, they are the same. 

Q. I n c l u d i n g GLA-4 6? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And then i t discusses the A t l a n t i c Com "A" 7R a t 

the bottom of page 3. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I f you t u r n the page you see d i v i s i o n of i n t e r e s t 

a f t e r payout f o r what are the GLA-4 6 i n t e r e s t owners, 

t a l k i n g about here today, correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t l e t t e r , i n the bold language a t the 

bottom of page 4, discusses the operation of the payout 

p r o v i s i o n s under GLA-46? 

A. I t does, and i t -- I t i n d i c a t e s t h a t i t was not 

agreeable t o the working i n t e r e s t owners, so Meridian 

proceeded t o d r i l l the w e l l under the two governing 

agreements and c a r r i e d a t o t a l of 24.68 percent nonconsent. 
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Q. I f you look on page 5 i t , as you say, addresses 

the governing agreements? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t ' s where i t says t h a t the w e l l was 

d r i l l e d under both a JOA and GLA-46? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. You heard testimony e a r l i e r today w i t h respect t o 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n t h a t w e l l s were d r i l l e d under GLA-4 6 

beyond the 18 i n i t i a l Mesaverde w e l l s , only where they had 

100-percent unanimous agreement from a l l the p a r t i e s i n 

t h e i r o p e r a t i n g agreement. Did you hear t h a t testimony? 

A. I d i d . 

Q. And t h i s p a r t i c u l a r l e t t e r i s i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n , i s i t not? 

A. That's r i g h t , i t ' s i n c o n s i s t e n t . 

Q. Again, l e t ' s s k i p t o E x h i b i t 59, i f you would. 

E x h i b i t 59 i s a l e t t e r from B u r l i n g t o n dated A p r i l 1, 1997, 

t o T o t a l Minatome. T o t a l i s Energen's immediate 

predecessor i n i n t e r e s t , correct? 

A. That i s r i g h t . 

Q. And what i s t h i s l e t t e r regarding? 

A. Let's see. 

Q. Well, l e t me ask i t t h i s way — 

A. Well, they're going t o exchange c e r t a i n 

p r o p r i e t a r y geology and seismic. 
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Q. Was B u r l i n g t o n seeking an amendment t o GLA-4 6 by 

t h i s l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And d i d i t o f f e r some c o n s i d e r a t i o n t o T o t a l — 

A. I t d i d — 

Q. — t o amend? 

A. As I s t a r t e d t o say, yes, i t d i d , and t h a t was 

c e r t a i n seismic and geology they had, i n exchange f o r the 

amendment of GLA-46. 

Q. And was i t contemplated t h a t the e n t i r e t y of 

GLA-46 would be amended, a l l the acreage under GLA-46? 

A. I t looks t o me l i k e i t was Section 8 of the GLA, 

then l a t e r on I guess i t does go on and say T o t a l agrees t o 

amend the operating agreement, dated such-and-such, by 

d e l e t i n g t h a t p a r t i c u l a r paragraph, and the accounting 

procedures, e t cetera. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. So yes, the whole t h i n g . 

Q. So as of A p r i l , 1997, i s i t reasonable t o 

conclude t h a t i t was Burl i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n t h a t GLA-46 was 

s t i l l a p p l i c a b l e t o the lands at t h a t time? 

A. Based on the f a c t t h a t they were continuously 

r e f e r r i n g back t o i t and amending i t over and over again, 

yes, they must have understood i t t o s t i l l be v a l i d . 

Q. So i s i t also reasonable t o conclude t h a t 
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B u r l i n g t o n was seeking a release of GLA-4 6? 

A. By — Yeah, l a t e r i t can be demonstrated by t h e i r 

asking them t o sign new operating agreements. 

Q. And again, i f y o u ' l l r e f e r t o the e x h i b i t under 

Tab 63, do you have t h a t i n f r o n t of you? 

A. I do. 

Q. What was the purpose of t h a t l e t t e r , as you 

understand i t ? 

A. Let's see, i t ' s t o T o t a l from Mr. S t r i c k l e r , 

r e q u e s t i n g support f o r a deep Penn t e s t and support i n the 

manner of amending GLA-4 6 again. 

Q. Uh-huh. And t o your knowledge, d i d T o t a l accept 

e i t h e r of those proposals t o amend GLA-4 6? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. But i t was t r u e , i s i t not, as r e f l e c t e d by the 

e x h i b i t s , t h a t c o n s i d e r a t i o n was o f f e r e d t o T o t a l t o do so? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, l e t ' s look at E x h i b i t 64. I t ' s a l e t t e r 

dated September 18, 1998, by Mr. Nichols here, t o the 

GLA-46 i n t e r e s t owners, i s i t not? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And there's a reference t h e r e , i t s t a t e s 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s " . . . p o s i t i o n t h a t the p r o v i s i o n s of GLA-46 do 

not apply t o t h i s w e l l . . . " and i t ' s speaking of the 

Brookhaven Com 8? 
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A. Okay, c o r r e c t . 

Q. "...do not apply t o t h i s w e l l inasmuch as the 

d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n s , terms and c o n d i t i o n s of GLA-4 6 were 

s a t i s f i e d w i t h the d r i l l i n g of the i n i t i a l 18 w e l l s on 

GLA-46 lands as set out i n the agreement." 

A. That's what i t s t a t e s . 

Q. Yeah. To your knowledge, i s t h a t the f i r s t the 

f i r s t time B u r l i n g t o n , Meridian or El Paso ever a r t i c u l a t e d 

t h a t p a r t i c u l a r p o s i t i o n , t h a t they had only an 18-well 

d r i l l i n g operation? 

A. Yes, from my involvement. 

Q. And again, t h a t was a w e l l proposal t h a t provided 

f o r two o p t i o n s , correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And o p t i o n 2 was what, b r i e f l y ? 

A. I t was t h a t B u r l i n g t o n recoups 100 percent of 

t h e i r cost out of 100 percent of the revenue stream, and i t 

a l s o provided f o r changing d r i l l i n g and producing w e l l 

r a t e s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, d i d you accept t h a t o p t i o n 2 on 

behalf of Energen? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. Why d i d you do that? 

A. We wanted t o support t h a t p a r t i c u l a r d r i l l , t h a t 

w e l l , t h a t proposal. 
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Q. Now, your execution on the acceptance i s on page 

2 t h e r e , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay, and you've made i t subject t o another 

l e t t e r of acceptance, correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What d i d you i n d i c a t e i n t h a t other l e t t e r ? 

A. That other l e t t e r , I i n d i c a t e d t h a t — you know, 

t h a t we wanted t o go ahead and support t h i s , however I 

d i d n ' t want them t o — I wanted f o r the one w e l l only. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And t h a t other l e t t e r i s , i n f a c t , 

under Tab 65, i s i t not? 

A. I t i s . I misstated the date here, and — I s a i d 

dated November 18th. My l e t t e r a c t u a l l y was dated November 

16th. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What p o s i t i o n d i d you take i n t h a t 

l e t t e r w i t h respect t o the a p p l i c a b i l i t y of GLA-46? 

A. That i t was, i n f a c t , t h i s — We s p e c i f i c a l l y 

s t a t e d t h a t i t was — i t would continue t o apply t o a l l 

f u t u r e w e l l s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And t o save time, t h a t i s how you 

exercised the e l e c t i o n on behalf of Energen t o p a r t i c i p a t e 

i n a l l of the w e l l s t h a t are proposed by B u r l i n g t o n here 

today, c o r r e c t ? 

A. A l l the other ones, no. A l l the other ones, I 
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chose t o j o i n them under the terms of GLA-46. 

This one, we chose t o j o i n them under the terms 

t h a t they o f f e r e d here. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And what happened t o t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

proposal t h a t you accepted, 100 percent cost? 

A. We went ahead and approved t h e i r o p t i o n 2, and 

they l a t e r decided t o re s c i n d t h a t and not d r i l l t h a t w e l l 

a t t h a t time? 

Q. Do you know why? 

A. Today, I was — I heard Shannon t e s t i f y t h a t 

t h e r e were — he d i d not have 100-percent j o i n d e r . 

Q. I see, although they had d r i l l e d w e l l s i n the 

past under GLA-46 wit h o u t 100-percent j o i n d e r , under 

standard operating agreements? 

A. Right, as was s t a t e d i n t h a t l e t t e r by John Zent 

e a r l i e r , i n d i c a t i n g t h a t they took 24 or 26 percent 

nonconsent. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. Or c a r r i e d them, I'm not sure which. 

Q. Now, the l e t t e r of withdrawal of t h a t one w e l l 

you d i d e l e c t t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n , t h a t ' s under Tab 69, i s i t 

not? L e t t e r dated August 25, 1999? 

A. Yes. 

Q. That's where they withdrew the proposal you 

accepted — 
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A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. — one well? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. You look a t t h a t l e t t e r , the l a s t paragraph, 

there's a reference t o lands p r e v i o u s l y subject t o GLA-46. 

Do you see t h a t there? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. To your knowledge, i s t h a t the f i r s t time 

B u r l i n g t o n has adopted the p o s i t i o n t h a t GLA-4 6 p r e v i o u s l y 

a p p l i e d t o lands? 

A. That's the f i r s t time I saw i t worded i n t h a t 

f a s h i o n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f you t u r n t o the next e x h i b i t , 

under Tab 7 0 — do you have t h a t there? — what i s th a t ? 

A. Let's see, i t ' s a proposed operating agreement 

dated February 1st, 1999, f o r e i g h t w e l l proposals. 

Q. And i t involved GLA-4 6 lands, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, i t d i d . 

Q. I f you looked a t the l a s t sentence of the f i r s t 

f u l l paragraph t h e r e , d i d i t i n d i c a t e B u r l i n g t o n was 

prepared t o make a cash o f f e r t o purchase the GLA i n t e r e s t ? 

A. I t d i d , i t so s t a t e d . 

Q. Yeah. So as of September 9, 1999, anyway, 

B u r l i n g t o n thought GLA applied t o the lands? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And they had some value? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And was w i l l i n g t o purchase i t from you? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. We discussed the three d r i l l i n g proposals f o r the 

Brookhaven 8, 8A and B3B w e l l s here? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You've i n d i c a t e d p r e v i o u s l y t h a t you e l e c t e d t o 

p a r t i c i p a t e , as you sai d , under GLA-46? 

A. Correct. 

Q. How d i d B u r l i n g t o n r e a c t t o th a t ? 

A. That those terms were not something they wanted 

t o d r i l l the w e l l s under. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look a t the document under Tab 

73. Can you i d e n t i f y t h a t , please, s i r ? 

A. I t ' s a response t o those w e l l proposals wherein 

we j u s t i n d i c a t e d t h a t GLA-46 s t i l l a p p l i e d u n t i l i t was 

changed, and we needed t o abide by i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Each of the occasions where you were 

i n v o l v e d , where B u r l i n g t o n sought t o have Energen execute 

i t s j o i n t o p e r a t i n g agreements, what was the p r a c t i c a l 

e f f e c t of t h a t request, t o execute those j o i n t o p e r a t i n g 

agreements? 

A. The way I saw t h a t was, i f , i n f a c t , we executed 

a new o p e r a t i n g agreement, we f o r f e i t e d whatever r i g h t s we 
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d i d have or whatever value GLA-4 6 a c t u a l l y had t o us. 

Q. So you were being asked t o release and give up 

s u b s t a n t i v e c o n t r a c t r i g h t s under GLA-4 6? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, back t o the terms of GLA-4 6 again. I n your 

o p i n i o n , your understanding of the operation of those 

terms, d i d B u r l i n g t o n have an o b l i g a t i o n , a c o n t r a c t u a l 

o b l i g a t i o n , t o negotiate w e l l costs f o r w e l l s o u t s i d e the 

Mesaverde? 

A. I t was my understanding t h a t i f i t wasn't 

s p e c i f i c a l l y s t a t e d , t h a t the p a r t i e s were t o a r r i v e a t a 

reasonable cost between them. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i n your o p i n i o n , d i d B u r l i n g t o n 

make a g o o d - f a i t h e f f o r t t o t r y t o n e g o t i a t e those w e l l 

costs under the c o n t r a c t o b l i g a t i o n ? 

A. I d i d n ' t see any k i n d of exchange of value 

o f f e r e d t o us. 

Q. Was Energen o f f e r e d c o n s i d e r a t i o n such as was 

o f f e r e d t o Mr. Scott and Lear Petroleum i n the e a r l i e r 

e x h i b i t s we discussed? 

A. I d i d n ' t see i t . The only t h i n g I saw was t h a t 

they were w i l l i n g t o d r i l l a w e l l or a second w e l l or a 

t h i r d w e l l , or whatever the p a r t i c u l a r proposal was, but 

not several w e l l s w i t h i n a given p e r i o d of time, or 

whatever other c o n s i d e r a t i o n . 
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Q. You d i d n ' t receive a commitment t o , say, a 10- or 

12-well d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n ? 

A. That's what I'm t r y i n g t o say, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

MR. HALL: I'm almost f i n i s h e d , Mr. Examiner. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Let's r e f e r back t o E x h i b i t 32, 

and t h a t l e t t e r discusses the d r i l l i n g and equipping of the 

San Juan 32-9 Community 94 P i c t u r e d C l i f f s w e l l , does i t 

not? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. And was t h a t w e l l also a dual-completion well? 

A. I t looks — Yes, i t looks as though i t was. 

Q. And t h i s i s a l e t t e r from Mr. Scott t o El Paso, 

1976, and a t t h a t time i s i t accurate t o say t h a t El Paso 

and Brookhaven d i d n ' t have an agreement f o r the a l l o c a t i o n 

of costs f o r a non-Mesaverde dual-completion l i k e t h a t ? 

A. That's what I understand t h i s t o be addressing. 

Q. So how d i d they handle t h a t i n t h a t instance? 

A. Well, they t a l k about i t i n the l a s t paragraph 

down t h e r e . What they d i d was, they combined the T e r t i a r y 

Sands w e l l , and they charged them $16,500. 

Q. Now, i s t h a t $16,500 amount the amount t h a t was 

agreed t o under one of the GLA-4 6 amendments f o r P i c t u r e d 

C l i f f s wells? 

A. I t was. 

Q. That's the agreed f i g u r e ? 
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A. Right. 

Q. What d i d they do f o r the T e r t i a r y Sands? 

A. They were going t o charge them 100 percent, as I 

r e c a l l , of t h a t as w e l l . Let's see. Let's see i f i t ' s i n 

here. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s what they d i d . 

Q. And El Paso responded t o Mr. Scott's i n q u i r y 

about how t o handle those unaddressed costs i n t h e i r l e t t e r 

of May 3, 1976, under Tab 33. 

And does t h a t l e t t e r say, i n substance, t h a t yes, 

t h a t ' s what we d i d , we b i l l e d you a t the agreed r a t e f o r 

the P i c t u r e d C l i f f s , $16,500? 

A. Yes, i n the l a s t — 

Q. — b i l l e d you f o r a c t u a l costs f o r the 

T e r t i a r y — 

A. Right, the l a s t sentence, c o r r e c t . 

Q. And then i f you t u r n t o Tab 34, t h a t i s an 

amendment t o GLA-46, Amendment 19, i s i t not? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And i t ' s dated May 20, 1976? 

A. Okay, c o r r e c t . 

Q. And t h a t ' s where they formalized t h e i r 

understanding about how t o handle the cost f o r dual 

completions? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. And i n t h i s circumstance, B u r l i n g t o n has made no 

s i m i l a r e f f o r t t o negotiate the costs of t h e i r proposed 

dual completions w i t h you i n accordance w i t h the terms of 

GLA-4 6 — 

A. No — 

Q. — i s t h a t correct? 

A. — not i n the same manner as t h i s , no, they have 

not. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Mr. Corcoran, i s i t your p o s i t i o n 

t h a t Energen's i n t e r e s t s are v o l u n t a r i l y committed t o the 

w e l l s proposed by Burlington? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

MR. HALL: That concludes my d i r e c t of Mr. 

Corcoran. 

I'm s o r r y , l e t me move the admission of E x h i b i t s 

B, C and D, Mr Examiner. 

Q. (By Mr. H a l l ) Mr. Corcoran, were E x h i b i t s B, C 

and D prepared by you or under your d i r e c t i o n and c o n t r o l ? 

A. They were. 

MR. HALL: So moved, Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: E x h i b i t s B, C and D w i l l be 

admitted as evidence a t t h i s time. 

Mr. Kellahin? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 
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CRO S S-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Corcoran, when d i d you f i r s t become employed 

by Energen? 

A. Two and a h a l f years ago. 

Q. And t h a t caused you t o move back t o Farmington 

w i t h Energen, or were you there already? 

A. I was there already. 

Q. When you became involved w i t h Energen i n your 

employment, when d i d you f i r s t become aware of the 

existence of the GLA-4 6 agreement? 

A. Not u n t i l a f t e r Energen had acquired T o t a l 

Minatome, which was e f f e c t i v e the 1st of January, 1998, but 

I wasn't even aware of i t — we d i d n ' t — We d i d not 

f i n a l i z e i t u n t i l October or November of t h a t year. 

So a f t e r the f i r s t l e t t e r s t h a t were penned by 

B u r l i n g t o n concerning these w e l l s — they were penned i n 

J u l y or thereabouts, and those were a c t u a l l y d i r e c t e d t o 

T o t a l Minatome, and we received them subsequently. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So i n l a t e summer or e a r l y f a l l of 

1998, as a r e s u l t of correspondence from B u r l i n g t o n , you 

became aware of the existence of the GLA-4 6 agreement? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I n your experience as a petroleum landman, have 

you ever seen another agreement l i k e the GLA-4 6 agreement? 
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A. Not e x a c t l y . There's se v e r a l , however, as I'm 

sure aware, th e r e are several GLA out t h e r e , and each of 

them are unique. 

Q. Does Energen have any o b j e c t i o n t o the estimated 

w e l l costs t h a t B u r l i n g t o n has proposed f o r the Brookhaven 

Com 8 w e l l , which i s $427,630? 

A. We do not obj e c t t o t h a t d o l l a r amount. However, 

we're not w i l l i n g t o j o i n a t t h a t r a t e . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . My question i s , though, t h e r e i s no 

qui b b l e by Energen as t o the f a c t t h a t $427,000 f o r a dual 

Chacra-Mesaverde w e l l i s a f a i r and reasonable estimate, 

based upon c u r r e n t costs of such wells? 

A. Correct. 

Q. For the 8A w e l l , a s i m i l a r cost f o r t h a t w e l l of 

$427,000 i s f a i r and reasonable? 

A. Yes, no problem. 

Q. When we look a t the B3 w e l l , which i s the s i n g l e 

Mesaverde, B u r l i n g t o n ' s estimate of $386,000 i s also f a i r 

and reasonable i n c u r r e n t market conditions? 

A. I t i s . 

Q. Okay. I f we apply the 1951 p r i c e c e i l i n g as 

amended — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — where a t o t a l cost of a Mesaverde w e l l , by 

which reimbursement i s t o be c a l c u l a t e d , t h a t c e i l i n g i s 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

152 

$90,000? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. I s t h a t $90,000 c e i l i n g a f a i r and reasonable 

c e i l i n g i n today's p r i c i n g where w e l l s of t h i s type cost i n 

excess of $386,000? 

A. No, i t ' s not. 

Q. I t ' s not. And Energen would, i f they were i n 

B u r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n , not d r i l l these w e l l s , r i g h t ? 

MR. HALL: I'm going t o o b j e c t — 

THE WITNESS: I don't know — 

MR. HALL: — i t c a l l s f o r s p e c u l a t i o n . 

THE WITNESS: Okay, I'm not sure, you know — 

MR. HALL: Just a minute — 

THE WITNESS: Oh, I'm s o r r y . 

MR. HALL: — l e t the Examiner r u l e on the 

o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: What's the objection? 

MR. HALL: Speculation. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Speculation by a company? I'm 

asking him i f he's i n Burl i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n whether they 

would d r i l l the w e l l s . I t h i n k i t ' s a f a i r question. 

MR. HALL: I t ' s h y p o t h e t i c a l . There's not the 

f a c t s presented t o the Hearing Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: I ' l l allow the question. 

THE WITNESS: I'm not sure. You know, there's a 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

153 

number of t h i n g s we'd have t o study before I could answer 

t h a t question. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) That's an extremely severe 

l i m i t a t i o n on an operator, i s i t not, i n today's s i t u a t i o n , 

Mr. Corcoran? 

A. That's a — I t ' s something t h a t t hey're going t o 

have t o work w i t h , yes. 

Q. And i t ' s so severe t h a t you b e l i e v e B u r l i n g t o n 

when they t e l l you they're not going t o d r i l l these w e l l s 

s u b j e c t t o t h a t l i m i t a t i o n , r i g h t ? 

A. I don't know t h a t t h a t ' s t r u e . I look a t the 

economics t h a t were t a l k e d about e a r l i e r , and I t h i n k they 

could — a 29-percent r e t u r n on t h e i r investment i s not too 

bad. 

Q. How does the GLA-4 6 acreage have any value t o 

Energen i f B u r l i n g t o n i s u n w i l l i n g t o d r i l l t he w e l l 

s u b j e c t t o t h i s l i m i t a t i o n ? 

A. We need t o be — I t ' s an asset t h a t our f i r m i s 

not w i l l i n g t o j u s t give away. 

Q. Well, the asset i s going t o s i t on the s h e l f 

undeveloped unless there's some r e s o l u t i o n of t h i s issue — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i s t h a t not true? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's see how the p a r t i e s resolved t h a t i n the 
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past. Let's t u r n back t o some of the e x h i b i t s t h a t you 

have presented. Let's look a t Number 19. 

A. Okay. 

Q. That's a l e t t e r of November 7th, 1974? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I'm going t o look a t a p a r t of t h a t l e t t e r t h a t 

Mr. H a l l d i d not h i g h l i g h t . I'm going t o look a t the f i r s t 

sentence of the second paragraph. Am I reading t h i s 

c o r r e c t l y when I say i t says, "Toward the l a t t e r p a r t of 

l a s t year, I saw Mr. Ben Howell and t o l d him t h a t the 

l i m i t e d costs which you would be able t o charge f o r 

d r i l l i n g w e l l s was about 1/2 of the present a c t u a l costs." 

Right? 

A. That's what t h a t says. 

Q. And what he's speaking about i s the o r i g i n a l 

c o n t r a c t l i m i t a t i o n of $45,000, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And a t h i s i n s i s t e n c e , then, and w i t h the 

agreement of El Paso, there i s an amendment by which the 

costs are escalated t o $90,000 as a c e i l i n g , which 

represents the time i n 1974 when t h a t would have 

represented reasonable f a i r cost, r i g h t ? 

A. Okay. 

Q. That's what they d i d , r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And they made t h a t e f f e c t i v e 1-1-75, r i g h t ? 

A. (No response) 

Q. And as you look a t the various amendments t o t h i s 

v a r i o u s agreement, s t a r t i n g back as e a r l y as, I t h i n k , 

1973, on repeated occasions, i n order t o have an agreement 

as t o cost t o get these w e l l s d r i l l e d , the p a r t i e s agreed 

t o use c u r r e n t costs a t t h a t time. I s t h a t not true? 

A. No, Mr. K e l l a h i n , I don't t h i n k i t i s . 

Q. No? 

A. I t h i n k they l i m i t e d i t t o $90,000 over and over 

again, i s the way I was reading t h a t , unless I'm 

misconstruing i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . The subsequent amendments t h a t you 

saw — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — amendments 23, 2 4 and 25, those k i n d of 

things? 

A. Yes, they were l i m i t i n g i t t o $90,000 but, you 

know, t h a t they could recoup i t out of 100 percent of the 

revenues instead of 50 percent. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So p a r t of the arrangement, then, was 

t o change the recoupment p r o v i s i o n — 

A. Correct. 

Q. — so instead of g e t t i n g i t out of 2 5 percent, 

they could have i t out of — 
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A. — 50 — 

Q. — 50 percent of the Brookhaven i n t e r e s t ? 

Okay, l e t ' s go back t o the 1951 agreement. I t ' s 

i n E x h i b i t 1. And I want t o look a t the attachment which 

i s E x h i b i t "B"; i t ' s the operating agreement. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Are you w i t h me? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Let's t u r n through t h a t and get t o page 4. 

A. Okay. 

Q. A l l r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I'm lo o k i n g a t t h a t p o r t i o n of 4b. t h a t says the 

d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n s on San Juan — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — are going t o continue on an annual basis 

" u n t i l a t o t a l of 18 Mesaverde w e l l s have been d r i l l e d or 

s h a l l reassign or r e l i n q u i s h the u n d r i l l e d l o c a t i o n s " and 

the r i g h t s t o a l l formations u n d r i l l e d — e t cetera, e t 

cet e r a . 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay? 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. What does t h a t mean t o you? 

A. I t means what i t says, 18 w e l l s . 
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Q. Okay. I f t h a t d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n i s s a t i s f i e d , 

okay?, by t h a t p r o v i s i o n — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — then when we look a t a l l the acreage t h a t you 

say has not been developed — 

A. Right. 

Q. — on these e x h i b i t s — 

A. Correct. 

Q. — and not reassigned — 

A. Right. 

Q. — t o Energen, Brookhaven or any of the p a r t i e s 

i n t h a t p o s i t i o n — 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — wouldn't t h a t cause you t o reasonably conclude 

t h a t the p a r t i e s i n B u r l i n g t o n ' s p o s i t i o n s a t i s f i e d the 

d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n ? 

A. No, because each time they amended i t , they added 

a number of w e l l s t h a t they agreed t o d r i l l . 

Q. I f you t u r n t o page 5, the bottom sentence i n 

t h a t paragraph — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — i t says, " I f San Juan has f a i l e d t o comply 

w i t h the d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n s of t h i s Operating Agreement, 

then San Juan s h a l l execute and d e l i v e r t o Brookhaven a 

release of t h i s Operating Agreement as t o such t r a c t s . . . " 
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A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n examining a l l the documents, d i d you f i n d any 

instance i n which San Juan d e l i v e r e d a reassignment back t o 

Brookhaven? 

A. I have not. 

Q. Did you f i n d any occurrence where Brookhaven 

demanded a reassignment? 

A. I d i d not. 

Q. Did you f i n d any occasion where any of 

Brookhaven's predecessors demanded a reassignment? 

A. No. 

Q. Has Energen demanded a reassignment? 

A. They have not. 

Q. Could t h a t cause you t o reasonably conclude t h a t 

the d r i l l i n g o b l i g a t i o n s are s a t i s f i e d ? 

A. No, what i t causes me t o conclude i s t h a t they 

simply haven't made t h a t demand y e t . 

Q. And a f t e r 45 years — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — nobody i n your company's p o s i t i o n made t h a t 

demand? 

A. We've had t h i s a l l of a year. 

Q. I n 1973 and 1974, they're amending the agreement 
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t o p rovide f o r c u r r e n t costs, and the c e i l i n g goes up t o 

$90,000; i s t h a t the way I understand i t ? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Turn w i t h me t o E x h i b i t 64. I t ' s the September 

18th, 1998, l e t t e r from B u r l i n g t o n t o the i n t e r e s t owners. 

I t ' s the one t h a t you signed on behalf of Energen. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. At t h i s p o i n t i n time, B u r l i n g t o n i s 

o f f e r i n g the o p p o r t u n i t y t o the i n t e r e s t owners t o e i t h e r 

s i g n a new operating agreement, or o p t i o n 2 i s , t h e y ' l l pay 

f o r the costs of the w e l l , recoup out of 100 percent of the 

revenues the cost, and then everybody i s happy. A l l r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you signed o f f ? 

A. Yes, we d i d . 

Q. I f you're a s s e r t i n g the l i m i t a t i o n s of the 1951 

agreement — 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. — why d i d you propose t o accept o p t i o n 2? 

A. Because we wanted t o support them on a one-well 

b a s i s , t o t r y and begin working w i t h them t o develop these 

p r o p e r t i e s . We'd l i k e t o see them developed al s o . 

Q. Okay. And as a consequence, you recognize t h a t 

the l i m i t a t i o n s of the 1951 agreement was going t o be such 

t h a t the w e l l wasn't going t o get d r i l l e d ? 
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A. I t could be d e t r i m e n t a l . However, when we d i d do 

t h i s , they chose not t o d r i l l i t f o r whatever reasons. 

Q. Well, and you heard the reasons from Mr. Nichols. 

He s a i d he couldn't get everyone else t o agree t o the 

change and so they went back t o square one? 

A. Okay. But we stood ready, w i l l i n g and were 

prepared t o do t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Would t h a t be t r u e of a l l remaining 

spacing u n i t s i n which the GLA acreage might be included? 

A. I'm not — 

MR. HALL: Again, I'm going t o o b j e c t . I t c a l l s 

f o r s p e c u l a t i o n once again, Mr. Examiner. 

THE WITNESS: Yeah, I can't answer t h a t question, 

I can't speak f o r my company. 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Okay. Well, i t appears t h a t 

we're a t an impasse, doesn't i t , Mr. Corcoran? 

A. Yes. 

Q. B u r l i n g t o n and Energen can't agree on the cost of 

the w e l l , and the w e l l s are not going t o get d r i l l e d , are 

they? 

A. I hope there's some middle ground. 

Q. I hope so too. You've been working on i t since 

what? October, September — 

A. Not r e a l — 

Q. — of 1999? 
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A. Let's see. Yeah, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t , t h a t ' s about 

the time we s t a r t e d l o o k i n g a t t h i s i n earnest, or sometime 

s h o r t l y before t h a t . 

Q. Okay. And Mr. Nichols says t h a t upper management 

f o r both Energen and B u r l i n g t o n have met on t h i s t o p i c , and 

above your l e v e l and above h i s t h e r e has not been an 

agreement, r i g h t ? 

A. Yeah, i t ' s u n f ortunate. 

MR. KELLAHIN: No f u r t h e r questions. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. Hall? 

MR. HALL: B r i e f l y , Mr. Examiner. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. HALL: 

Q. Mr. Corcoran, the many amendments by Mr. Scott 

and Lear, GLA-4 6, t h a t Mr. K e l l a h i n asked you about on 

cross-examination — 

A. Yes. 

Q. — none of those, none of those operated as a 

release o f GLA-46, d i d they? 

A. No, they d i d not. 

MR. HALL: Nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Examiner. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: I have nothing f u r t h e r , thank 

you. 

THE WITNESS: Thanks. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, t o close, two l e t t e r s 
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were sent t o you — I don't know t h a t you've received them 

— Janet Cunningham, who i s a landman w i t h Bank of America. 

They administer the Dacresa Group, former shareholders of 

the Dacresa Corporation, Carolyn Nelson Sedberry, e t a l . , 

who I've entered an appearance f o r here today. 

Ms. Cunningham has provided you w i t h a l e t t e r i n 

o p p o s i t i o n t o B u r l i n g t o n ' s A p p l i c a t i o n , as has Kent S. 

Davis, Senior Landman f o r Westport O i l and Gas Company, 

Inc. 

I provide you w i t h copies of those, and I ask 

t h a t they be included i n the record i n t h i s case. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: I have t h i s one... 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I o b j e c t t o l e t t e r s 

t o be considered by you where the p a r t i e s t h a t s i g n these 

l e t t e r s don't care enough about the issue t o come here and 

t e s t i f y on behalf of t h e i r p o s i t i o n . I'm not able t o rebut 

or examine these people, so we would ask t h a t you not 

consider them. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Mr. H a l l , you represent 

Westport O i l and Gas; i s t h a t correct? 

MR. HALL: Yes. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: What about the l e t t e r from Bank 

of America? I s t h a t the group t h a t you represent as well? 

MR. HALL: Yes, i t i s . 

You have the d i s c r e t i o n t o consider them. 
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EXAMINER ASHLEY: Both of these l e t t e r s were 

addressed t o me. I've already received one i n the 

o r i g i n a l , so w e ' l l make these a p a r t of the record. 

MR. HALL: Mr. Examiner, I would propose i n l i e u 

of f u r t h e r c l o s i n g statements we provide you w i t h a 

memorandum on the f a c t s and the law we view as a p p l i c a b l e 

i n t h i s case, provide you w i t h d r a f t orders and go home. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I would l i k e one procedural matter 

— renew my motion t o ask t o amend the pleadings t o assert 

r e l i e f under 70-2-17 E, which would provide an o p p o r t u n i t y 

f o r you t o consider, then, whether or not you w i l l issue a 

fo r c e p o o l i n g order and modify t h i s agreement, i f you t h i n k 

i t i s s t i l l i n e f f e c t , i n order t h a t these w e l l s may be 

d r i l l e d . 

Without e i t h e r f i n d i n g these p r o p e r t i e s are not 

sub j e c t t o the c o n t r a c t , or by u t i l i z i n g subparagraph E, 

these w e l l s are not going t o get d r i l l e d . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: I would o b j e c t , Mr. Examiner. 

I t h i n k , one, you're estopped t o t r y t o amend a t t h i s 

p o i n t , given the p o s i t i o n they've taken w i t h respect t o the 

a p p l i c a b i l i t y or not of GLA-46. 

Secondly, amending at t h i s time presents, I 

t h i n k , a s u b s t a n t i a l due-process question. Had we known i n 

advance, I t h i n k we would have prepared a completely 

d i f f e r e n t case, had a completely d i f f e r e n t set of proof f o r 
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you t o consider. I t ' s not proper t o amend a t t h i s p o i n t i n 

time on t h a t basis. 

We would o b j e c t . 

MR. CARROLL: Okay, we're going t o defer r u l i n g 

on t h a t issue. We'd l i k e you t o address i t i n your w r i t t e n 

statements. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , s i r . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: And w e ' l l continue the case f o r 

two weeks. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Say again? You want t o continue 

t h i s ? For what reason? I can — 

MR. CARROLL: — amending the A p p l i c a t i o n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , w e ' l l do i t t h a t way. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Do you have a time frame f o r 

s u b m i t t i n g orders? I could get an order i n — 

MR. HALL: Monday. 

MR. KELLAHIN: — two weeks, or — 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Monday? 

MR. HALL: Yeah, and a memorandum. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Some of us are going t o Hobbs and 

f i g h t w i t h Mr. Hartman and the Jalmat t h e r e . 

MR. HALL: I d i d n ' t know. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yeah, I need t o spread myself 

towards the Jalmat. 
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EXAMINER ASHLEY: The 1st? 

MR. KELLAHIN: We can do i t by the next hearing. 

MR. HALL: Sure, t h a t ' s f i n e . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: That w i l l be — 

MR. KELLAHIN: We're going t o continue the case 

anyway — 

MR. CARROLL: February 3rd. 

MR. KELLAHIN: — f o r two weeks, so t h a t puts 

us — what? February 2nd, i s i t ? 

MR. CARROLL: Yeah, February 2nd. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Okay, February 2nd. 

MS. McGRAW: 3rd. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Ma'am? 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: The 3rd. 

MR. KELLAHIN: February 3rd i s the hearing date. 

So w e ' l l get you — or a t l e a s t I can get you a proposed 

order by then. 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I s t h a t a l l r i g h t ? 

MR. CARROLL: By the 2nd, so we have i t by the 

3rd. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: I s the r e anything f u r t h e r i n 

t h i s case a t t h i s time? 

MR. HALL: No, s i r . Thank you very much. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

166 

EXAMINER ASHLEY: We'll continue t h i s f o r two 

weeks. 

Thank you, and t h i s hearing i s adjourned. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

9:28 p.m.) 

* * * 
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